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On August 1, 2007, the Interstate Highway35W bridge over the Mississippi River
in Minneapolis collapsed. The Minnesota Department of Transportation
(“Mn/DOT”) is working with the National Transportation Safety Board in its
investigation and Hennepin County in recovery operations. Mn/DOT has begun
the process of selecting a design-build contractor to replace the bridge. Recovery
and re-construction is expected to result in significant expenditures by city,
county, state and federal entities.

The U.S. Department of Transportation has provided $55 million in funding to the
State of Minnesota for utilization in initial response and recovery activities and for
rebuilding the bridge. Congress authorized $250 million in federal aid to repair
and reconstruct the bridge (HR3311, Public Law 110-56). HR3311 specifies that
the bridge replacement would be 100% federally funded and would permit a
waiver of the normal $100 million annual cap on Federal Highway
Administration's "emergency relief" funding. The President signed the measure
on August 6, 2007.

It is possible that the Governor will call a special session of the Minnesota
Legislature to address funding for expenditures related to the collapse not
covered by city, county or federal entities. While the Governor may call a special
session pursuant to the Minnesota Constitution, he is not authorized to limit the
agenda or duration of such special session once the Minnesota Legislature has
convened.

Litigation

The following is a discussion of additional claims litigation developments that
have occurred since the date of the Final Official Statement that are material for
purposes of this Official Statement.

a) Tort Claims. A material number of tort claims arising out of the Interstate
Highway 35W bridge collapse for damages are likely, however, the State’s
exposure is limited by existing State law to $300,000 per claim and $1,000,000
per occurrence.



b) In the Matter of the Commission Inquiry Regarding Potential Proscribed Ex
Parte Contact Regarding Commissioner Scott; In the Matter of the Minnesota
Department of Commerce Against Qwest Corporation Regarding Unfiled
Agreement; In the Matter of the Complaint of A T & T Communications of the
Midwest, Inc. against Qwest Corporation (Minn. Ct. Appeals). The Public Utilities
Commission (PUC) required Qwest to pay a penalty or $25,955,000 for failing to
make public and seek PUC approval for interconnection agreements entered into
with competitive local exchange carriers in a decision upheld by the U.S. District
Court and the Eighth Circuit Court of Appeals. Subsequently, the PUC
investigated allegedly improper communications between a former PUC
commissioner and a former senior regulatory counsel with AT & T and
concluded the penalty determination was reasonable and not the result of undue
influence. Qwest appealed. The Court of Appeals affirmed the PUC
determination that the alleged communications did not constitute impermissible
ex parte communications as supported by substantial evidence but vacated the
penalty and remanded for re-deliberation of the penalty on grounds that record
indicates the penalty was at least partially the result of improper influence.
Further proceeding before the PUC are anticipated.
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NEW ISSUE RATING: Moody’s: Aat
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In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota, bond counsel, according to
present federal and Minnesota laws, regulations, rulings and decisions, the interest to be paid on the
Bonds is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or in taxable net income of
individuals, estates or trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes; is subject to Minnesota franchise
taxes imposed on corporations and financial institutions; is not an item of tax preference includable in
alternative minimum taxable income for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax applicable to
all taxpayers or the Minnesota alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals, estates and trusts;
and is includable in adjusted current earnings of corporations in determining alternative minimum
taxable income for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax. For a discussion of tax matters
see “Tax Exemption and Collateral Tax Matters” herein.
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Dated: Date of Issue Due: August 1, as shown below
Interest Price CUsIP Interest Price CUsIP

Year Amount Rate or Yield 604129 Year Amount Rate or Yield 604129
2008 $37,675,000 5.00% 3.69% EZ5 2018  $30,570,000 500% 4.15% FK7
2009 37,675,000 5.00 3.74 FA9 2019 30,570,000  5.00 418 FL5
2010 37,675,000 5.00 3.76 FB7 2020 30,570,000  5.00 4.21 FM3
2011 37,675,000 5.00 3.80 FC5 2021 30,570,000  5.00 4.24 FN1
2012 42,175,000 5.00 3.85 FD3 2022 30,570,000  5.00 4.26 FP6
2013 34,285,000 5.00 3.91 FE1 2023 30,570,000  5.00 4.28 FQ4
2014 34,285,000 5.00 3.94 FF8 2024 30,670,000  5.00 4.30 FR2
2015 34,285,000 5.00 3.98 FG6 2025 30,670,000  5.00 4.31 FSO
2016 34,285,000 5.00 4.03 FH4 2026 30,570,000  5.00 4.32 FT8
2017 34,285,000 5.00 4.09 FJO 2027 30,570,000  5.00 4.35 FU5S

The Bonds comprise $656,000,000 General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds, and
$14,000,000 General Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds.

THE BONDS ARE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE STATE AND THE FULL FAITH AND
CREDIT AND TAXING POWERS OF THE STATE ARE IRREVOCABLY PLEDGED FOR THE
PAYMENT OF THE BONDS AND INTEREST THEREON WHEN DUE.

The Bonds maturing after August 1, 2017 will be subject to redemption and prepayment by the
State as provided herein.

Form and Payment:

The Bonds will be available to the purchasers in book entry form only, and initially will be
registered in the name of Cede & Co., nominee of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New
York, which will act as securities depository for the Bonds.

The Bonds are offered by the State subject to the legal opinions of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, bond
counsel, as to the validity of the Bonds and tax exemption, and of the State Attorney General as to the
validity of the Bonds. Delivery will be made on or about Tuesday, August 14, 2007.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this
issue or this Official Statement. Investors must read the entire Official Statement to obtain information
essential to the making of an informed investment decision.



Unless otherwise indicated, information contained in this Official Statement is based upon
material provided by the State and available at the date of publication of this Official Statement.

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the State to give any
information or to make any representations with respect to the Bonds other than those
contained in this Official Statement and, if given or made, such other information or represen-
tations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the State. Certain information
contained herein has been obtained from sources other than records of the State and is
believed to be reliable, but it is not guaranteed. Information and expressions of opinion herein
are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any
sale made hereunder shall under any circumstances create any implication that there have not
been any changes in the affairs of the State since the date hereof.

This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to
buy nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is
unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT
STATE OF MINNESOTA
$670,000,000

General Obligation
State Bonds

Dated Date of Issue

INTRODUCTION

General

This Official Statement, including the cover page, the Official Statement Supplement contained on
pages 15 through 62, and Appendices A through K (this “Official Statement”), has been prepared by
the State of Minnesota Department of Finance to furnish information relating to $670,000,000 General
Obligation State Bonds of the State of Minnesota (the “State”) to be dated the date of issue (the
“Bonds”), to prospective purchasers and actual purchasers of the Bonds. This Introduction contains
only a brief description of or references to a portion of such information, and prospective and actual
purchasers should read this entire Official Statement.

Purpose

The Bonds are being issued by the State of Minnesota, acting by and through its Commissioner
of Finance (the “Commissioner” or “Commissioner of Finance”), pursuant to the constitutional and
statutory authority described under the section hereof entitled “The Bonds — Authorization and
Purpose.”

Bonds in the principal amount of $656,000,000 are being issued for the purpose of financing all
or a portion of the cost of certain programs and capital projects, the types of which generally include
educational facilities, parks, pollution control facilities, transportation, natural resources and agricultural
enterprises. Bonds in the principal amount of $14,000,000 are being issued for the purpose of
financing the cost of certain construction, improvement and maintenance of the State trunk highway
system.

Security

The Bonds are general obligations of the State secured by the pledge of the full faith and credit
and taxing powers of the State. (See the section hereof entitled “The Bonds — Security”.) For
information as to the credit ratings assigned to the Bonds by various rating agencies see the section
hereof entitled “Ratings.”

Bond Terms

The Bonds mature on the date and in the principal amount and bear interest at the annual rate
shown on the cover page hereof. Such interest is computed on the basis of a 360-day year and twelve
30-day months, and is payable semiannually on each February 1 and August 1 to maturity or prior
redemption, commencing February 1, 2008. If principal or interest is due on a date on which
commercial banks are not open for business, then payment will be made on the first day thereafter
when such banks are open for business. The Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the
State on the terms and conditions stated in the section hereof entitled “Redemption and Prepayment.”

The Bonds are issued in book entry form and in denominations of $5,000 or multiples thereof of
a single maturity. The Bonds will be issued initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., nominee of
The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, which will act as securities depository for the
Bonds. Accordingly, printed Bonds will not be available to purchasers of the Bonds. For a description
of the book entry system pursuant to which the Bonds will be issued see the section hereof entitled
“Book Entry System.”



Bond Maturity Schedule

The Bonds are comprised of $656,000,000 General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds, and
$14,000,000 General Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds. The maturity schedules are shown
below. The Bonds are scheduled to mature on August 1 of each year.

$656,000,000 General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds

Principal Principal
Year Amount Year Amount
2008 $36,885,000 2018  $29,920,000
2009 36,885,000 2019 29,920,000
2010 36,885,000 2020 29,920,000
2011 36,885,000 2021 29,920,000
2012 41,385,000 2022 29,920,000
2013 33,575,000 2023 29,920,000
2014 33,575,000 2024 29,920,000
2015 33,575,000 2025 29,920,000
2016 33,575,000 2026 29,920,000
2017 33,575,000 2027 29,920,000

$14,000,000 General Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds

Principal Principal
Year Amount Year Amount
2008  $790,000 2018  $650,000
2009 790,000 2019 650,000
2010 790,000 2020 650,000
2011 790,000 2021 650,000
2012 790,000 2022 650,000
2013 710,000 2023 650,000
2014 710,000 2024 650,000
2015 710,000 2025 650,000
2016 710,000 2026 650,000
2017 710,000 2027 650,000

Sources and Uses of Funds

Sources:
Bond Proceeds:
Par Amount of Bonds. ... . 670,000,000
Premiumon Bonds ........... ... .. .. .. . 35,451,180

Total SOUICES . ... o 705,451,180

Uses:
Capital Projects Funds
Bond Proceeds Fund ........... ... .. .. . . .. ... 656,000,000
Trunk Highway Bond Proceeds .................. ... ......... 14,000,000
Total Bond Proceeds Funds ............ ... ... .. . ... ... .. .. ... 670,000,000
Debt Service Fund Deposit
Premiumon Bonds ........ ... ... .. .. .. 35,451,180

Total USES . . ..o 705,451,180

Legal Opinions
The Bonds are approved as to validity by the State Attorney General and Dorsey & Whitney LLP,
bond counsel.



In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, bond counsel, according to present federal and
Minnesota laws, regulations, rulings and decisions, the interest to be paid on the Bonds is not
includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or in taxable net income of individuals,
estates or trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes; is subject to Minnesota franchise taxes imposed
on corporations and financial institutions; is not an item of tax preference includable in alternative
minimum taxable income for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax applicable to all
taxpayers or the Minnesota alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals, estates and trusts; and
is includable in adjusted current earnings of corporations in determining alternative minimum taxable
income for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.

For a discussion of tax matters see “Tax Exemption and Collateral Tax Matters” herein.

Additional Bonds

The State plans to sell $8.0 million of taxable general obligation bonds on July 26, 2007. The State
does not plan to sell additional tax-exempt general obligation bonds within 30 days after the date of
the sale of the Bonds.

Revenue and Expenditure Forecasting

The State operates on a biennial budget basis with each biennium ending on June 30 of an odd
numbered year and comprising two fiscal years with each fiscal year running July 1 through June 30
(“Fiscal Year”). Legislative appropriations for each biennium are typically adopted by the State’s
legislature (the “Legislature”) during the final legislative session prior to the beginning of the current
biennium.

Revenue forecasts are prepared by the Department of Finance using for forecasting purposes
data provided by Global Insight, Inc. (“Gll”), an independent forecasting service. Expenditure
forecasts are prepared by the Department of Finance based upon current annual budgets and upon
current cash expenditure estimates provided by State agencies responsible for significant expenditure
items.

Budget — Current Biennium

Forecast revenue and expenditure measures for the biennium ending June 30, 2009 (the “Current
Biennium”) are summarized as set forth below. The General Fund is defined on page 16.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
END OF 2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*

($ in Millions)
Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 . .................... $ 2,106

Non-dedicated Revenues ............... .. ... ... ........ 32,966

Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other............... 845
Total Revenues and Transfers. .......................... 33,811
Total Resources . ... . . $35,917
Expenditures. ... ... ... ... . ... ... ... 34,509
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 1,408

Cash Flow Account. . ... ... ... .. .. .. . ... . .. ... ... .. ... 350

Budget Reserve Account . ........ ... ... ... ... .. .. ... ..., 686
Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts .. .............. ... 1,036

Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2009 ...........

&+

373

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.



CURRENT BIENNIUM
TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND
END OF 2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*

($ in Millions)
Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ..................... $ 16
Anticipated Prior Year Adjustments . .......................
Tax Revenues: Highway User Taxes ...................... 1,561
Federal Aid .. ... . 626
Transfers InfOut and Other . ......... ... .. ... ... ........ 108
Total RESOUICES . . ..ot $2,311
Expenditures........... ... ... . ... ... ... $2,296
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 15

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.

Economic Update

The July 2007 Economic Update shows General Fund tax receipts for Fiscal Year 2007 are now
estimated to be $158.7 million above the February 2007 forecast.

Individual income tax receipts showed the largest variance with $146.6 million above the
February 2007 forecast. Motor vehicle sales tax receipts were $5.3 million above forecast. Gross sales
tax receipts were also above forecast, however larger than expected sales tax refunds left net sales
tax receipts $10.9 million lower than forecast. Corporate income tax receipts were estimated to be
$3.5 million below forecast. All other tax receipts were $21.2 million above forecast.

Bonds Outstanding

The total amount of State general obligation bonds outstanding on August 1, 2007, including this
issue will be approximately $4.5 billion. The total amount of general obligation bonds authorized
but unissued as of August 1, 2007, will be approximately $633.6 million. See Appendix B, pages B-1
and B-2.

Cash Flow Information

The Commissioner of Finance anticipates that the Statutory General Fund will have a positive
cash balance throughout the Current Biennium. The Statutory General Fund is defined in Appendix D.

Additional Information

Questions regarding this Official Statement should be directed to Peter Sausen, Assistant
Commissioner, State Department of Finance, 400 Centennial Office Building, St. Paul, Minnesota
55155, telephone (651) 201-8014, email peter.sausen@state.mn.us, or Susan Gurrola, Financial Bond
Analyst, State Department of Finance, 400 Centennial Office Building, St. Paul, Minnesota 55155,
telephone (651) 201-8046, email sue.gurrola@state.mn.us. Questions regarding legal matters should
be directed to Leonard S. Rice, Dorsey & Whitney LLP, 50 South Sixth Street, Suite 1500, Minneapolis,
Minnesota 55402, telephone (612) 343-7971, email rice.len@dorsey.com.

THE BONDS

Authorization and Purpose

Constitutional Provisions. Article Xl, Section 5 of the Minnesota Constitution authorizes public
debt to be incurred for the acquisition and betterment of public land, buildings and other improvements
of a capital nature, or for appropriations or loans to State agencies or political subdivisions for this
purpose, as the Legislature by a three-fifths vote of both the House of Representatives and the Senate



may direct, and to finance the development of the agricultural resources of the State by extending
credit on real estate security and to finance the promotion of forestation, as the Legislature may direct.
Article Xl requires all such debt to be evidenced by the issuance of State bonds maturing within
20 years of their date of issue, for which the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the State are
irrevocably pledged. Public debt is defined by Article XI, Section 4 to include any obligation payable
directly, in whole or in part, from a tax of statewide application on any class of property, income,
transaction or privilege, but does not include any obligation which is payable from revenues other than
taxes. The Minnesota Constitution places no limitation on the amount or interest rate of bonds that may
be authorized for these and certain other purposes. Article X1V, Section 11 and Article XI, Section 5 of
the Minnesota Constitution authorize the Legislature to provide by law for the issuance of State general
obligation bonds to finance the construction of improvements to and maintenance of the Trunk
Highway System.

Statutory Provisions. The $656,000,000 General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds are
authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 16A.631 through 16A.675 and the $14,000,000 General
Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds are authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 167.50 through
167.52. The Bonds are also authorized by the session laws as set forth below.

General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds.

Session laws authorizing the issuance of the General Obligation State Various Purpose Bonds and
the amounts included in this issue are set forth below:’

Bonds

Law Authorizing This Issue
2000 Session, Chapter, Ch. 492 ... . ... . ... ... ... ... . $ 200,000
2002 Session, Chapter 393 ... ... .. 3,000,000
2002 Special Session, Chapter 1 ... ... 500,000
2003 Special Session, Chapter 20 ......... .. ... . . 10,000,000
2005 Session, Chapter 20 ... ... 216,800,000
2006 Session, Chapter 258 ... ... . .. . 421,000,000
2007 Session, Chapter 16. ... ... .. . 4,500,000

$656,000,000

General Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds.

Session laws authorizing the issuance of the General Obligation State Trunk Highway Bonds and
the amounts included in this issue are set forth below:"

Bonds
Law Authorizing This Issue
2003 Special Session, Chapter 19, Article 3 .......... .. ... .. ... .. ... $14,000,000
$14,000,000

Security®
State Bond Fund and Property Tax: The Bonds are issued as general obligations of the State,
and the laws authorizing their issuance pledge the full faith and credit and taxing powers of the State

(1) See also the table of General Obligation Bonds Authorized, Issued and Unissued on page B-2 and the
Project Description included in Appendix C.

(2) While the State has adopted the revised Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code that generally eliminates
the exclusion for security interests created by government debtors, Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.78
provides that Article 9 does not apply to security interests created by the State (except security interests in
equipment and fixtures).



to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. The Minnesota Constitution,
Article XI, requires the maintenance of a State bond fund (the “Debt Service Fund”), and provides that
when the full faith and credit of the State has been pledged for the payment of State general obligation
bonds, the State Auditor is required to levy each year a tax on all taxable property in the State in the
amount needed, if any, with the balance then on hand in the Debt Service Fund, to pay all principal
and interest due and to become due on such State bonds through July 1 of the second ensuing year.

General Fund Appropriations: Article X| of the Minnesota Constitution also provides that no
money is to be paid out of the State Treasury except pursuant to an appropriation. Each law
authorizing the issuance of general obligation bonds appropriates moneys either directly or by
reference to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 16A, to the Debt Service Fund out of the General Fund (as
defined on page 16) and, in some cases, from special enterprise or loan repayment funds, sufficient
to provide for the payment of such bonds and interest thereon without the levy of a property tax
otherwise required by the provisions of the Minnesota Constitution. Moneys on hand in the Debt
Service Fund, including all moneys derived from: (i) the foregoing statutory appropriations; (ii) the levy
of the State property tax required by the Minnesota Constitution if the amount of appropriated funds
on hand does not equal the total required amount of the tax at the time the levy is required; and
(iii) income from the investment of the foregoing, are appropriated for the payment of the principal of
and interest on State general obligation bonds when due. If moneys on hand at the due date are not
sufficient, the statutes also appropriate from the General Fund an amount equal to the deficiency.
Since 1966, as a result of transfers of moneys to the Debt Service Fund from the General Fund each
December, no State property tax has been levied to pay debt service on State general obligation
bonds.

Minnesota Statutes, Section 16A.641, makes an annual appropriation to the Debt Service Fund
from the General Fund of the amount that, added to the amount already on hand in the Debt Service
Fund, is an amount needed to pay the principal of and interest on all State bonds due and to become
due through July 1 in the second ensuing year. The transfer of the debt service appropriation from the
General Fund to the Debt Service Fund for the Bonds included in this issue will be made by
December 1 of each year. (Also see information on page B-4 with respect to Debt Service Fund
transfer.)

Additional Security — State Trunk Highway Bonds: The Minnesota Constitution, Article XIV,
establishes a Trunk Highway Fund (the “Trunk Highway Fund” or “State Trunk Highway Fund”) to be
used solely for trunk highway system purposes and for the payment of principal of and interest on
trunk highway bonds. Article XIV provides that the payment of the principal of and interest on State
trunk highway bonds is “a first charge on money coming into [the State Trunk Highway Fund] during
the year in which the principal or interest is payable.” Article XIV also establishes a Highway User Tax
Distribution Fund to be used solely for highway purposes, authorizes the Legislature to impose taxes
on motor vehicles and motor vehicle fuels, and requires the proceeds of such taxes to be paid into the
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund. The Minnesota Constitution requires that 95% of the revenues
deposited into the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund be distributed from such fund as follows: 62%
to the Trunk Highway Fund, 29% to the County State Aid Highway Fund, and 9% to the Municipal State
Aid Street Fund. The remaining 5% of Highway User Tax Distribution Fund revenues is distributed to
the same three funds in accordance with a formula that the Legislature establishes. Currently these
remaining revenues are all distributed to the County State Aid Highway Fund. According to the
Minnesota Constitution, no change in the formula may be made within six years of the last previous
change. The current distribution formula was established in the 1997 legislative session.

Minnesota Statutes, Section 167.51, makes an annual appropriation to the trunk highway bond
account in the Debt Service Fund from the State Trunk Highway Fund of the amount that, when added
to the amount already on hand in the trunk highway bond account in the Debt Service Fund, is the
amount needed to pay the principal of and interest on all State trunk highway bonds due and to
become due through July 1 in the second ensuing year. The transfer of the debt service appropriation
from the State Trunk Highway Fund to the trunk highway bond account in the Debt Service Fund for
the State trunk highway bonds included in this issue will be made by December 1 of each year.



Waiver of Immunity: Under Minnesota Statutes, Section 3.751, the State has waived immunity
from suit with respect to the controversies arising out of its debt obligations incurred pursuant to
Article XI of the Minnesota Constitution, and has conferred jurisdiction on State District Courts to hear
and determine such controversies. Accordingly, if the State fails to pay in full the principal of and
interest on the Bonds when due, a holder of a Bond on which principal or interest is past due is
entitled to commence an action in the District Court for Ramsey County, Minnesota, to enforce the
pledge of the State’s full faith and credit to the payment of such principal and interest.

BOOK ENTRY SYSTEM

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, will act as securities depository for
the Bonds. The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede &
Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the
Bonds in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York Banking Law, a “banking
organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve
System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and
a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for U.S. and non-U.S. equity
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments that DTC’s participants
(“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates
the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain
other organizations.

DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).
DTCC, in turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National
Securities Clearing Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing
Corporation (also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the
American Stock Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the
DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers,
banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial
relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has
Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The DTC Rules applicable to its Direct Participants and
Indirect Participants (collectively, the “Participants”) are on file with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and www.dtc.org.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants,
which will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual
purchaser of each Bond (“Beneficial Owner”) is, in turn, to be recorded on the Participants’ records.
Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners
are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as
periodic statements of their holdings, from the Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered
into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries
made on the books of Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not
receive certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the
book-entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be
requested by an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their
registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in
beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC'’s



records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited,
which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Participants will remain responsible for keeping
account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the
transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions,
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Bond documents. In the alternative, Beneficial
Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the registrar of the Bonds (“Registrar”) and
request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant
in such issue to be redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC'’s Procedures. Under its usual
procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the State as soon as possible after the record date. The
Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose
accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds will be made to Cede &
Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. DTC'’s
practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC'’s receipt of funds and corresponding
detail information from the State, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown
on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing
instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers
in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not
of DTC, or its nominee or the State, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in
effect from time to time. Payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to
Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) is
the responsibility of the State, disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the
responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the
responsibility of Participants.

A Beneficial Owner shall give notice to elect to have its Bonds purchased or tendered, through its
Participant, to the Registrar, and shall effect delivery of such Bonds by causing the Direct Participant
to transfer the Participant’s interest in the Bonds, on DTC's records, to the Registrar. The requirement
for physical delivery of Bonds in connection with an optional tender or a mandatory purchase will be
deemed satisfied when the ownership rights in the Bonds are transferred by Direct Participants on
DTC’s records and followed by a book-entry credit of tendered Bonds to the Registrar’s DTC account.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time
by giving reasonable notice to the State. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The State may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or
a successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered.

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained
from sources that the State believes to be reliable, but the State takes no responsibility for the
completeness or the accuracy thereof, or as to the absence of material adverse changes in such
information subsequent to the date hereof.

The State cannot and does not give any assurances that DTC, or a successor securities
depository, or Participants will distribute to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds: (i) payments of
principal of or interest and premium, if any, on the Bonds; (ii) certificates representing an ownership



interest or other confirmation of beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds; or (iii) redemption or other
notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, or a successor securities depository, as the
registered owner of the Bonds, or that they will do so on a timely basis, or that DTC or the Participants
will serve and act in the manner described in this Official Statement.

The State will have no responsibility or obligation to any Participant, or any Beneficial Owner or
any other person with respect to: (i) the Bonds; (ii) the accuracy of any records maintained by DTC,
or a successor securities depository, or any DTC Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial
Owner in respect of the principal or redemption price of or interest on the Bonds; (iii) the payment by
DTC, or a successor securities depository, or any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial
Owner in respect of the principal or redemption price of or interest on the Bonds; (iv) the delivery by
DTC, or a successor securities depository, or any Participant of any notice to any Beneficial Owner
which is required or permitted to be given to owners of the Bonds; (v) the selection of which Beneficial
Owners will receive payment in the event of any partial redemption of the Bonds; (vi) any consent
given or other action taken by DTC, or a successor securities depository as a Bondholder; or, (vii) the
performance by DTC, or any successor securities depository, of any other duties as securities
depository.

REDEMPTION AND PREPAYMENT

Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 2017 will not be subject to redemption prior to their stated
maturity dates, but Bonds maturing on or after August 1, 2018 will be subject to redemption and
prepayment by the State at its option on August 1, 2017 and any interest payment date thereafter, in
whole or in part, in an order determined by the State and by lot within each maturity, at a price of par
plus accrued interest to the date specified for redemption.

Notice of any redemption of Bonds will be published in financial newspapers circulated in the
Minneapolis-St. Paul metropolitan area and in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New York,
not less than thirty days before the redemption date, stating: (i) the series, original date of issue,
maturity dates, CUSIP numbers, and interest rates of the Bonds to be redeemed, (ii) if less than all
Bonds of any maturity are to be redeemed, the registration numbers of those to be redeemed, (iii) the
principal amount to be redeemed if less than the entire principal amount of any Bond, (iv) the
redemption date and price and the name and address of the paying agent where such Bonds must
be presented for payment, (v) that on the redemption date the redemption price of the Bonds or
portions thereof to be redeemed will be payable, and (vi) that after the redemption date interest will
cease to accrue or be payable thereon. Notice will also be mailed to the registered owner of any such
Bond at the address shown on the bond register, not less than twenty days before the redemption
date. During the period when the book entry system is in effect, the Bonds will be registered in the
name of the nominee of DTC or another securities depository designated for this purpose as indicated
in the section hereof entitled “Book Entry System,” and thus notice of redemption will be mailed only
to such securities depository which in turn is obligated to notify its participants who are obligated to
notify the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds. However, the State assumes no responsibility with respect
to the giving of such notice of redemption by the securities depository or its participants.

Notice of redemption having been so published and mailed, the Bonds or portion of Bonds
therein specified shall be due and payable at the specified redemption date and price, with accrued
interest, and funds for such payment being held by or on behalf of the paying agent so as to be
available therefor, interest thereon shall cease to accrue, and such Bonds or portions thereof shall no
longer be considered outstanding under the Commissioner’'s order authorizing their issuance. The
failure to publish notice of redemption shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of mailed notice, and
the failure to mail notice to any registered owner, or any defect in the notice mailed to any registered
owner, shall not affect the validity or effectiveness of the notice of redemption mailed to any other
registered owner.



TAX EXEMPTION AND COLLATERAL TAX MATTERS

In the opinion of Dorsey & Whitney LLP, bond counsel, according to present federal and
Minnesota laws, regulations, rulings and decisions, the interest to be paid on the Bonds:

(1) is not includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes or in taxable net
income of individuals, estates or trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes;

(2) is subject to Minnesota franchise taxes imposed on corporations and financial institutions;

(8) is not an item of tax preference includable in alternative minimum taxable income for
purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax applicable to all taxpayers or the Minnesota
alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals, estates and trusts; and

(4) is includable in adjusted current earnings of corporations in determining alternative
minimum taxable income for purposes of the federal alternative minimum tax.

The form of legal opinion to be issued by Dorsey & Whitney LLP with respect to the Bonds is set
forth in Appendix K.

Arbitrage/Use of Proceeds

Failure to comply with certain provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the
“Code”), may cause interest on the Bonds to become subject to federal and Minnesota income
taxation retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds. These provisions include investment
restrictions, required periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, and requirements
concerning the timely and proper use of Bond proceeds and the facilities and activities financed
therewith and certain other matters. The documents authorizing the issuance of the Bonds include
provisions which, if complied with by the State, meet the requirements of the Code. Such documents
also include a covenant of the Commissioner to take all legally permissible actions necessary to
preserve the tax exemption of interest on the Bonds. However, no provision is made for redemption of
the Bonds or for an increase in the interest rate on the Bonds in the event that interest on the Bonds
becomes subject to federal or Minnesota income taxation.

Future Tax Legislation

The exemption of interest to be paid on the Bonds for federal or Minnesota income tax purposes
is not mandated or guaranteed by the United States or Minnesota Constitutions. Accordingly, federal
and Minnesota laws providing for tax-exemption of the interest may be subject to change. In the event
federal or Minnesota law is changed to provide that interest on the Bonds is subject to federal or
Minnesota income taxation, or if federal or Minnesota income tax rates are reduced, the market value
of the Bonds may be adversely affected.

Future Judicial Decisions

Minnesota, like many other states, generally taxes interest on obligations of governmental issuers
in other states. In 1995, Minnesota enacted a statement of intent, codified at Minn. Stat. § 289A.50,
subd. 10, that interest on obligations of Minnesota governmental units and Indian tribes be included
in the net income of individuals, estates and trusts for Minnesota income tax purposes, if a court
determines that Minnesota’s exemption of such interest and its taxation of interest on obligations of
governmental issuers in other states unlawfully discriminates against interstate commerce. This
provision applies to taxable years that begin during or after the calendar year in which any such court
decision becomes final, irrespective of the date upon which the obligations were issued. In January
2006, the Kentucky Court of Appeals held, in Davis v. Department of Revenue, that the state’s
exemption of interest on its own bonds and those of its political subdivisions and its taxation of interest
on the bonds of other states and their political subdivisions unlawfully discriminates against interstate
commerce. The Kentucky Supreme Court declined to review this decision. Kentucky tax officials
petitioned the United States Supreme Court to review the Davis decision, and on May 21, 2007, the
petition was granted. In 1994, the Ohio Court of Appeals had reached the opposite conclusion on this
legal issue, upholding a similar Ohio statute, in Shaper v. Tracy.
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If the United States Supreme Court were to affirm the Davis decision, it is likely that Minnesota’s
tax treatment of state and local government bonds would also be held to be unconstitutional. If
Minnesota’s treatment of state and local government bonds were held to unlawfully discriminate
against interstate commerce, the court would have to decide upon a remedy for the tax years at issue
in the case. Even if the remedy applied to those and other years preceding the decision were to
exempt other states’ bond interest rather than to tax Minnesota bond interest, application of the 1995
statute to subsequent years could cause interest on the Bonds to become taxable by Minnesota and
the market value of the Bonds to decline.

Premium Bonds (“Premium Bonds”)

The Bonds are being issued at a premium to the principal amount payable at maturity. Except in
the case of dealers, which are subject to special rules, Bondholders who acquire Bonds at a premium
must, from time to time, reduce their federal and Minnesota tax bases for the Bonds for purposes of
determining gain or loss on the sale or payment of such Bonds. Premium generally is amortized for
federal and Minnesota income and franchise tax purposes on the basis of a bondholder’'s constant
yield to maturity or to certain call dates with semiannual compounding. Bondholders who acquire
Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the Bonds, even if such Bonds are
sold for an amount equal to or less than their original cost. Amortized premium is not deductible for
federal or Minnesota income tax purposes. Bondholders who acquire Bonds at a premium should
consult their tax advisors concerning the calculation of bond premium and the timing and rate of
premium amortization, as well as the state and local tax consequences of owning and selling Bonds
acquired at a premium.

Collateral Tax Matters
The following tax provisions also may be applicable to the Bonds and interest thereon:

(1) Section 86 of the Code and corresponding provisions of Minnesota law require recipients
of certain Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits to take into account interest on the
Bonds in determining the taxability of such benefits;

(2) passive investment income, including interest on the Bonds, may be subject to taxation
under Section 1375 of the Code and corresponding provisions of Minnesota law for an S corporation
that has accumulated earnings and profits at the close of the taxable year if more than 25 percent
of its gross receipts is passive investment income;

(3) interest on the Bonds may be includable in the income of a foreign corporation for
purposes of the branch profits tax imposed by Section 884 of the Code and is includable in the
net investment income of foreign insurance companies for purposes of Section 842(b) of the
Code;

(4) in the case of an insurance company subject to the tax imposed by Section 831 of the
Code, the amount which otherwise would be taken into account as losses incurred under Section
832(b)(5) of the Code must be reduced by an amount equal to 15 percent of the interest on the
Bonds that is received or accrued during the taxable year;

(5) Section 265 of the Code denies a deduction for interest on indebtedness incurred or
continued to purchase or carry the Bonds, and Minnesota law similarly denies a deduction for
such interest expense in the case of individuals, estates and ftrusts; indebtedness may be
allocated to the Bonds for this purpose even though not directly traceable to the purchase of the
Bonds;

(6) federal and Minnesota laws also restrict the deductibility of other expenses allocable to
the Bonds;

(7) in the case of a financial institution, no deduction is allowed under the Code for that
portion of the holder’s interest expense which is allocable to interest on the Bonds within the
meaning of Section 265(b) of the Code; and
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(8) because of the Code’s basis reduction rules for amortizable bond premium, Bondholders
who acquire Bonds at a premium might recognize taxable gain upon sale of the Bonds, even if
the Bonds are sold for an amount equal to or less than their original cost.

The foregoing is not intended to be an exhaustive discussion of collateral tax consequences
arising from ownership, disposition, or receipt of interest on the Bonds. Prospective purchasers or
bondholders should consult their tax advisors with respect to collateral tax consequences and
applicable state and local tax rules in states other than Minnesota.

LEGAL OPINIONS

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds will be passed upon
by Dorsey & Whitney LLP, bond counsel, and the State Attorney General. Only Dorsey & Whitney LLP
will offer an opinion as to tax-exemption. The form of legal opinion to be issued by Dorsey & Whitney
LLP with respect to the Bonds is set forth in Appendix K.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

General financial information relating to the State is set forth in the Official Statement Supplement,
which comprises pages 15 through 62 and Appendices A through K, and is a part of this Official
Statement.

LITIGATION

There is not now pending or threatened any litigation seeking to restrain or enjoin the sale,
issuance, execution or delivery of the Bonds, or in any manner questioning or affecting the validity of
the Bonds or the proceedings or authority pursuant to which they are to be issued and sold.

While at any given time, including the present, there are numerous civil actions pending against
the State, which could, if determined adversely to the State, affect the State’s expenditures, and, in
some cases, its revenues, the State Attorney General is of the opinion that, except for the actions
described in Note 22 to the State Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2006, set
forth in Appendix A and additional actions, if any, discussed in the paragraphs below, no pending
actions are likely to have a material adverse effect in excess of $10 million on the State’s expenditures
or revenues.

The following is a discussion of developments regarding the actions described in the referenced
Note 22 that occurred and are subsequent to the date of the financial statements contained in
Appendix A, and a description of additional actions that have been initiated against the State since the
date of the financial statements contained in Appendix A and are material for purposes of this Official
Statement.

1. Tort Claims. The Tort Claims appropriation for each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 2007,
June 30, 2008, and June 30, 2009 is $761,000.

2. Council of Independent Tobacco Manufacturers of America, et al. v. The State of Minnesota,
et al. (Minnesota Supreme Court). The U.S. Supreme Court denied plaintiff's petition for a writ of
certiorari.

3. McLane Minnesota, Inc. v. Commissioner of Revenue (Minnesota Tax Court). The deadline
for submitting motions for summary judgment has been set for November 2007 and trial is scheduled
for February 2008.

4. Medical Assistance Supplemental Payments to Government Owned Facilities. The petition
for review of the disapproval decision was granted and oral argument was held on May 16, 2007. In
the disallowance litigation on December 16, 2006, CMS notified DHS that it was disallowing over $9.5
million in federal funding representing the federal share of supplemental payments made to county-owned
nursing homes in May 2006. DHS is administratively appealing this disallowance.

12



5. Merrill Lynch Fenner & Smith, Inc. v. Commissioner of Revenue (Minnesota Tax Court). The
trial of this matter has been scheduled for June 2008.

6. State of Minnesota and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Minnesota v. Philip Morris, et al. and
related case Liggett Group v. State. The U.S. Supreme Court denied plaintiff's petition for a writ of
certiorari.

7. Stewart Title Guaranty Company v. Commissioner of Revenue (Minnesota Tax Court). Cross
motions for summary judgment are scheduled for mid-July 2007. The trial of this matter has been
rescheduled for August 2007.

8. Disallowance of Federal Funding — Administrative Services Provided by Public School
Personnel. On May 11, 2007, CMS notified DHS that it was disallowing $9.7 million in federal
financial participation for school-based administrative costs in Minnesota from July 10, 20083 through
June 30, 2004. The disallowance states that DHS used an improper “Medicaid Eligibility Ratio” in
reporting costs. Specifically, CMS states that DHS’s ratio improperly included children and adults,
instead of children only. DHS believes that its reporting was consistent with a methodology that CMS
had approved in the past, and further believes that revising the methodology to eliminate the data for
services to adults would increase, rather than decrease, the federal portion. DHS is submitting a letter
of appeal to CMS.

9. Kracum, et al. v. McCormack, et al. (U.S. District Court). Plaintiffs’ claim on behalf of
themselves and other Minnesota residents that defendants, current and former employees of the
Minnesota Department of Public Safety (DPS), violated the federal Driver’'s Privacy Protection Act by
causing advertisements to be placed in envelopes containing official licensure correspondence.
Plaintiffs also allege that defendants violated 42 U.S.C. § 1983 by invading plaintiffs’ privacy by the
same conduct. The case was filed May 1, 2007, and a class has not been certified. The DPS estimates
that a decision favorable to plaintiffs would result in damages greater than $10 million.

10. Great Lakes Gas Transmission LP v. Commissioner of Revenue, Northern Border Pipeline
Co. v. Commissioner of Revenue, Viking Gas Transmission Co. v. Commissioner of Revenue (Ramsey
County District Court). Plaintiff pipeline companies transport natural gas under applicable FERC
tariffs and use a portion of the shipped gas to run their compressor engines. Pursuant to provisions
contained in Minn. Stat. § 297A.63, subd. 1, Minnesota imposes a use tax upon “the privilege of using,
storing, distributing, or consuming in Minnesota tangible personal property purchased for use,
storage, distribution, or consumption in this state.” Plaintiffs allege that that under FERC tariffs they do
not “purchase” the gas they use, and are challenging the State’s imposition of a use tax upon
compressor gas on the grounds that such taxation violates Minn. Stat. § 297A.63, subd. 1 along with
the Supremacy, Commerce and Equal Protection Clauses of the United States Constitution. The
Department of Revenue estimates the value of these issues at approximately $20 million annually. This
case has been tentatively set for trial in late fall 2007.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE

The Commissioner, in the order authorizing and ordering the issuance of the Bonds, has
covenanted and agreed on behalf of the State, for the benefit of the holders of the Bonds from time
to time, to comply with the provisions of Securities and Exchange Commission Regulation, 17 C.ER.
Section 240.15¢c2-12, paragraph (b)(5); and, for this purpose, to provide to nationally recognized
securities repositories and any Minnesota state information depository, annual financial information of
the type included in this Official Statement, including audited financial statements, and notice of the
occurrence of events which materially affect the terms, payment, security, rating or tax status of the
Bonds. The State is the only “obligated person” in respect of the Bonds within the meaning of
paragraph (b)(5). A description of the Commissioner’s undertaking is set forth in Appendix |.

UNDERWRITING

The Commissioner acting on behalf of the State has sold the Bonds at public sale to Merrill Lynch
& Co. as Underwriters, for a price of $705,451,179.70, with the Bonds to bear interest at the rates set
forth on the cover page of this Official Statement.
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The Underwriters have advised the Commissioner that they will offer the Bonds to the public at the
initial public offering prices set forth on the cover page of this Official Statement, and that after the
Bonds are released for sale to the public, the offering prices and other selling terms may from time to
time be varied by the Underwriters.

RATINGS

The Bonds described herein have been rated “Aal1” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., “AAA” by
Standard and Poor’s Ratings Group, and “AAA” by Fitch Ratings. The ratings reflect only the views of
these services. For an explanation of the ratings as described by those services see Appendix J.
These bond ratings are subject to change or withdrawal by the rating agencies at any time. Therefore,
after the date hereof investors should not assume that such ratings are still in effect. A revision or
withdrawal of the ratings may have an adverse effect on the market price of the Bonds.

AUTHORIZATION OF OFFICIAL STATEMENT

The State has prepared and delivered this Official Statement to the Underwriters of the Bonds and
has authorized the Underwriters to use it in connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds to

investors.
Tom J. Hanson

Commissioner of Finance
State of Minnesota
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The Official Statement Supplement

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements for the State for the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2006 are included
herein as Appendix A. These financial statements provide financial information for the State’s general
fund, as defined by generally accepted accounting principles, as set forth in the audited financial
statements included in Appendix A and other major funds; for all other funds, such information is
combined into non-major governmental and non-major enterprise fund, of which includes the Debt
Service Fund. These financial statements have been examined by the Legislative Auditor, independent
auditor for the State to the extent indicated in his report included in Appendix A. The Legislative
Auditor’s report and the financial statements, including the Notes, should be read in their entirety. Such
financial statements have been included in the Appendix in reliance upon the report of the Legislative
Auditor.

Past and Future Financial Reports

The State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports, including information by individual fund for
Fiscal Year 2006 and prior years, are available at www.finance.state.mn.us.

Financial statements for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2007 will be available by December 31,
2007. Revenues and expenditures on a budgetary basis for the twelve-month period ending June 30,
2007 and comparative data for the same period ending June 30, 2006 are summarized on pages 20
and 21.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Budgeting Process

The State’s constitutionally prescribed fiscal period is a biennium, and the State adopts budgets
on a biennial basis. Each biennium ends on June 30 of an odd-numbered year and includes two fiscal
years, each beginning on July 1 and ending on June 30. The biennium which began on July 1, 2003,
and which ended on June 30, 2005, is referred to herein as the “FY 2004-2005 Biennium.” The
biennium which began on July 1, 2005 and which ended on June 30, 2007, is referred to herein as the
“Previous Biennium.” The biennium which began on July 1, 2007 and which will end on June 30, 2009,
is referred to herein as the “Current Biennium.” The biennium which will begin July 1, 2009 and will
end on June 30, 2011 is referred to herein as the “Next Biennium.”

Major operating budget appropriations for each biennium are enacted during the final legislative
session of the immediately preceding biennium (in odd-numbered calendar years). Appropriations for
the Current Biennium were enacted by the 2007 Legislature ending in May 2007. Supplemental
appropriations and changes in revenue measures are usually adopted during legislative sessions in
even-numbered calendar years.

Preliminary planning for the Current Biennium budget began in February 2005 when the
Department of Finance began forecasting the Current Biennium revenues that would be available or
generated and expenditures that would be incurred if the Governor’'s then proposed Previous
Biennium revenues and expenditures were as forecasted and associated laws were to continue
unchanged into the Current Biennium. Throughout the budget process, and at the end of the 2005 and
2006 legislative sessions, the Department of Finance continued to project the ongoing effects (called
“planning estimates”) of the Previous Biennium budget on Current Biennium revenues and spending.
Planning estimates from the end of the 2006 legislative session became the basis for the Governor’s
Current Biennium budget proposals as described below.

The Current Biennium budget process officially began when the Governor issued budgetary
policies and objectives in July 2006. On the basis of these instructions, agencies submitted
expenditure plans for the Current Biennium to the Department of Finance in October 2006. In
November 2006, the Department of Finance updated its forecast of revenues and expenditures, and
it was on the basis of this forecast that final budget recommendations were prepared by the Governor
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for submission to the Legislature in January 2007. In February 2007, the Department of Finance
prepared a revised forecast of revenues and expenditures, and on the basis of this forecast, the
Governor provided supplemental budget recommendations to the Legislature in March 2007. Legislative
hearings were conducted, after which the Legislature enacted appropriation and tax bills having the
effect of either adopting or modifying the Governor’s proposals. The Governor signed into law most of
the bills passed by the Legislature, and also exercised his authority to veto certain items of
appropriation. The financial summary presented under the heading “BUDGET — CURRENT BIENNIUM”
portrays the effects of the appropriation and tax bills that were enacted by the Legislature and
approved by the Governor. The Department of Finance has also developed planning estimates for the
Next Biennium, based upon the Current Biennium revenue and expenditure forecasts and existing
laws.

The budget process just outlined, beginning with the development of planning estimates in
February 2006, and finishing with gubernatorial approvals and vetoes, describes the process that is
generally followed for each biennium.

During each biennium, there are four new Revenue and Expenditure Forecasts. Based upon the
results of these forecasts, the Governor may recommend tax law and expenditure changes for the
biennium for which the changes are recommended to the Legislature. In addition, the Legislature may,
also based on these forecasts, approve tax law changes and budget changes for the biennium for
which the changes are approved.

Pages 17 to 49 show in summary form the results of the Revenue and Expenditure Forecasts, the
Governor's Recommendations to the Legislature and the legislative changes made for the Current
Biennium.

General Fund

The General Fund accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for
in another fund.

Revenues, expenditures, transfers and fund balance information in budgetary fund statements
may differ from those in the State’s GAAP based Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (“CAFR”)
(see Appendix A). The primary difference is the recognition of accruals, reimbursements, deferred
revenue, intrafund transactions and the budgetary basis of accounting for encumbrances. In the
modified accrual basis used in the CAFR, expenditures are recognized when goods or services are
received regardless of the year encumbered. In budgetary fund statements, encumbrances are
recognized as expenditures in the year encumbered. The budgetary fund statements do not represent
the State’s official financial report but rather are prepared as a supplement to the budget documents.

Cash Flow Account

The cash flow account (the “Cash Flow Account”) was established in the General Fund for the
purpose of providing sufficient cash balances to cover monthly revenue and expenditure imbalances.
The use of funds in the Cash Flow Account is governed by statute. The Legislature established the
Cash Flow Account at $350 million for the Current Biennium.

Budget Reserve Account

The budget reserve account (the “Budget Reserve Account”) was established in the General
Fund for the purpose of reserving funds to cushion the State from an economic downturn. The use of
funds from the Budget Reserve Account is governed by statute.

The Legislature established the Budget Reserve Account at $686 million for the Current Biennium.
Of this amount, a special contingent reserve of $33 million was designated for aids to counties to deal
with anticipated federal reductions affecting human services case management activities. Previously
enacted laws designating the allocation of future forecast positive balances to restore any monies
used from the Budget Reserve Account remain unchanged.
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Tax Relief Account

The tax relief account (the “Tax Relief Account”) was established in the General Fund and is
treated as a General Fund reserve. The use of the funds from the Tax Relief Account requires
legislative action.

The 2006 Legislature reduced the Tax Relief Account balance from $317 million to $110 million for
the Previous Biennium. Any year-end balance in odd-numbered fiscal years is deposited to the Tax
Relief Account.

The 2007 Legislature reduced the Tax Relief Account Balance from $110 million to zero.

Control Procedures

Dollar Control: Expenditures in excess of legislative appropriations are prohibited by law. In
order to prevent spending in excess of appropriations, the Department of Finance requires State
agencies to identify their appropriations and establish them in the State’s accounting system as the
limit on spending. The accounting system will reject transactions that exceed these limits. This control
procedure is designed to prevent agencies from spending from unauthorized sources of funds.

Allotment and Encumbrance Control: Before money can be disbursed pursuant to an appropriation,
it must first be allotted (administratively allocated and approved for expenditure). Prior to each Fiscal
Year, therefore, the Department of Finance allots the applicable State agency appropriations based on
legislatively-enacted budgets. An allotment is a subdivision of an appropriation into smaller, detailed
components used by agencies to budget expenditures by category of expenditure. The accounting
system prevents allotments from exceeding appropriations.

Once allotments have been established, but before spending obligations can be incurred, for
most purchases agencies must establish encumbrances against their allotments. Encumbrances are
the accounting control device agencies use for reserving portions of their allotments for expenditures
that will soon be incurred. The encumbrance process helps agencies keep track of their outstanding
obligations, and the accounting system prevents agencies from encumbering more funding than has
been allotted.

Executive Budget Officer Oversight: The Department of Finance assigns an Executive Budget
Officer to each State agency for the purposes of approving agency accounting structures, appropriations,
and allotments, and for monitoring overall agency revenues and expenditures.

Monthly Reports: The Department of Finance maintains a data warehouse which is used to
produce periodic and ad hoc reports on revenues and expenditures that agency staff and Executive
Budget Officers use to monitor agency spending and receipts.

REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE FORECASTING

General

The State’s biennial budget appropriation process relies on revenue and expenditure forecasting
as the basis for establishing aggregate revenue and expenditure levels. Revenue forecasting for the
State is conducted within the Department of Finance by the Economic Analysis Division. Expenditure
forecasts for the State are prepared by the Department of Finance based on current annual budgets
and on current cash expenditure estimates provided by State agencies responsible for significant
expenditure items.

In addition to the forecasts prepared for the Legislature before the commencement of each new
biennium, forecasts are updated periodically through the biennium. Based on each revenue and
expenditure reforecast, the Department of Finance prepares a new cash flow analysis for the
biennium.

Forecasting Risks

Risks are inherent in the revenue and expenditure forecasts. Assumptions about U.S. economic
activity and federal tax and expenditure policy underlie these forecasts. In the forecast it is assumed
that existing federal tax law will remain in place and that current federal budget authority and
mandates will remain in place. Reductions in federal spending programs may affect State spending.
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Finally, even if economic and federal tax assumptions are correct, revenue forecasts are still subject
to other variables and some normal level of statistical deviations.

Current Forecast Methods and Assumptions

The baseline economic forecast which the State Economist uses in preparing the State revenue
and expenditure forecast is provided by Global Insight, Inc. (“Gll”) of Lexington, Massachusetts. Gll
furnishes a monthly forecast of economic growth and individual incomes across all segments of the
national economy.

The Gll national economic forecasts are reviewed by Minnesota’s Council of Economic Advisors
(the “Council”), a group of macro-economists from the private sector and academia. The Council
provides an independent check on the Gll forecast. If the Council determines that the Gl forecast is
significantly more optimistic than the current consensus, the Commissioner of Finance may base the
State forecast on a less optimistic scenario of national economic growth.

Forecasts of individual income tax receipts are based on Gll forecasts of national production,
employment, and corresponding wage and salary earnings, by industrial sector. The Gl forecasts are
then entered into an economic model of Minnesota maintained by the Minnesota Department of
Finance. State forecasts of employment by major industry sector as well as wage and aggregate
earnings are obtained from this model. Aggregate annual earnings are used, in turn, to forecast
calendar year tax liabilities through a micro-simulation of the State’s individual income tax. Calendar
year liabilities are converted into fiscal year income tax revenues, with regard given to the timing of
withholding tax receipts, quarterly estimated payments, refunds and final payments.

Capital gains realizations have become an increasingly volatile and important share of Minnesota’s
income tax base. Net capital gains realization by Minnesota resident taxpayers are estimated to have
totaled $6.5 billion in tax year 2006, 5.2 percent of residents’ adjusted gross income. In tax year 2007
net capital gains realizations by Minnesota residents were estimated to total $8.7 billion or 6.5 percent
of adjusted gross income.

Minnesota capital gains are forecast using an econometric model which relates the increase in
taxable capital gains to the underlying growth in household wealth and to changes in inflation and in
the real growth rate of the economy. Federal tax variables are also included. The model is designed
to allow capital gains realizations to move gradually toward an equilibrium rate of realizations instead
of adjusting instantaneously to a shock in model variables. Capital gains are now forecast to grow at
an average compound annual rate of 6.9 percent.

Corporate income tax receipts are forecast using Gll's forecast of major variables affecting
pre-tax corporate profits. The volatility of corporate profits and the various loss carry-forward and
carry-back provisions make this the most difficult revenue source to forecast.

Sales tax receipts are estimated on the basis of a forecast of the sales tax base. The historical
base is constructed largely on the basis of national data for items that would be subject to tax if sold
in Minnesota. Those data are then allocated to Minnesota on the basis of Minnesota’s share of national
income and employment to arrive at a Minnesota specific base. By means of a regression equation,
the base is calibrated to historical collections. Using national forecasts of sales of taxable items and
allocating them to Minnesota on the basis of forecasts on Minnesota’s share of national income and
employment the base is extended into the future. Using information from the aforementioned
regression equation the forecast collections are derived from the forecast of the base.

Numerous other revenue sources are forecast, some by the Department of Finance and others by
the agencies responsible for their collection. In general, none is of significant size, and historically,
variances among them have frequently been offsetting.

The February 2007 baseline forecast from Gll, the scenario which Gll considered to be the most
likely at the time it was made, was the baseline for the February 2007 revenue and expenditure
forecast. The forecast growth rates for real and nominal Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) are shown
below. Gll estimated potential GDP growth at 2.8 percent over the 2005 to 2009 period. Forecast
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growth rates for 2005 through 2009 are slightly above the potential rate of growth. Inflation, as
measured by the implicit price deflator for GDP, is expected to be moderate.

Gll FEBRUARY 2007
GROSS DOMESTIC PRODUCT (GDP)
BASELINE FORECAST
(Chained Rates of Growth)

Calendar Calendar Calendar Calendar Calendar

Year 2005 Year 2006 Year 2007 Year 2008 Year 2009

Actual % Actual % Forecast % Forecast % Forecast %
REAL GDP Growth Rate ........... 3.2 3.4 2.7 3.0 3.2
GDP DEFLATOR (Inflation) ......... 3.0 2.9 2.1 2.0 2.0
NOMINAL GDP Growth Rate ....... 6.3 6.4 4.9 50 52

A report is published with each forecast and is available at www.finance.state.mn.us. The
November 2007 revenue and expenditure forecast is expected to be released in late November 2007.
The November 2007 Gll Baseline Forecast will in all likelihood be used as the baseline for this revenue
and expenditure forecast.

Economic Update

The July 2007 Economic Update shows General Fund tax receipts for Fiscal Year 2007 are now
estimated to be $158.7 million above the February 2007 forecast.

Individual income tax receipts showed the largest variance with $146.6 million above the
February 2007 forecast. Motor vehicle sales tax receipts were $5.3 million above forecast. Gross sales
tax receipts were also above forecast, however larger than expected sales tax refunds left net sales
tax receipts $10.9 million lower than forecast. Corporate income tax receipts were estimated to be
$3.5 million below forecast. All other tax receipts were $21.2 million above forecast.

HISTORIC REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

The following two tables set forth the State’s General Fund revenues and expenditures for the
Fiscal Years ending June 30, 2004 through 2006, and for the additional time periods shown. For the
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2004 through 2006 the revenues and expenditures shown include all
revenues and expenditures for that fiscal year, including revenue received and expenditures made
after June 30 of such fiscal year which are properly allocable to such Fiscal Years. For the
twelve-month periods ending June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007, such revenues and expenditures
include only cash receipts and disbursements allocable to Fiscal Years 2006 and 2007, respectively.
The schedules of revenues and expenditures are presented for comparison purposes only and are not
intended to reflect any increases or decreases in fund balance. Beginning balances or deficits are not
included. The actual expenditures set forth in the second table are presented by object of expenditure,
the State’s historical method of presentation, whereas forecasts of expenditures are presented by
function, consistent with generally accepted accounting principles for reporting purposes.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES
(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)
UNAUDITED

July 1,2005 July 1,2006
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 (1) through through
June 30 June 30
2004 2005 2006 2006 (1) 2007 (1)
UNRESTRICTED REVENUES:
Income Tax - Individual..........cccververcenneeevnneennnne $ 6,799,651 $ 7,436,665 $ 8,066,172 $ 7,815,787 $ 8,256,769
Income Tax - Corporation...........ccceeeevecneeennnnnne 764,351 779,422 1,288,941 1,197,332 1,350,493
SAIES TAX evvveeeirieriiriesiete et 4,160,206 4,520,823 4,689,500 4,665,467 4,762,618
Statewide Property Tax ... 599,622 610,809 631,279 601,744 547,470
Inheritance and Gift Tax 91,326 80,372 210,291 215,612 110,525
Liquor, Wine and Malt Beverage TaX................. 66,667 75,025 67,938 72,020 71,829
Cigarette and Tobacco TaX .......ccccvvveeeevneennennnns 159,558 169,067 222,507 233,195 217,365
MiINING TaXES.....cueeuireeireeeerienieieeeieieee e 2,040 5,660 6,630 6,783 8,106
Gross Earnings TaxesS......cccoceueerirceenineennenneenns 274,219 287,416 259,299 273,982 266,860
Motor Vehicle EXCISE TaX......cccoureerveevirererenaennnns 315,836 300,065 251,605 275,154 270,360
Income ReciproCity TaX.......cccevvreeereeneenneennennnnnn 47,623 54,289 53,768 56,802 63,481
Department Earnings.. 482,738 516,297 535,909 559,192 521,466
Investment INCOME.........ccvvveeeieciiieeee e 17,022 21,936 55,867 48,563 95,251
Tobacco Settlement.............coooeiiiiiiiinn.. 174,266 175,488 180,790 180,790 183,912
All Other REVENUES.........cccovveieieiniiniin e 759,894 731,767 663,689 707,687 613,592
TOTAL UNRESTRICTED REVENUES........... $ 14,715,019 $ 15,765,101 $ 17,184,185 $ 16,910,110 $ 17,340,099
RESTRICTED REVENUES........cccoooiiiiiiieecei e 74,899 86,146 77,294 77,294 70,398
LESS REVENUE REFUNDS:
Income Tax - Individual ........cccccvcevveevvnneriinneennn. $ 962,861 $ 902,243 $ 997,460 $ 997,460 $ 1,057,919
Income Tax - Corporation.........c.cceveveeevvnerninnnnn, 115,513 68,288 99,026 99,026 153,330
SAIES TAX.eueveeeirueetiriestesie ettt e eans 202,211 240,654 217,508 217,508 263,927
Al OhEr ... 34,193 36,323 44,261 44,261 39,949
TOTAL REFUNDS......c.ooiiieieieieeee e $ 1,314,778 $ 1,247,508 $ 1,358,255 $ 1,358,255 $ 1,515,125
NET REVENUES........ccooiiiiiiien e $ 13,475,140 $ 14,603,739 $ 15,903,224 $ 15,629,149 $ 15,895,372

(1) For Fiscal Years 2004, 2005 and 2006, the schedule of revenues includes all revenues for the fiscal year, including revenue accruals at June 30.

For the twelve-month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2007, only current receipts have been included.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES AND
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS

(THOUSANDS OF DOLLARS)
(UNAUDITED)
July 1,2005 July 1,2006
Fiscal Year Ended June 30 (1) through through
June 30 June 30
2004 (2) 2005 (2) 2006 2006 (1) 2007 (1)
EXPENDITURES:
Personal Services.......cccccoeeevviiiiiiiciiiiieieennn. $ 1,070,557 $ 1,069,652 $ 1,110,675 $ 1,009,387 $ 1,081,169
Purchased Services 299,999 347,287 345,879 313,131 402,310
Materials and Supplies...........covrieninienninnenns. 49,750 59,906 56,270 50,499 57,153
Capital Outlay (3) 6,758 6,388 192,094 19,923 37,587
Grants and Subsidies:
INAIVIAUAS. ... 3,429,391 3,759,643 4,018,406 3,739,375 4,096,462
Municipalities and Towns. 735,927 706,557 713,640 646,955 695,757
COUNLIES....eiiiieiiiies et e 803,164 687,776 769,145 702,775 731,002
School DiStriCtS (4)...ccveeeeieereeieeieee e 5,892,313 6,038,169 6,545,175 6,845,136 6,434,899
Private Organizations.... 169,717 168,858 176,014 160,079 160,140
University of Minnesota 487,731 502,142 540,414 495,559 519,216
OFNEr .. 147,685 142,698 182,897 168,871 185,761
TOTAL EXPENDITURES........cccccomviiiieieeceiieeeeeee. $ 13,092,992 $ 13,489,076 $ 14,650,609 $ 14,151,690 $ 14,401,456
NET OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (5).... (221,992) 693,739 506,773 499,834 591,403
TOTAL EXPENDITURES and NET
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............... $ 12,871,000 $ 14,182,815 $ 15,157,382 $ 14,651,524 $ 14,992,859

M

For Fiscal Years 2004, 2005 and 2006, the schedule of expenditures includes all expenditures for the Fiscal Year, and encumbrances
outstanding as of June 30. For the twelve-month periods ended June 30, 2006 and 2007 only current year expenditures have been
included.

For Fiscal Years 2005 and 2004, the expenditures were restated to remove the impact of the change in the payments to School Districts
on the allocation of expenditures.

Capital Outlay increased in Fiscal Year 2006 from 2005 due to the capital leases on the Human Services and Agriculture/Health buildings.
Grants to School Districts increased in Fiscal Year 2006 from 2005 due to a 4% increase in the per pupil general education formula and
one-time reversal of a prior year reduction in aid payments.

Transfer-In exceeded Transfer-Out in Fiscal Year 2004 due to a one-time transfer to the General fund to eliminate the Medical Education
and Research and Tobacoco Use Prevention Funds.
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BUDGET — PREVIOUS BIENNIUM

November 2004 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium in November 2004. The November 2004 Previous Biennium forecast of
resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
NOVEMBER 2004 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 .................... $ 1,003

Non-dedicated Revenues .............. ... . ... ... ... ..... 29,064

Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other .............. 414

Total ReSOUrces ......... . $30,481

Expenditures ....... .. .. .. ... ... 30,177
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 303
Cash Flow Account . ... .. ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ... 350
Budget Reserve Account .................. ... ... ... ..., 653
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 .......... $ (700)

This was the first actual forecast of revenues and expenditures for the Previous Biennium.
Forecast revenues were expected to total $30.481 billion, $625 million more than May 2004 After
Executive Actions estimates and $1.439 billion, or 5.0 percent, greater than the FY 2004-2005
Biennium. Tax revenues were projected to be $2.031 billion greater than in the FY 2004-2005
Biennium, and other resources were projected to be $1.226 billion lower than in the FY 2004-2005
Biennium.

The cash flow account remained at $350 million and the budget reserve account at $653 million
for the Previous Biennium. The projected deficit for the Previous Biennium was $700 million.

January 2005 Budget Recommendation

In January 2005 the Governor submitted a proposed budget to the Legislature for the Previous
Biennium that was based on the November 2004 forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures.
The January Governor’'s recommendation is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
January 2005 GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATION

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 .................... $ 1,003
Non-dedicated Revenues ............ ... ... ... ... ... .. 29,074
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other .............. 601
Total Resources ........... .. . $30,678
Expenditures ........ ... ... ... ... .. 29,667
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 1,011
Cash Flow Account . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... ... ..... 350
Budget Reserve Account .................. ... ... ... . ..., 653
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 .......... $ 8
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Revenues Proposed in the Governor's Budget:

The January 2005 Governor’s recommendation reflected a net increase in General Fund revenues
of $198 million from the November 2004 forecast for the Previous Biennium. Current resources (total
resources less the balance from the Previous Biennium) in the January Governor's recommendation
would have increased by $996 million (3.5 percent) over the FY 2004-2005 Biennium.

Expenditures Proposed in the Governor's Budget:

The January 2005 Governor’s recommendation for the Previous Biennium decreased General
Fund spending by $510 million from the November 2004 projected forecast of current law. The total
recommended spending of $29.667 billion equaled a $1.622 billion (5.8 percent) increase over the
November 2004 forecast for the FY 2004-2005 Biennium.

Reserves:

Current law provided for $1.003 billion in reserves including $653 million in the Budget Reserve
Account and $350 million in a separate cash flow account. The Governor recommended maintaining
reserves at this level. Total proposed reserves equaled approximately 3.4 percent of biennial
expenditures. The Governor also recommended maintaining statutory provisions that mandate that
any future forecast balance first be used to reduce school aid payment changes enacted in 2003 as
part of budget balancing at that time.
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February 2005 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium at the end of February 2005. The February 2005 Previous Biennium forecast
of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
FEBRUARY 2005 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 .................... $ 1,003
Non-dedicated Revenues ............... ... ... .. ........ 29,297
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other .............. 414
Total Resources ............. . . .. . $30,714
Expenditures ........ ... ... ... 30,177
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 537
Cash Flow Account . ......... .. .. .. .. ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ... 350
Budget Reserve Account .................. ... ... .. .. ..., 653
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 .......... ($ 4606)

Forecast revenues were expected to total $30.714 billion for the Previous Biennium, $234 million
more than forecast in November. Income tax collections were forecast to be $71 million higher, sales
tax collections $115 higher, and corporate tax receipts $89 higher than forecast in November. Motor
vehicle sales taxes were forecast to be $19 million lower and all other resources $22 million lower than
forecast in November.

The cash flow account remained at $350 million, the budget reserve account at $653 million, and
the projected deficit was $466 million.
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March 2005 Governor’s Budget Recommendation Revisions

Updated February 2005 revenue and expenditure estimates resulted in only minimal change in
the current law forecast. The revenue and expenditure changes projected in the February forecast
produced a $225 million positive balance in the Governor's proposed budget. The Governor
submitted supplemental budget recommendations to his proposed budget to the Legislature in March
2005. The Previous Biennium resources, expenditures, and fund balances based on the final
Governor’s Budget Recommendation is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
March 2005 GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATION

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 .................... $ 1,003
Non-dedicated Revenues ............... ... ... .. ........ 29,635
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other .............. 264
Total Resources ............. . ... . $30,902
Expenditures ...... ... ... . ... 29,814
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 1,088
Cash Flow Account . ......... ... ... . ... .. .. ... .. ... .. ... 350
Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... .. ... . ..., 653
Federal Transition Reserve .......... ... ... ... ... ........ 75
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 .......... $ 10

Additional Expenditure Changes Proposed by the Governor:

The March 2005 Governor’'s recommendation made a limited number of changes to proposed
spending based on the higher revenue forecast. The March 2005 final Governor’s recommendations
included additional spending and budget adjustments totaling $225 million.

Budget Reserves:

The April budget revision added $75 million to create a Federal Transition Reserve. The purpose
of this reserve was to provide supplemental funding in anticipation of uncertainties of proposed
federal budget reductions. The recommendation provided for this money to be appropriated to
mitigate the impact of federal aid reductions or to be cancelled to the general fund budget reserve by
the end of the first year of the biennium.

2005 Regular and First Special Legislative Sessions

The 2005 legislative session ended on the constitutional deadline of May 23, 2005. The
Legislature was unable to agree on the tax and appropriation bills by that date. The Governor
immediately convened a special legislative session that took place from May 24 to July 13, 2005. By
June 30, 2005 only three of seven omnibus appropriation bills were enacted into law: higher
education, environment and natural resources, and state government.

On July 1, 2005 the State began a partial government shutdown for all programs for which
appropriations had not been enacted. However, major portions of State programs were required to
operate under district court order that mandated continuation of critical State services. The partial
shutdown of services affected approximately 9,000 of 54,000 state employees. The partial government
shutdown lasted until July 9, 2005 when action was taken by the Legislature to provide interim funding
until remaining tax and appropriation bills were enacted.

Final agreement was reached and remaining appropriation bills were passed by the Legislature
on July 13, 2005.
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The end of the 2005 legislative sessions estimates of revenues, expenditures and fund balances

is detailed below.

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
END OF 2005 LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS
($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 ....................
Non-dedicated Revenues ............ ... .. ... .. ........
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other ..............

Total Resources . ......... ..
Expenditures ....... ... ... ... ... ...

Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ...........
Cash Flow Account ............. ... .. ... ................
Budget Reserve Account ............ ... ... ... ... ... ...,
Tax Relief Acount. . ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... . ... ... ... ...

Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ..........

$31,589
30,574

The following table compares estimates of the FY 2004-2005 Biennium and Previous Biennium
revenues and shows the rate of revenue growth/decline. Estimates as of End of 2006 Legislative

Session.
FY 2004-2005 Previous Percent
Biennium Biennium Change
($ in billions)
Receipts:
Individual Income Tax ............ ... .. ... .......... $11.885 $13.516 13.7%
Sales Tax ... 8.327 8.906 7.0%
Corporate Income Tax ..., 1.457 1.505 3.3%
Motor Vehicle Sales Tax ............................. 537 .531 -1.1%
Statewide Property Tax ........ ... ... .. L. 1.217 1.291 6.1%
All Other Taxes .......... .. .. . . 2.346 2.443 41%
Non-Tax Revenues ................................. 1.478 1.491 _0.9%
Subtotal ... ... 27.247 29.683 8.9%
Transfers, Dedicated, Other Resources ............... 1.582 903 -42.9%
Total Revenues ............. ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ..... $28.829 $30.586 _6.1%

The following table compares estimates of FY 2004-2005 Biennium and Previous Biennium
spending and shows the rate of biennial expenditure growth for some of the largest portions of the

State budget. Estimates as of End of 2006 Legislative Session.

FY 2004-2005 Previous Percent
Biennium Biennium Change
($ in billions)

Expenditures:
K-12 Education ........ ... ... .. .. . 12.045 12.578 4.4%
Property Tax Aids & Credits ......................... 2.807 2.984 6.3%
Higher Education ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... .. . ..... 2.542 2.761 8.6%
Health & Human Services . ......... ... .. ... ...... 7.262 8.264 13.8%
Public Safety ......... ... .. ... .. ... 1.450 1.685 16.2%
Debt Service ... . . 0.589 0.781 32.6%
All Other Spending ................................. 1.500 1.521 _1.4%
Total Expenditures .................................. 28.195 30.574 _8.4%

26




Reserves, Future Forecast Contingencies:

The Legislature also followed the Governor’'s recommendation in maintaining the Budget Reserve
Account and Cash Flow Account at proposed levels and in maintaining current law provisions
governing future forecast balances. The General Fund Budget Reserve Account is $653 million. This
total represents 2.1 percent of enacted spending for the Previous Biennium. The Cash Flow Account
remains at the $350 million.

Previously enacted laws designating the allocation of future forecast positive balances remain
unchanged. Any unrestricted General Fund balances resulting from future forecasts are to be used to
further reduce school payment shifts enacted in 2003. The estimated remaining cost of completely
reversing these payment shifts was $792 million.

November 2005 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium in November 2005. The November 2005 Previous Biennium forecast of
resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
NOVEMBER 2005 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 ....................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues ............ ... ... ... .. ... 30,344
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other............... 936
Total ReSoUrces ............. ., $32,673
Expenditures......... ... ... ... ... 31,353
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ $ 1,320
Cash Flow Account. . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. ... ... .. .. ... 350
Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... . ... .. ..., 653
Tax Relief Account . ...... ... ... ... .. . ... . ... . . ... . ... ... 317
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007........... $ 0

The table reflects forecast changes in revenues and expenditures for the Previous Biennium after
the budget was adopted, as well as the automatic distribution of the forecast balance. See also
Litigation section on page 13 and Note 22 to the financial statements shown in Appendix A, both of
this Official Statement.
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February 2006 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium at the end of February 2006. The February 2006 Previous Biennium forecast
of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
FEBRUARY 2006 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005..................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues ............... ... ... .. ........ 30,451
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other............... 953
Total Resources ............ .. . . $32,797
Expenditures. ... ... ... ... ... 31,389
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ $ 1,408
Cash Flow Account. ........ ... .. ... . . .. . .. ... ... ... 350
Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. 653
Tax Relief Account . ...... ... ... ... .. . ... .. ... . ... . ... ... 317

&~
[0¢]
[e¢]

Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ...........

March 2006 Governor’s Supplemental Budget Recommendations

In March 2006 the Governor submitted a proposed supplemental budget to the Legislature for the
Previous Biennium, which was based on the February 2006 forecast of General Fund revenues and
expenditures that indicated available General Fund balances totaling $405 million by June 30, 2007.
The $405 million consists of an Unrestricted General Fund balance of $88 million and the Tax Relief
Account balance of $317 million.

The March 2006 Governor’s recommendation is detailed below:
PREVIOUS BIENNIUM

GENERAL FUND
MARCH 2006 GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATION

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005..................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues .......... .. ... .. ... .. ........ 30,410
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other............... 954
Total Resources . ... 32,757
Expenditures ... ... ... ... . ... . ... 31,595
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ 1,162
Cash Flow Account. . ... .. ... ... .. .. ... .. .. .. ... ... .. ... 350
Budget Reserve Account ............. ... ... ... ... ... ..., 812
Tax Relief Account . ...... ... ... ... ... . .. . . ... .. .. ... ..., 0
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 0

The Governor proposed General Fund budget changes that totaled $249 million, about 0.1
percent of total projected spending for the Previous Biennium.

28



2006 Legislative Session

During the 2006 legislative session, the Legislature enacted revenue measures and appropriations
utilizing projected balances in the General Fund budget for the Previous Biennium.

The end of 2006 legislative session estimates of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is
detailed below.

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
END OF 2006 LEGISLATIVE SESSION

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 . .................... $ 1,393

Non-dedicated Revenues .............. . ... ... ... ... ..... 30,374

Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other............... 958

Total Resources .......... ... $32,725
Expenditures........ ... ... ... ... 31,612
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 1,113
Cash Flow Account. . ... ... ... ... .. .. ... .. .. ... ... ..... 350
Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... ... ... ..., 653
Tax Relief Account . ...... ... ... ... .. . ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 110
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 0

November 2006 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium at the end of November 2006. The November 2006 Previous Biennium
forecast of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005....................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues .............. ... . ... ... ... 31,305
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 940

Total Revenues and Transfers. .............. ... ... ......... 32,245
Total ReSOUICES . ... i $33,638
Expenditures. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 31,487
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ $ 2,151
Cash Flow Account. ........ ... ... . ... . .. ... . ... .. ... ... 350

Budget Reserve Account . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 653

Tax Relief Account . .......... ... ... .. .. . . . .. ... 110

Total for Statutory Mandated Accounts . ............. ... ... 1,113
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 1,038
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PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST
CHANGES FROM END OF 2006 LEGISLATIVE SESSION

($ in Millions)
End of Nov 2006
Session Forecast Change
Balance Forward From Prior Year ................. $1393 $ 1,393 § 0
Current Resources:
Income tax receipts ......... ... 13,553 14,056 503
Corporate tax receipts ............... L. 1,839 2,169 330
Sales tax receipts ......... ... ... . 9,092 9,000 (92)
Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ................ 504 487 (17)
Statewide property tax receipts ................. 1,294 1,295 1
Othertaxes .......... ... .. 2,521 2,598 77
Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers ....... 2,529 2,640 111
Total Current Resources ......................... 31,332 32,245 913
Total Resources ... 32,725 33,638 913
Expenditures:
K-12 Education ............ ... .. ... .. ... .. ..., 13,388 13,369 (19)
Higher Education ............... ... ........... 2,766 2,763 (3)
Property Tax Aids & Credits .................... 3,034 3,025 (9)
Health & Human Services ...................... 8,316 8,256 (60)
Public Safety ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 1,710 1,710 0
All Other spending .......... ... ... i 2,398 2,364 (34)
Total Spending .......... 31,612 31,487 (125)
Cash Flow Account .............................. 350 350 0
Budget Reserve ... ... . ... . ... L. 653 653 0
Tax Relief Account ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ........ 110 110 0
Projected balance at June 30, 2007 ............... $ 0O $ 1,038 $1,038

Forecast revenues for the Previous Biennium were more than forecast at the end of the 2006
legislative session. Final income tax liability for tax year 2005 was increased reflecting higher final
payments and lower than projected refunds. Corporate tax receipts were forecast to be higher due to
corporate profits in 2005 being much higher than projected. Sales tax collections were lower, motor
vehicle sales tax collections were lower, and the statewide property tax receipts were higher. The
largest changes in all other resources came from higher forecasts of receipts from mortgage taxes,
the estate tax, investment income and fees.

Projected spending for the Previous Biennium was lower than projected at the end of the 2006
legislative session. K-12 education spending decreased with the savings being due to lower cost
estimates and participation in selective categorical grant programs. A reduction in health and human
services estimates was driven largely by lower caseloads and slightly lower costs in continuing care
grant programs, long-term care and chemical dependency activities. All other changes were lower.
Included in all other was a savings in debt service payments reflecting savings from recent bond
sales. Also included was a reduction in tax penalty and interest costs.

January 2007 Governor’s Budget Recommendations

The Governor’'s supplemental budget recommendations did not have a material impact on the
financial outlook for the Previous Biennium. Recommendations included conformity with 2006 federal
tax changes that were expected to reduce forecast tax revenues by $24 million. Spending recommen-
dations included $10 million in proposed deficiency appropriations for state agencies, as well as
proposed law changes, expected to cost $7.5 million, that would permit state agencies to carry
forward unspent operating appropriations at the end of the biennium for future technology investments.

As required by law, the Governor presented, but did not recommend, a plan to rebate the
projected FY 2007 year-end balance to taxpayers.
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February 2007 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Previous Biennium at the end of February 2007. The February 2007 Previous Biennium forecast
of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST
($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005....................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues . .............. .. .. .. ... .. ........ 31,272
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 939

Total Revenues and Transfers. .............. .. ... .. ......... 32,211
Total Resources . .......... ... $33,604
Expenditures. ... ... ... . . ... ... 31,478
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ $ 2,126
Cash Flow Account. ............ ... ... ... ... ... ......... 350

Budget Reserve Account . ........ ... ... ... ... .. ... .. ..., 653

Tax Relief Account .. ... .. ... ... .. ... .. ... .. .. ... ........ 110

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts ............. ... ... 1,113
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 1,013
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PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST
CHANGES FROM NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST

($ in Millions)
Nov 2006 Feb 2007
Forecast Forecast Change

Balance Forward From Prior Year ................. $1393 $1393 $ O
Current Resources:

Income tax receipts ......... ... 14,056 13,957 (99)

Corporate tax receipts ......................... 2,169 2,239 70

Sales tax receipts ........ ... 9,000 8,982 (18)

Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ................ 487 491 4

Statewide property tax receipts ................. 1,295 1,295 0

Othertaxes ......... ... i, 2,598 2,601 3

Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers ....... 2,640 2,646 6
Total Current Resources ......................... 32,245 32,211 (34)
Total REsSOUrces ... 33,638 33,604 (34)
Expenditures:

K-12 Education ....... ... ... ... i 13,369 13,362 (7)

Higher Education ....... ... .. ... ... ... .. ... ... 2,763 2,763 0

Property Tax Aids & Credits .................... 3,025 3,028 3

Health & Human Services ...................... 8,256 8,242 (14)

Public Safety ........ ... . ... . . 1,710 1,710 0

All Other spending .......... .. ... . ... ...... 2,364 2,373 9
Total Spending . ... 31,487 31,478 (9)
Cash Flow Account .............................. 350 350 0
Budget Reserve ... ... ... ... i 653 653 0
Tax Relief Account ........... ... ... .. ... . ..... 110 110 0
Projected balance at June 30, 2007 ............... $ 1,038 $ 1,013  $(25)

Forecast revenues for the Previous Biennium were forecast to be less than forecast in November.
Included in this current law forecast was a decrease due to legislation that had passed in the 2007
legislative session that conformed Minnesota tax law to changes in the federal code. Declines of less
than one percent in the individual income tax and sales tax were almost completely offset by small
increases in the corporate income tax, the motor vehicle sales tax, and other revenues.

Projected current law spending for the Previous Biennium was mainly unchanged from the
November forecast. Total spending was projected to be less than projected in November. Projected
costs for K-12 education were reduced, and the forecast for human services spending was below
November’s estimates. The changes came from a small decline in pupil units and lower than expected
medical spending for the elderly and disabled. Those savings were partially offset by a net increase
in all other spending areas.

The $1.013 billion forecast balance was 3.15 percent of projected general fund revenues for the
Previous Biennium. Current law requires that forecast balances exceeding one-half of one percent be
designated as available for rebate to taxpayers. A rebate, however, is not automatic and requires
approval by the 2007 legislature.

March 2007 Governor’s Supplemental Budget Recommendations

The Governor’'s supplemental budget recommendations did not have a material impact on the
proposed General Fund budget for the Previous Biennium.

2007 Legislative Session

During the 2007 legislative session, the Legislature enacted revenue measures and appropriations
utilizing projected balances in the General Fund budget for the Previous Biennium. The end of 2007
legislative session estimates of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below.
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PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005 ...................... $ 1,393
Non-dedicated Revenues ............... ... .. . . i .. 31,272
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers Inand Other................. 939

Total Revenues and Transfers ................ ... .. ......... 32,211
Total RESOUIrCEeS ... ..o $33,604
Expenditures ...... ... ... ... 31,498
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 2,106
Cash Flow Account. . ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ........ 350

Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... .. ... . ... .. 653

Tax Relief Account .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 110

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts .. ............... .. 1,113
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 993
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The following table sets forth by source the forecast amounts of nondedicated revenues allocable

to the General Fund for the Previous Biennium.

Previous Biennium Estimates — Revenues and Expenditures

The following table displays a summary of the estimated amounts of revenues and expenditures
allocable to the General Fund for the Previous Biennium based on the 2007 Legislative session.
Authorized expenditures are presented by function, consistent with generally accepted accounting

principles for reporting purposes.

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
ESTIMATES OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
($ in Thousands)

Forecasted Resources
Prior Year Ending Balance'™ ... ... .. ... ... .. ..
Net Non-dedicated Revenues ...................
Dedicated Revenues . ..........................
Transfers From Other Funds. ....................
Prior Year Adjustments .........................

Subtotal Current Resources . ....................
Total Revenues Plus Prior Year Ending Balance . . .

Authorized Expenditures & Transfers
K-12 Education . ........... . o i
Higher Education ............. ... ... ... ......
Property Tax Aids & Credits.....................
Health & Human Services. . .....................
Public Safety ........... .. ... ...
Transportation ........... ... ... .
Environment, Energy & Natural Res..............
Agriculture & Veterans. ............. ... o
Economic Development ........................
State Government. ............ oo
Debt Service

Subtotal Expenditures & Transfers .............
Dedicated Revenue Expenditures. ...............

Total Expenditures and Transfers ..............

Unreserved Balance ...........................
Cash Flow Account ............................
Budget Reserve .......... ... .. ... .
Tax Relief Account . ............................
Appropriations Carried Forward .................

Unrestricted Balance . ............ ... ... ... ....

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Previous

2006 2007 Biennium
$ 1,393,086 $ 1,813,145 $ 1,393,086
15,510,353 15,761,945 31,272,298
44,101 68,921 113,022
384,715 392,718 777,433
23,190 25,000 48,190
$15,962,359  $16,248,584  $32,210,943
$17,355,445  $18,061,729  $33,604,029
6,872,273 6,490,030 13,362,303
1,347,880 1,415,031 2,762,911
1,463,635 1,564,122 3,027,757
3,942,148 4,299,956 8,242,104
811,562 902,142 1,713,704
102,201 113,938 216,139
147,099 178,370 325,469
62,158 74,549 136,707
140,139 157,116 297,255
262,121 307,816 569,937
352,447 399,651 752,098
4,524 8,300 12,824
0 (12,500) (12,500)
15,508,187 15,898,521 31,406,708
34,113 57,121 91,234
15,542,300 15,955,642 31,497,942
1,813,145 2,106,087 2,106,087
350,000 350,000 350,000
653,000 653,000 653,000
109,660 109,660 109,660
182,150 0 0
$ 518335 § 993427 § 993427

(1) Fiscal Year 2005 ended with an Unrestricted General Fund balance of zero and an Unreserved
Accounting General Fund Balance of $1.393 billion.
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The following table sets forth by source the forecast amounts of nondedicated revenues allocable
to the General Fund for the Previous Biennium.

PREVIOUS BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
ESTIMATES OF NONDEDICATED REVENUES
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
($ in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Previous
2006 2007 Biennium
Net Nondedicated Revenues:
Income Tax — Individual ....................... $ 6,862,953 $ 7,093,500 $13,956,453
Income Tax — Corporate ...................... 1,061,627 1,177,900 2,239,527
Sales Tax ... 4,463,640 4,519,337 8,982,977
Motor Vehicle Sales Tax ........................ 249,640 241,286 490,926
Statewide Property Tax ......................... 631,279 663,372 1,294,651
Estate Tax........ .. ... . 215,933 116,000 331,933
Liquor, Wine & Beer.............. ... ... ... ... 72,020 72,916 144,936
Cigarette & TobacCo ........... ..., 211,128 192,412 403,540
MINING . ... 6,783 6,155 12,938
Mortgage Registry Tax ......................... 174,179 137,500 311,679
Deed Transfer Tax . ......... ... .............. 136,408 113,500 249,908
Gross Earnings Taxes .. ..., 274,777 285,150 559,927
Lawful Gambling Taxes......................... 55,794 55,481 111,275
Medical Assistance Surcharges ................. 205,266 208,068 413,334
Income Tax Reciprocity......................... 56,802 63,481 120,283
Tobacco Settlements . ............. ... .. L 180,790 180,605 361,395
Investment Income........... ... ... L 54,791 86,500 141,291
DHS SOS Collections .......................... 54,696 52,921 107,617
Lottery Revenue ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 55,631 51,384 107,015
Departmental Earnings .............. ... . ... .. 307,094 242,000 549,094
Fines & Surcharges . ........................... 130,801 103,500 234,301
All Other Nondedicated Revenue ............... 103,432 145,068 248,500
Tax and Non-Tax Refunds. ...................... (55,111) (46,091) (101,202)
Total Net Nondedicated Revenues................. $15,5610,3563  $15,761,945  $31,272,298
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BUDGET — CURRENT BIENNIUM

November 2006 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Current Biennium at the end of November 2006. The November 2006 Current Biennium
forecast of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST
($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ....................... $ 2,151
Non-dedicated Revenues . .............. .. ... .. .. .. ...... 32,717
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 801

Total Revenues and Transfers. ................ ... .. ......... 33,518
Total ReSOUIrCes . ... $35,669
Expenditures. ... ... ... ... . ... ... 32,496
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 3,173
Cash Flow Account. . ... ... .. .. . . . ... . . ... . ... .. ... 350

Budget Reserve Account . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., 653

Tax Relief Account .. ... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... ..

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts ................ .. 1,003
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30,2009 ........... $ 2,170

CURRENT BIENNIUM
NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST
CHANGES FROM END OF 2006 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
($ in Millions)

End of Nov 2006
2006 Session Forecast Change
Balance Forward From Prior Year ................. $ 1,113 $ 2,151 $1,038
Current Resources:
Income tax receipts . ........... 15,185 15,541 356
Corporate tax receipts .............. ... . ..... 1,751 2,056 305
Sales tax receipts ............ ... ... 9,639 9,485 (154)
Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ................ 527 321 (206)
Statewide property tax receipts ................. 1,403 1,402 (1)
Othertaxes ..., 2,392 2,400 8
Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers ....... 2,323 2,313 (10)
Total Current Resources ......................... 33,220 33,518 298
Total Resources ........ ... 34,333 35,669 1,336
Expenditures:
K-12 Education .......... .. ... .. ... . ... ... 12,942 12,981 39
Higher Education .......... ... ... . ... .. ..., 2,802 2,802 0
Property Tax Aids & Credits .................... 3,139 3,107 (32)
Health & Human Services ...................... 9,431 9,369 (62)
Public Safety ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ...... 1,733 1,723 (10)
All Other spending ............ ... ... . ...... 2,546 2,514 (32)
Total Spending ... 32,593 32,496 (97)
Cash Flow Account .............................. 350 350 0
Budget Reserve ........... ... ... L 653 653 0
Projected balance at June 30, 2007 ............... $ 737 $ 2,170 $1,433
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CURRENT BIENNIUM
NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST
COMPARISONS TO PREVIOUS BIENNIUM

($ in Millions)
Nov 2006 Nov 2006 $ %
Previous Current Change Change
Balance Forward From Prior Year ............... $ 1,393 $ 2,151 $ 758 54.4%
Current Resources:
Income tax receipts ......... ... oL 14,056 15,641 1,485 10.6%
Corporate tax receipts  ............ .. ... ..... 2,169 2,056 (113) (5.2)%
Sales tax receipts ......... ... .. 9,000 9,485 485 5.4%
Motor vehicle sales tax receipts .............. 487 321 (166) (34.1)%
Statewide property tax receipts .............. 1,295 1,402 107 8.3%
Othertaxes ......... ... .. ... . i, 2,598 2,400 (198) (7.6)%
Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers .. ... 2,640 2,313 (327) (12.4)%
Total Current Resources ....................... 32,245 33,518 1,273 3.9%
Total Resources ......... ... ... ... . ... 33,638 35,669 2,031 6.0%
Expenditures:
K-12 Education ............ ... ... ... ........ 13,369 12,981 (388) (2.9)%
Higher Education ............... ... ......... 2,763 2,802 39 1.4%
Property Tax Aids & Credits .................. 3,025 3,107 82 2.7%
Health & Human Services ................... 8,256 9,369 1,113 13.5%
Public Safety ......... ... ... ... .. ..., 1,710 1,723 13 0.8%
All Other spending ........... ... ......... 2,364 2,514 150 6.3%
Total Spending . ... .. 31,487 32,496 1,009 3.2%
Cash Flow Account ........................... 350 350 0
Budget Reserve ... ... ... .. ... .. ... 653 653 0
Tax Relief Account ............................ 110 0 (110)
Projected balance at June 30, 2009 ............ $ 1,038 $ 2,170 $1,132

This was the first forecast of revenues and expenditures for the Current Biennium. Forecast
revenues for the Current Biennium, were expected to be more than forecast at the end of the 2006
legislative session and more than the Previous Biennium. Tax revenues were projected to be greater
than the Previous Biennium, and other resources were projected to be lower than the Previous
Biennium. The balance brought forward from the Previous Biennium was expected to be higher than
the Previous Biennium.

Individual income tax revenues were expected to show the most growth in the Current Biennium,
from the Previous Biennium. Sales tax revenues were forecast to grow over the Previous Biennium,
while statewide property tax receipts were expected to grow over the Previous Biennium. Corporate
income tax collections were forecast to decline from the Previous Biennium. Motor vehicle sales tax
collections were forecast to decline due primarily, but not entirely, to the phase-in of the constitutional
dedication of the motor vehicle sales tax to transportation funds. All other tax revenues were forecast
to be lower than in the Previous Biennium, other non-dedicated revenues lower, and transfers in from
other funds lower than the Previous Biennium. All other resources were forecast to be higher than the
Previous Biennium.

Projected current law spending for the Current Biennium was expected to be greater than end of
session estimates, and higher than spending in the Previous Biennium. Health and human services
spending estimates increased over the Previous Biennium. Net spending in all other areas was nearly
flat due to the fact that current law required FY 2007 legislative appropriations be the base for the
Current Biennium budget planning.
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The Cash Flow Account and the Budget Reserve Account remained the same. The Tax Relief
Account was reduced to zero for the Current Biennium having been used for tax changes made in the
2006 legislative session effective in the Current Biennium.

February 2007 Forecast

The Department of Finance prepared a revised forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
for the Current Biennium at the end of February 2007. The February 2007 Current Biennium forecast
of resources, expenditures, and fund balances is detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 . ...................... $ 2,126
Non-dedicated Revenues . .............. .. ... ... .. ........ 32,849
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 829

Total Revenues and Transfers. ................ ... .. ......... 33,678
Total ReSOUICeS . ... .. $35,804
Expenditures. ... ... ... .. .. ... ... ... 32,638
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 3,166
Cash Flow Account. . ...... ... ... ... ... ... . ... ... ....... 350

Budget Reserve Account ............. ... ... .. ... . ... .. 653

Tax Relief Account .. ... .. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ......... 0

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts ............ ... ... 1,003
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2009........... $ 2,163
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CURRENT BIENNIUM
FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST
CHANGES FROM NOVEMBER 2006 FORECAST

($ in Millions)
Nov 2006 Feb 2007
Forecast Forecast Change

Balance Forward From Prior Year ................. $ 2,151 $ 2126 $(25)
Current Resources:

Income tax receipts ........... .. ... 15,541 15,567 26

Corporate tax receipts ......................... 2,056 2,209 153

Sales tax receipts ......... ... 9,485 9,432 (53)

Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ................ 321 317 (4)

Statewide property tax receipts ................. 1,402 1,402 0

Othertaxes ....... ... ... . ... . . . . . . . 2,400 2,412 12

Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers ....... 2,313 2,339 26
Total Current Resources ......................... 33,518 33,678 160
Total Resources ............ ... .. .. . . 35,669 35,804 135
Expenditures:

K-12 Education .......... .. ... ... . i 12,981 12,996 15

Higher Education ....... ... .. ... ... ... ... ... 2,802 2,802 0

Property Tax Aids & Credits .................... 3,107 3,108 1

Health & Human Services ...................... 9,369 9,460 91

Public Safety ............. ... . ... .. ... . ..... 1,723 1,723 0

All Other spending ........... ... ... ...... 2,514 2,549 35
Total Spending ........ ... .. ... 32,496 32,638 142
Cash Flow Account ............ ... ... 350 350 0
Budget Reserve .......... .. ... i 653 653 0
Projected balance at June 30, 2009 ............... $ 2170 $ 2,163 $ (7)

Forecast revenues for the Current Biennium were expected to be more than forecast in November
2006. Projected individual income tax receipts were increased, and corporate income tax receipts
were increased over November 2006. The sales tax and motor vehicle sales tax forecasts were
reduced from November’s estimates. All other resources were higher than forecast in November 2006.

Projected current law spending for the Current Biennium also showed little change from the
November 2006 forecast. Total spending was projected to be more than projected in November 2006.
An increase in forecast human services costs accounted for nearly two-thirds of the change, reflecting
projected increases in hospital costs. K-12 education estimates increased due to higher forecast
spending for compensatory aid and levy equalization programs. Debt service projections increased
reflecting the effect of slightly higher interest rate forecasts. All other spending increased.
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March 2007 Governor’s Budget Recommendations

In January 2007 the Governor submitted a proposed budget to the Legislature for the Current
Biennium that was based on the November 2006 forecast of General Fund revenues and expenditures
(“Current Law”). In March 2007 the Governor's budget recommendations were updated to reflect
changes in forecast revenues and spending resulting from the February 2007 forecast. The Governor’s
final budget recommendations to the Legislature are detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
MARCH 2007 GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATION

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ....................... $ 2,108
Non-dedicated Revenues ........ ... ... .. ... ... ... .. ...... 32,849
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 766

Total Revenues and Transfers. .............. .. ... .. ......... 33,615
Total Resources . .......... .. . $35,723
Expenditures. . ... ... ... ... ... 34,571
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 1,152
Cash Flow Account. ............ ... ... ... ... .. .. ......... 350

Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... . ... . ..., 800

Tax Relief Account ........... ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 0

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts ................ .. 1,150
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30,2009 ........... $ 2

Recommendations were updated to reflect changes in Current Law forecasts for K-12 education
and human services. Limited new recommendations were directed to improving the long-term budget
outlook. Proposed changes included a $44 million increase in transfers from the State’s Health Care
Access fund to better match expected enrollment growth in the respective funds and a $23 million
gain from additional use of federal funds related to hospital payments. The Governor increased his
recommendation for the Budget Reserve Account, raising the proposed level from $700 million to
$800 million, 4.5 percent of annual expenditures.
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The following table details revenue and expenditure changes proposed by the Governor
compared to the February 2007 forecast for the Current Biennium. The information highlights
increases and decreases from forecast Current Law levels for major revenue and expenditure
categories.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATIONS
COMPARISON TO FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST

($ in Millions)
Feb 2007
Forecast Gov’'s Rec  Change

Balance Forward From Prior Year ................. $ 2126 $ 2,108 $ (18)
Current Resources:

Income tax receipts .......... ... ... ... 15,567 15,509 (58)

Corporate tax receipts ......................... 2,209 2,179 (30)

Sales tax receipts ........ ... ... L 9,432 9,335 (97)

Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ................ 317 317 0

Statewide property tax receipts ................. 1,402 1,402 0

Othertaxes ......... ... . ... .. 2,412 2,463 51

Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers ....... 2,339 2,410 71
Total Current Resources ..................co.... 33,678 33,615 (63)
Total RESOUICES ..ot 35,804 35,723 (81)
Expenditures:

K-12 Education .......... ... ... .. ... ... ....... 12,996 13,756 760

Higher Education ............................. 2,802 3,202 400

Property Tax Aids & Credits .................... 3,108 3,167 59

Health & Human Services ...................... 9,460 9,683 223

Public Safety ......... ... .. ... .. ... .. ... .. ..., 1,723 1,878 155

All Other spending ........... ... 2,549 2,885 336
Total Spending ... 32,638 34,571 1,933
Cash Flow Account .............................. 350 350 0
Budget Reserve . ... ... ... .. . 653 800 147
Projected balance at June 30, 2009 ............... $ 2163 § 2 $(2,161)

Revenues Proposed in the Governor's Budget:

The March 2007 Governor’s recommendation reflected a net decrease in General Fund revenues
from the February 2007 forecast for the Current Biennium.

The Governor included no general tax increases in his March 2007 recommendations, and the
proposed budget provided targeted income and business tax relief that would reduce forecast
revenues. Additionally, the Governor proposed dedicating leased vehicle sales tax receipts for
transportation purposes along with a sales tax exemption for transportation projects and operations.
These changes were expected to reduce general fund tax revenues in the Current Biennium.

Expenditures Proposed in the Governor's Budget:

The March 2007 Governor’s recommendation for the Current Biennium increased General Fund
spending by $1.933 billion from the February 2007 projected forecast of Current Law. The total
recommended spending increase is $3.076 billion (9.8 percent) over the forecast for the Previous
Biennium.

E-12 education accounts for 40 percent of total General Fund spending. More than one-half of the
increases shown result from recommendations to increase the basic education formula by 2 percent
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per year and funding for a Successful Schools initiative that would provide one-time bonuses, equal
to approximately an additional 2 percent on the basic education formula, to schools meeting
achievement goals. One-time payments in the Previous Biennium to repay school district payment
shifts do not recur and act to reduce growth compared to the Previous Biennium.

The budget funded forecast current law growth in human services attributable to largely growing
costs in Medical Assistance, Minnesota’s Medicaid program. Limited additional spending recommended
by the Governor represented a combination of changes related to reforming the health care system,
improving mental health services, providing rate increases to continuing care providers, and promoting
health information technology.

The Governor’s budget included significant increases both to the State’s higher education
systems as well as to student financial aid programs to offset possible tuition increases.

Property tax aids and credit payments to local governments and individuals included increases to
local government aids as well as property tax refund payments to individuals.

A major portion of increased spending for public safety was directed to operations of the State’s
correctional facilities and funding increased operating costs in the State’s court systems.

An average 2 percent per year increase from current appropriation levels was recommended for
operating agencies compensation costs, as well as significant investments in technology and related
operations.

Reserves:

Current law provided for a total of $1.003 billion in reserves including the Budget Reserve
Account and a separate cash flow account. The Governor recommended increasing the Budget
Reserve Account. The Governor also recommended statutory changes to index the budget reserve to
growth in General Fund spending. Those recommendations set a goal of 5 percent of annual
spending and required that a portion of future forecast balances be automatically deposited in the
reserve until the 5 percent goal is met.

Next Biennium:

The planning estimates for the Next Biennium, based on the March 2007 Governor’s proposed
budget, indicate that there would be a structural balance of $844 million, meaning that projected total
revenues, excluding any balances carried forward, would exceed total expenditures. The planning
estimates are based on projected current law revenues and expenditures as proposed by the
Governor adjusted only for enrollments and caseloads in K-12 education and human services
programs, as well as state prison populations. The expenditure estimates do not include adjustments
for general inflationary increases.
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The following table displays the Governor’'s budget for the Current Biennium compared to the
Previous Biennium. The table highlights growth in major revenues and spending categories, identifying
both amounts and percent change from previous levels.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GOVERNOR’S RECOMMENDATIONS
COMPARISONS TO PREVIOUS BIENNIUM

($ in Millions)
Previous Current $ %
Biennium Biennium Change Change
Balance Forward From Prior Year .......... $ 1,393 $ 2,108 $ 715 51.3%
Previous Resources:
Income tax receipts .................... 13,956 15,509 1,553 11.1%
Corporate tax receipts .................. 2,240 2,179 (61) (2.7)%
Sales tax receipts ......... ... 8,983 9,335 352 3.9%
Motor vehicle sales tax receipts ......... 491 317 (174) (35.4)%
Statewide property tax receipts .......... 1,295 1,402 107 8.3%
Othertaxes ..., 2,600 2,461 (139) (5.3)%
Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers 2,646 2,412 (234) (8.8)%
Total Previous Resources ................. 32,211 33,615 1,404 4.4%
Total Resources .......................... 33,604 35,723 2,119 6.3%
Expenditures:
K-12 Education ........................ 13,362 13,756 394 2.9%
Higher Education ...................... 2,763 3,202 439 15.9%
Property Tax Aids & Credits ............. 3,028 3,167 139 4.6%
Health & Human Services ............... 8,242 9,683 1,441 17.5%
Public Safety .......................... 1,712 1,878 166 9.7%
All Other spending ..................... 2,388 2,885 497 20.8%
Total Spending .......... ... ... 31,495 34,571 3,076 9.8%
Cash Flow Account ...................... 350 350 0
Budget Reserve .......... ... ... ... ..., 653 800 147
Tax Relief Account ....................... 110 0 (110)
Projected balance at June 30, 2009 ....... $ 996 $ 2 $ (994)
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2007 Legislative Session

The 2007 legislative session ended on the constitutional deadline of May 21, 2007. Legislative
actions authorizing revenues and spending for the Current Biennium were based on the February
2007 Current Law forecast. The end of the 2007 legislative session estimates, for revenues,
expenditures and fund balances are detailed below reflect the enacted budget after line-item and
other vetoes by the Governor.

The Current Biennium budget based on 2007 Legislative actions is detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*

($ in Millions)

Resources

Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 ...................... $ 2,106
Non-dedicated Revenues . .............. .. ... ... .. ........ 32,966
Dedicated Revenues, Transfers In and Other................. 846

Total Revenues and Transfers .............. .. ... ........... 33,812
Total ReSOUICES . ... $35,918
Expenditures ...... ... .. .. ... ... 34,509
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009 ........... $ 1,409
Cash Flow Account. . ......... ... ... ... ... .. ... ........ 350

Budget Reserve Account ............ .. ... ... .. ... . ... .. 686

Total for Statutorily Mandated Accounts ............ ... ... 1,036
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2009 .......... $ 373

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.
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The following table details revenue and expenditure changes enacted by the 2007 Legislature
compared to the February 2007 forecast for the Current Biennium. The information highlights
increases and decreases from forecast current law levels for major revenue and expenditure
categories.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*
COMPARISON TO FEBRUARY 2007 FORECAST

($ in Millions)
Feb 2007
Forecast Enacted Change
Balance Forward From Prior Year.................. $ 2,126 $ 2,106 $ (20)
Current Resources:
Income tax receipts............. ... 15,567 15,567 0
Corporate tax receipts. . ... 2,209 2,209 0
Sales taxreceipts. ... i 9,432 9,432 0
Motor vehicle sales tax receipts . ................ 317 317 0
Statewide property tax receipts. . ................ 1,402 1,402 0
Othertaxes ......... .. i, 2,412 2,514 102
Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers........ _ 2,339 2371 32
Total Current Resources ........................ 33,678 33,812 134
Total Resources. . ............. .. ... i 35,804 35,918 114
Expenditures:
K-12 Education ............ ... . ... ........... 12,996 13,780 784
Higher Education .......... ... ... . ... . ..... 2,802 3,155 353
Property Tax Aids & Credits. . ................... 3,108 3,108 0
Health & Human Services. ...................... 9,460 9,695 235
Public Safety ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... ... 1,723 1,877 154
All Other spending............................. 2,549 2,894 345
Total Spending . ........ .. 32,638 34,509 1,871
Cash Flow Account ............ ... ... ... ... 350 350 0
Budget Reserve ......... ... ... . ... ... ... .... 653 686 33
Projected balance at June 30, 2009 ............. $ 2,163 $ 373 $(1,790)

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.
Revenues in the Enacted Budget

The approved budget reflects little change in General Fund revenues from the February 2007
forecast for the Current Biennium. No general tax increases or decreases were included in the
adopted budget. The Governor and legislature failed to agree on an omnibus tax bill, resulting in a
gubernatorial veto. Revenue provisions in the vetoed omnibus tax bill, however, were largely limited to
modifications to taxes paid related to foreign operating corporations. Without these changes, forecast
revenues for the biennium increased only slightly from forecast levels, reflecting additional tax
compliance revenues and limited fee and other revenue changes occurring in omnibus appropriation
bills.

Expenditures Authorized in the Enacted Budget:

The enacted budget for the Current Biennium increased General Fund spending by $1.871 billion
from the February 2007 projected forecast of current law. The total recommended spending increase
is $3.011 billion (9.6 percent) over the forecast for the Previous Biennium.
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K-12 education accounts for 40 percent of total General Fund spending, increasing $784 million
over forecast spending. One-third of the change resulted from increases to the basic education
formula of 2 percent in the first year and 1.0 percent in the second year. Slightly over 40 percent of the
total change is attributed to increases in special education funding. Significant initiatives in one-time
school technology funding, deferred maintenance funding, and increases in kindergarten pupil unit
weighting accounted for the remainder of the net increase.

Health and human services programs account for 28 percent of authorized spending, an increase
of $235 million from forecast levels, but $1.453 billion over the Previous Biennium. Primary components
of the change included forecast current law growth in human services attributable to largely growing
costs in Medical Assistance, Minnesota’s Medicaid program. Limited additional spending occurred as
a result of expanding MinnesotaCare coverage for adults without children. Other changes represented
a combination of changes related to improving mental health services, providing 2 percent yearly rate
increases to continuing care providers, and promoting electronic health records technology.

The enacted budget included significant increases both to the State’s higher education systems
as well as to student financial aid programs that acted to reduce possible tuition increases. Property
tax aids and credit payments to local governments and individuals, local government aids, as well as
property tax refund payments to individuals were left unchanged from forecast current law levels.
Proposed increases for these programs had been part of an omnibus tax bill that was vetoed by the
Governor. No action left current law local aid credit and refund formulae in place. Finally, a major
portion of increased spending for public safety was directed to operations of the State’s correctional
facilities, as well as providing for increased operating costs in the State’s court systems, related to
caseload increases.

Budgets for most areas included three percent per year increases from current appropriation
levels for potential compensation costs related to bargained labor contracts being negotiated.

Reserves:

Current Law provided for a total of $1.003 billion in reserves, including the Budget Reserve
Account and a separate cash flow account. No changes were made to these reserves. A special
contingent reserve of $33 million was designated for aids to counties to deal with anticipated federal
reductions affecting human services case management activities.

Final budget actions left an unusually high unexpended, available General Fund balance of $373
million. Executive vetoes of the omnibus tax bill reduced legislative spending by $138 million, as well
as deferring a recommended increase to the budget reserve of $150 million. An executive veto of a
capital budget bill reduced legislatively approved cash spending for capital projects by $135 million,
while reducing debt service spending from forecast levels that assumed a small off-year capital
budget.

Next Biennium:

The planning estimates for the Next Biennium, based on the enacted budget, indicate that there
would be a structural balance of $1.144 billion, meaning that projected total revenues, excluding any
balances carried forward, would exceed total expenditures for the Next Biennium. The planning
estimates are based on projected Current Law revenues and expenditures as proposed by the
Governor adjusted only for enrollments and caseloads in K-12 education and human services
programs, as well as state prison populations. The expenditure estimates do not include adjustments
for general inflationary increases.
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The following table displays the budget for the Current Biennium compared to the Previous
Biennium based on the 2007 Legislative session. The table highlights growth in major revenues and
spending categories, identifying both amounts and percent change from current levels.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION
COMPARISONS TO PREVIOUS BIENNIUM

($ in Millions)
Previous Current $ %
Biennium Biennium Change Change

Balance Forward From Prior Year........... $ 1,393 $ 2,106 $ 713

Current Resources:

Income tax receipts..................... 13,956 15,567 1,611 11.5%

Corporate tax receipts .................. 2,240 2,209 (31) (1.4)%

Sales tax receipts. . ................. ... 8,983 9,432 449 5.0%

Motor vehicle sales tax receipts.......... 491 317 (174) (35.5)%

Statewide property tax receipts .......... 1,295 1,402 107 8.3%

Othertaxes ..., 2,600 2,514 (86) (3.3)%

Miscellaneous non-tax revenues, transfers. 2,646 2,371 (275) (10.4)%

Total Current Resources . ................ 32,211 33,812 1,601 5.0%

Total Resources . ......... ... ... ... ..., 33,604 35,918 2,314 6.9%
Expenditures:

K-12 Education......................... 13,362 13,780 418 3.1%

Higher Education....................... 2,763 3,155 392 14.2%

Property Tax Aids & Credits. ............. 3,028 3,108 80 2.6%

Health & Human Services ............... 8,242 9,695 1,453 17.6%

Public Safety . .......................... 1,714 1,877 163 9.5%

All Other spending...................... 2,389 2,894 505 21.1%

Total Spending ......................... 31,498 34,509 3,011 9.6%

Cash Flow Account ..................... 350 350 0

Budget Reserve ........... ... .. ....... 653 686 33

Tax Relief Account...................... 110 0 (110)

Projected Balance at June 30............ $ 993 $ 373 $ (620)
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Current Biennium Estimates — Revenues and Expenditures

The following table displays a summary of the estimated amounts of revenues and expenditures
allocable to the General Fund for the Current Biennium based on the 2007 Legislative session.
Authorized expenditures are presented by function, consistent with generally accepted accounting
principles for reporting purposes.

Forecast Resources
Prior Year Ending Balance!"
Net Non-dedicated Revenues

Prior Year Adjustments

Total Revenues

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
ESTIMATES OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*
($ in Thousands)

Authorized Expenditures & Transfers

K-12 Education

Higher Education

Public Safety ..
Transportation .

Economic Development

Debt Service .
Capital Projects

Cancellation Adjustment
Subtotal Expenditures & Transfers

Total Expenditures and Transfers

Unreserved Balance
Cash Flow Account
Budget Reserve

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Current
2008 2009 Biennium

.................... $ 2,106,087 $ 1,645587 $ 2,106,087

................... 16,186,959 16,779,025 32,965,984

Dedicated Revenues .. ......................... 74,385 82,613 156,998

Transfers From Other Funds. . ................... 321,115 317,464 638,579

......................... 25,000 25,000 50,000

Subtotal Current Resources .. ................... $16,607,459  $17,204,102  $33,811,561
Plus Prior Year

Ending Balance.............. ... ... ...... $18,713,546  $18,849,689  $35,917,648

................................ 6,848,602 6,931,775 13,780,377

.............................. 1,570,745 1,584,413 3,155,158

Property Tax Aids & Credits. .................... 1,549,666 1,558,076 3,107,742

Health & Human Services. ...................... 4,668,078 5,026,732 9,694,810

................................ 923,095 953,879 1,876,974

................................ 143,347 106,055 249,402

Environment, Energy & Natural Res.............. 252,144 192,376 444,520

Agriculture & Veterans. . ............ ...l 95,469 84,815 180,284

........................ 195,164 140,702 335,866

State Government. ... ... 342 505 313,591 656,096

................................ 418,073 488,181 906,254

................................ 10,250 10,250 20,500

....................... (6,164) (15,000) (21,164)

............... 17,010,974 17,375,845 34,386,819

Dedicated Revenue Expenditures. ............... 56,985 65,213 122,198

................ 17,067,959 17,441,058 34,509,017

........................... 1,645,587 1,408,631 1,408,361

............................ 350,000 350,000 350,000

............................... 685,667 685,667 685,667

Unrestricted Balance . .......................... $ 609920 $ 372964 $§ 372,964

(1)

and an Unreserved Accounting General Fund Balance of $2.106 billion.

*Taking into effect

Governor’s vetoes.
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The following table sets forth by source the forecast amounts of nondedicated revenues allocable

to the General Fund for the Current Biennium.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
GENERAL FUND
ESTIMATES OF NONDEDICATED REVENUES
2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*
($ in Thousands)

Net Nondedicated Revenues:

Income Tax — Individual ........................
Income Tax — Corporate ......................
Sales Tax ...
Motor Vehicle Sales Tax ........................
Statewide Property Tax . ........................
Estate Tax........ .. ... .
Liquor, Wine & Beer............................
Cigarette & TobacCo .................oi...
Mining .. ...
Mortgage Registry Tax .........................
Deed Transfer Tax . ............................
Gross Earnings Taxes . ...,
Lawful Gambling Taxes.........................
Medical Assistance Surcharges .................
Income Tax Reciprocity. . .......................
Tobacco Settlements . ................ ... L
Investment Income........... ... .. ... L
DHS SOS Collections .................. ... ..
Lottery Revenue ......... ... .. ... ... ... ... ...
Departmental Earnings . ................. ... ...
Fines & Surcharges . ...........................
All Other Nondedicated Revenue ...............
Tax and Non-Tax Refunds. ................... ...

Total Net Nondedicated Revenues.................

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2008 2009 Current Biennium
$ 7,550,700 $ 8,016,700 $15,567,400
1,140,800 1,068,100 2,208,900
4,615,751 4,816,517 9,432,268
179,945 136,736 316,681
691,162 710,510 1,401,672
110,000 117,000 227,000
74,590 76,149 150,739
192,282 190,907 383,189
4,650 3,550 8,200
117,300 116,100 233,400
105,600 106,700 212,300
288,350 293,950 582,300
55,211 54,931 110,142
209,697 214,597 424,294
68,339 71,816 140,155
181,415 181,927 363,342
53,200 37,600 90,800
66,631 70,857 137,488
51,979 52,105 104,084
228,593 229,037 457,630
102,000 102,000 204,000
143,351 150,076 299,427
(44,587) (44,840) (89,427)
$16,186,959 $16,779,025 $32,965,984




GENERAL FUND REVENUE SOURCES

Tax Sources

The State’s principal sources of non-dedicated revenues are taxes of various types. A description
of the major taxes imposed by the current State law is set forth below.

Income Tax: The income tax rate schedules for 2007 consist of three income brackets having tax
rates of 5.35 percent, 7.05 percent and 7.85 percent as shown below. The tax brackets are indexed
annually for inflation, as measured by the National CPI. The base of the tax is federal taxable income,
with selected additions and subtractions. There is an income exclusion for low-income elderly and
disabled taxpayers. The exclusion phases out as adjusted gross income and nontaxable sources of
income rise. Two earner couples are entitled to a non-refundable credit against tax liability to offset the
additional tax liability that results from the “married joint” filing status as opposed to the “single” filing
status. The maximum credit per return to offset this “marriage penalty” is $325. In addition, the State
tax code contains a refundable child care credit, a working family credit, and an education credit all
targeted at low income parents.

SINGLE FILER
Taxable Income Tax
on the first $21,310 5.35 percent

on all over $21,310,
but not over $69,990  7.05 percent

on all over $69,990 7.85 percent
MARRIED FILING JOINTLY

Taxable Income Tax

on the first $31,150 5.35 percent

on all over $31,150
but not over $123,750  7.05 percent
on all over $123,750 7.85 percent

Married individuals filing separate returns, estates and trusts must compute their income tax by
applying married rates, except that the income brackets will be one-half of the above amounts.

HEAD OF HOUSEHOLD
Taxable Income Tax

on the first $26,230 5.35 percent
on all over $26,230

but not over $105,410  7.05 percent
on all over $105,410 7.85 percent

Sales and Use Tax: The sales tax of 6.5 percent is applicable to most retail sales of goods with
the exception of food, clothing, and prescription drugs. Purchases made by non-profit organizations
and the federal government and school districts are exempt.

Statewide Property Tax: Beginning with property taxes payable in calendar year 2002, there is
a State general property tax of $592 million levied on commercial and industrial property, public utility
property, unmined iron ore property, and seasonal recreational property, including cabins. Electric
generation attached machinery and property located at the Minneapolis-St. Paul International Airport
and the St. Paul Airport are exempt from this tax. The tax is levied at a uniform rate across the State.
The levy amount is adjusted annually for the increase, if any, in the implicit price deflator for
government consumption expenditures and gross investment for state and local governments
prepared by the U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Corporate Franchise Tax: A flat tax rate of 9.8% is imposed on corporate taxable income.
Corporations that do business both in and outside of Minnesota must apportion their taxable income
on the basis of a three factor formula that gives a 75% weight to sales, a 12.5% weight to payroll and
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a 12.5% weight to property. Laws enacted in 2005 called for the weights to be incrementally adjusted
each year, so that by 2014 the weight for sales will be 100%. The phase in will begin in 2007. An
alternative minimum tax is imposed on Minnesota alternative minimum taxable income (which is
similar to federal alternative minimum taxable income) at a flat rate of 5.8%, to the extent the minimum
tax exceeds the regular tax.

Beginning in Tax Year 2002, Minnesota required 80% of federal “bonus depreciation” be added
to taxable income and then deducted in five equal parts over the next five years. The effect of this
provision is to negate the revenue loss that would otherwise result from federal “bonus depreciation”.

A fee is imposed as a part of the franchise tax liability. The fee is in addition to the regular and
alternative minimum tax. The amount of the fee is based on the sum of Minnesota property, payroll and
sales. The fee schedule is shown below:

Fee Basis Amount of Fee
Less than $500,000. ............. .............. $ 0
$500,000 to $1 million .......... . ... ... 100
$1to $5 million. .. ... 300
$5to $10 million .. ... 1,000
$10 to $20 million ... ..o 2,000
$20 millionormore ............. 5,000

Insurance Gross Earnings Tax: A tax is imposed on the gross premium revenue of insurance
companies at the following rates:

1.75%  Life insurance (rate will be reduced in steps to 1.5% in 2009).

2.0% Domestic and foreign company premiums.
1.0% Mutual property and casualty companies with assets of 5 million or less on
12/31/89.

1.26%  Mutual property and casualty companies with assets in excess of 5 million
but less than 1.6 billion on 12/31/89.

3.0% Surplus line agents.

0.5% Fire Marshal tax on fire premiums.

2.0% Surcharge on fire premiums for property located in cities of the first class.
1.0% Health Maintenance Organizations.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2008, the 0.5% tax on fire premiums is repealed and replaced by a
0.65% tax on the premiums of homeowners insurance policies, commercial fire policies, and
commercial nonliability insurance policies.

Motor Vehicle Sales Tax: Motor vehicle sales, new and used, are exempt from the sales and use
tax, but are subject to a 6.5% motor vehicle sales tax. The tax is collected at the time of title
registration or transfer. 53.75% of the collections are dedicated to transportation related funds.

Liquor, Wine and Fermented Malt Beverages: Liquor is taxed at $5.03 per gallon. Wine is taxed
at rates that vary from $.30 per gallon to $3.52 per gallon, depending on the alcohol content. Beer is
taxed at $2.40 per 31-gallon barrel for beer with alcoholic contents of 3.2% by volume or less, and
$4.60 per 31-gallon barrel for strong beer.

A tax of 2.5% is imposed on alcoholic beverages sold at retail; this is in addition to the 6.5% sales
tax on alcoholic beverages.

Cigarette and Tobacco Products Taxes: The excise tax on cigarettes is 48 cents per pack.
Tobacco products other than cigarettes are subject to an excise tax, imposed on distributors thereof,
equal to 35% of the wholesale price of such tobacco products.

A 75 cents per pack health impact fee is imposed on cigarettes and a health impact fee of 35%
is imposed on tobacco products. In lieu of a 6.5% sales tax on cigarettes, a wholesale tax is imposed
at rates, adjusted annually, to yield revenues equivalent to a 6.5% retail sales tax. The initial rate in
2005 was set at 25.5 cents per pack. See Litigation section on page 13 and Note 22 to the financial
statements shown in Appendix A, both of this Official Statement.
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Estate Tax: The tax base is the federal gross estate less various exemptions and deductions.
The tax may not exceed the State death tax credit, under prior federal law.

Mortgage Tax: A tax of 23 cents is imposed on each $100 dollars of debt secured by real
property. Ninety-seven percent of the proceeds go to the State’s General Fund and three percent to
the county in which the property is located.

Deed Tax: A tax of .0033% per $500 or $1.65 for increments less than $500 of consideration is
imposed on the transfer of real estate by any deed, instrument, or writing. Ninety-seven percent of the
proceeds go to the State’s General Fund and three percent to the county in which the property is
located.

Legalized Gambling Taxes:

Pari-Mutuel Tax: A 6% tax is imposed on the takeout of pari-mutuel horse races at licensed
tracks. The takeout is 17% of straight pools and 23% for multiple pools.

Lawful Gambling Tax: A 8.5% tax is imposed on bingo, raffles and paddlewheels gross
receipts less prizes of organizations licensed to operate such games of chance.

Pull-Tab and Tip Board Tax: A 1.7% tax is imposed on the “ldeal Gross” of each pull tab or
tipboard deal sold by a distributor. A deal is defined as each separate package, or series of
packages, consisting of one game of pull-tabs or tipboards. In addition, a “Combined Receipts Tax”,
with rates ranging from 1.7% to 5.1% is imposed on organizations with pull tab and tip board gross
receipts in excess of $500,000 per year.

Rental Motor Vehicle Tax: In addition to the general sales tax a 6.2 percent sales tax is imposed
on the lease or rental, on a daily or weekly basis, of a passenger automobile, van or pickup truck.

Taconite and Iron Ore Occupation Taxes: The base of the occupation tax is the value of the ore
less expenses required to convert it into marketable quality. Beginning in tax year 2006, the rate of the
tax was 2.45%. For purposes of the corporate franchise tax apportionment formula, transfers of ore
are deemed to be Minnesota sales.

Health Care Provider Surcharge: A tax is imposed upon licensed nursing homes, hospitals, and
health maintenance organizations, including a $2,815 tax per licensed nursing home bed, a 1.56% tax
on the net patient revenue of hospitals (excluding Medicare revenue), and a 0.6% tax on the total
premium revenue of health maintenance organizations.

Other Sources

In addition to the major taxes described above, other sources of non-dedicated revenues include
minor taxes, unrestricted grants, certain fees and charges of State agencies and departments, and
investment income.

The General Fund receives no unrestricted federal grants. The only federal funds deposited into
the General Fund are to reimburse the State for expenditures on behalf of federal programs.

Tobacco Settlement

On May 8, 1998, the State of Minnesota settled a lawsuit initiated against several tobacco
companies. The settlement requires the defendant tobacco companies to make annual payments to
the State of between $165 million and $204 million. The payments are to be made at the beginning of
the calendar year and are scheduled into perpetuity. These amounts are adjusted based on volume
of tobacco products sold and the Consumer Price Index as indicated in the settlement documents.
See Litigation report case 7, page 13 and Note 22 to the financial statements shown in Appendix A,
both of this Official Statement.
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TRUNK HIGHWAY SYSTEM

The State trunk highway system consists of 11,914 miles of highways, 4,792 bridges, and 1,035
maintenance, enforcement, service, and administrative buildings at 387 sites. Minnesota has 914
miles of interstate highways, all of which are part of the State trunk highway system. Total highway
mileage, including roads and streets under local jurisdiction, is 135,000 miles.

The State trunk highway system is constructed and maintained by the Minnesota Department of
Transportation (“Mn/DOT”). Construction work is contracted to private construction contractors on a
competitive basis, while maintenance is performed by Mn/DOT’s own forces. Maintenance includes
routine patching; short overlays; snow and ice control; and traffic services such as signing, paint
striping, etc.

Trunk Highway Fund

The Minnesota Constitution, Article XIV, establishes a Trunk Highway Fund (the “Trunk Highway
Fund”) to be used solely for trunk highway system purposes and for payment of principal of and
interest on trunk highway bonds. Article XIV provides that the payment of principal of and interest on
State trunk highway bonds is “a first charge on money coming into [the State Trunk Highway Fund]
during the year in which the principal or interest is payable.” Article XIV also establishes a Highway
User Tax Distribution Fund to be used solely for highway purposes, authorizes the Legislature to
impose taxes on motor vehicles and motor vehicle fuels, and requires the proceeds of such taxes to
be paid into the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund. The Minnesota Constitution requires that 95% of
the revenues deposited into the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund be distributed from such fund as
follows: 62% to the Trunk Highway Fund, 29% to the County State Aid Highway Fund, and 9% to the
Municipal State Aid Street Fund. The remaining 5% of Highway User Tax Distribution Fund revenues
are distributed to the same three funds in accordance with a formula that the Legislature establishes.
Currently these remaining revenues are all distributed to the County State Aid Highway Fund.
According to the Minnesota Constitution, no change in the distribution formula may be made within six
years of the last previous change. The current distribution formula was established in the 1997
legislative session. In 2007, the Legislature directed that from the 5% distribution in the County State
Aid Highway Fund $12.94 million in Fiscal Year 2008 and $15.23 million in Fiscal Year 2009 be
transferred to the Trunk Highway Fund.

In addition to distributions from the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund, the Trunk Highway Fund
receives revenue from deposits of federal aid reimbursements, drivers license fees (through Fiscal
Year 2005), investment income, and miscellaneous fees and reimbursements. A Minnesota motor fuel
tax is collected on all fuel used to propel vehicles on the public roads of the State and includes
gasoline, diesel fuel, and other special fuels. For gasoline and diesel fuel the current tax is twenty
cents per gallon; this rate was enacted in 1988. For some special fuels the rate is different and is
based on the equivalent energy content of the fuel compared to gasoline.

Preliminary revenues from motor fuels taxes were $644 million to the Highway User Tax
Distribution Fund in Fiscal Year 2007, after refunds, collection costs and other transfers (e.g.,
estimated revenues from taxes paid on non-highway fuel transferred to other state accounts). Of this
amount, $379 million was transferred to the Trunk Highway Fund. Revenues are estimated to increase
slightly due to increased vehicle miles traveled, offset by increases in fuel efficiency of the entire fleet
of vehicles. This would result in estimated collections of $654 million in Fiscal Year 2008 to the
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund, with a resulting transfer of $360 million to the Trunk Highway
Fund.

Motor vehicle registration taxes consist of taxes on passenger vehicles and on trucks. For
passenger vehicles the tax is $10 plus 1.25% times the original value of the vehicle, with all but the
$10 portion of the tax being decreased in accordance with a statutory schedule. However, the
maximum tax for the first renewal is $189 and for subsequent renewals is $99. The minimum tax is $35.
Motor vehicle registration taxes for trucks are based on the weight and age of the vehicles, with the
maximum tax being $1,760 for trucks registered at 80,000 pounds that are less than 9 years old.
Trucks registered at a weight greater than 80,000 pounds pay an additional $50 per ton of registered
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weight. Motor vehicle registration taxes generated an estimated $492 million in Fiscal Year 2006, after
refunds and collection costs, of which $283 million was transferred to the Trunk Highway Fund.
MnDOT estimates collections to be $484 million in Fiscal Year 2007 to the Highway User Tax
Distribution Fund, with a resulting transfer of $279 million to the Trunk Highway Fund.

The State of Minnesota has a sales tax of 6.5% on motor vehicles. Except for Fiscal Years 1985,
1988, 1989, and 1990, all of the revenue from the motor vehicle sales tax has been deposited into the
General Fund. Action by the 2000, 2001, and 2003 Legislatures changed this policy. In Fiscal Year
2002, $189.4 million or 30.86% of the revenue from this tax was deposited into the Highway User Tax
Distribution Fund. In fiscal years 2004-2007, 30% of the revenue from this tax were deposited into the
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund. The revenue received by the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund
from this source was $159 million in Fiscal Year 2007.

In November 2006 voters approved a constitutional amendment phasing in dedication of all motor
vehicle sales tax for transportation purposes over five years, starting July 1, 2007 (FY 2008). Projected
receipts from this source to the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund are expected to total $190 million
in FY 2008 and $230 million in FY 2009. The resulting distribution to the Trunk Highway Fund is
projected at $112 million in FY 2008 and $136 million in FY 2009.

The 2003 Legislature provided a $400 million bond authorization for trunk highway improvements.
This funding is to be used for “(1) trunk highway improvements within the seven-county metropolitan
area primarily for improving traffic flow” and for “(2) trunk highway improvements on at-risk interregional
corridors located outside the seven-county metropolitan area.” Up to $68 million of the bond proceeds
may be used for program delivery purposes, including engineering work by both consultants and
Mn/DOT staff needed to prepare plans and specifications used to solicit bids for construction
contracts, construction contract supervision and inspection, and a variety of other project-specific
support activities. The 2003 Legislature also authorized the Commissioner of Transportation to spend
up to $400 million of federal revenue designated as advance construction funds.

The following table shows the phase-in percentages and amounts of the motor vehicle sales tax
for Current Biennium based on February 2007 forecast.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
MOTOR VEHICLE SALES TAX DEDICATION
BY CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENT

($ in Millions)
FY 2008 FY 2009
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund ..... ... 38.25% $189.9 44.25% $230.5
General Fund .......... ... ... ... ... 36.25% 179.9 26.25% 136.7
Transit Assistance Fund ................... 25.50% 126.6 29.50% 153.7
100.00% 496.4 100.00% 520.9
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Activity in the Trunk Highway Fund for the Current Biennium is detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND

ESTIMATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

Estimated Resources
Balance Forward from Prior Year .
Prior Year Adjustments ..........

Revenues
Federal Grants ...............
Departmental Earnings
Investment Income
Other Income ................

Total Receipts

Transfers from Other Funds
General Fund Reimbursement .
County State Aid Highway Fund
HUTD Reimbursement ........

Hyw Users Tax Distribution Fund ................

Plant Management Fund
Special Revenue Fund ........

Transportation Revolving Loan Fund

Total Transfers
Total Resources Available ...

Estimated Uses
Expenditures
Transportation
Transportation, Department of .
Public Safety, Department of ..
Contingent Account

Subtotal-Transportation
State Government ............
Tort Claims

Subtotal-State Government .. ..
Total Expenditures ........

Transfers to Other Funds
Air Transportation Revolving . ..
Debt Service Fund

Total Transfers
Total Uses ...................

Undesignated Fund Balance

2007 LEGISLATIVE SESSION*
(Thousands of Dollars)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended Current

June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009 Biennium
................. $ 16,280 $ (69,951) $ 16,280
................. 0
16,280 (69,951) 16,280
................. 231,463 394,442 625,905
................. 8,358 8,358 16,716
................. 12,200 12,400 24,600
................. 61,182 61,182 122,364
................. 313,203 476,382 789,585
................. 4,801 4,801 9,602
................ 12,940 15,330 28,270
................. 610 610 1,220
766,196 795,082 1,561,278
................. 1,298 1,298 2,596
................. 1,915 2,175 4,090
------------ __ 4600 __ 4600
................. 792,360 819,296 1,611,656
................. 1,121,843 1,225,727 2,417,521
................. 1,058,632 1,074,457 2,133,089
................. 79,323 82,031 161,354
................. 200 200 400
................. 1,138,155 1,156,688 2,294,843
................. 600 600 1,200
................. 600 600 1,200
................. 1,138,755 1,157,288 2,296,043
................. 0
................. 53,039 53,354 106,393
................. 53,039 53,354 106,393
................. 1,191,794 1,210,642 2,402,436
............... $ (69,951) $ 15,085 $ 15,085

*Taking into effect Governor’s vetoes.
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The estimated expenditures for state road construction for the Current Biennium include the use
of State funds to advance the federal portion of certain projects under a method generally known as
“advance construction.”

Federal advance construction is a financing method authorized and promoted by the Federal
Highway Administration. It allows a state to encumber the necessary funds to begin construction of
federal-aid projects before the authorized federal funds are available for those projects. Advance
construction uses State trunk highway funds to “advance” federal project construction costs on
projects for which federal funds have been authorized but not yet appropriated for the current fiscal
year. The Trunk Highway Fund’s advances are later repaid during the year in which the funds are
appropriated by Congress. The receivable for the advance is recognized in the year the project is
encumbered. The appropriated amount of federal aid for a State fiscal year is then reduced by all
advance construction conversions in that State fiscal year and increased by all new advance
construction in that year.

Beginning in Fiscal Year 2005, transportation projects financed with bond proceeds were
segregated into a capital projects fund. This fund accounts for bond proceeds and the construction
expenditures paid with bond proceeds only. The State typically encumbers, and consequently
reserves fund balance, for the full contract amount of transportation projects when awarded. However,
bond revenues supporting these projects are not recorded until the bonds are sold. Because of the
timing of bond revenues and related capital expenditures, there may be temporary deficits in
unreserved fund balance. Bond funded capital projects are thus accounted for in a new capital
projects fund.

Capital Needs of the Trunk Highway System

The trunk highway system includes 11,914 miles of roadways and bridges. The State manages
the capital maintenance and upgrading of the trunk highway system, in partnership with the Federal
Highway Administration. It uses a planning process that includes a statewide transportation plan,
updated every six years, and an annual Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (“STIP”),
which details all highway construction and maintenance projects that are capital in nature. Projects
included in the STIP range from major construction, involving building new highways or rebuilding
highways that add additional traffic capacity, to less substantive improvements such as resurfacing
existing highways.

Recently, a planning process identified an ongoing need for upgrading interregional corridors
(between important regional centers of the State) and undertaking projects to eliminate “bottlenecks”
on metropolitan area freeways and expressways. Over a ten-year period more than $1 billion of needs
were identified in each of these two areas.
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The table below depicts the spending for highway construction and related purposes associated
with the appropriations made by the 2003 and 2004 Legislatures for the Current Biennium from the
proceeds of trunk highway bonds and 2005 Legislature for Trunk Highway Fund cash. No additional
bond authorizations have been made since that time. The last item in the table, “Program Delivery,” is
included to show the anticipated use of bond funds in the Current Biennium for that purpose. Program
delivery expenditures will also be made from other portions of Mn/DOT’s budget.

CURRENT BIENNIUM
TRUNK HIGHWAY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

($ in Millions)
Trunk Highway
Funds and Bond

Improvement Category Federal Funds Funds Total

Major Construction . ......... ... ... ... . ... ... $ 5245 $56.9 $ 581.4
Reconstruction ........ ... . 80.0 0 80.0
Bridge Replacement ........ ... ... .. ... . ... 30.0 0 30.0
Bridge Repair .......... . 10.0 0 10.0
Reconditioning .......... .. ... . 80.0 0 80.0
Resurfacing .......... ... . ... ... . . .. . .. 80.0 0 80.0
Road Repair ...... ... .. ... i 60.0 0 60.0
Safety ... 26.0 0 26.0
Traffic Management . ........ ... ... ... ... ... ..... 62.0 0 62.0
Municipal Agreements . .......... ... ... ... 441 0 441
Rightof Way .......... .. ... . .. 80.0 0 80.0
Miscellaneous Agreement . ....................... 25.8 0 25.8
Program Delivery ......... ... .. ... ... .. .. 0.0 0 0
Total oo $1,102.4" $56.9 $1,159.3

(1) The total expenditures, excluding the amount provided by bond funds, consists of $558.5 million
of state highway revenues and $543.9 million of federal funds.

Activity in the Trunk Highway Bond Fund for the Current Biennium is detailed below:

CURRENT BIENNIUM
ESTIMATED REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES
TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND BOND PROCEEDS

($ in Thousands)

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Ended Ended Current

Estimated Resources June 30, 2008 June 30, 2009 Biennium

Balance Forward from Prior Year .................. $37,007 $ (670) $37,007

Bond Sales Proceeds .............. ... .. .. .. ..... 14,000 5,975 19,975

Total Resources Available .................... $51,007 $5,305 $56,982
Estimated Uses
Expenditures

Transportation Expenditures .................... 51,667 5,305 56,982

Undesignated Fund Balance ................. $ (670) 3 0 3 0
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HISTORIC REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

The following two tables set forth the Trunk Highway Fund revenues and expenditures for the Fiscal Years

ending June 30, 2004 through June 30, 2006. For the Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2004 through June 30, 2006
the revenues and expenditures shown include all revenues and expenditures for each Fiscal Year, including
revenue received and expenditures made after June 30 of such Fiscal Year which are properly allocable to such
Fiscal Year. For the twelve-month periods ending June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007, such revenues and
expenditures include only cash receipts and disbursements allocable to Fiscal Years 2006 and 2007. The
schedules of revenues and expenditures are presented for comparison purposes only and are not intended to
reflect any increases or decreases in fund balance. Beginning balances or deficits are not included. The actual
expenditures set forth in the table on page 59 are presented by object of expenditure.

STATE OF MINNESOTA

TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES

(Thousands of Dollars)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 Jl#r,rl’uzg??s Ju'llxr‘:),uzg(:?e
2004 2005™ 2006 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007?®
Revenues:
Taxes:®
Motor Fuel .................. $ 391,162 $ 391,173 $ 390,294 $ 389,284 $ 378,607
Motor Vehicle® .. ... ... .. ... 304,771 304,364 301,974 302,732 298,583
Motor Vehicle Sales Tax ....... 104,929 98,894 95,033® 76,676 72,173®
Less: Revenue Refunds . ... ... (36,670) (35,855) (37,022) (36,771) (38,249)
Net Taxes .................. $ 764,192 $ 758,576 $ 750,279 $ 731,922 $ 711,115
Federal Grants ................ 300,580 354,299 361,175 308,021 480,193
Drivers License ............... 23,831 22,228 833 833 1,623
Penalties & Fines .............. 6,156 6,082 6,401 5,745 6,013
Investment Income . ............ 2,531 4,846 8,262 7,215 10,141
Local Government Contracts . . ... 28,295 20,937 86,461 86,443 16,874
Other Revenue . ............... 21,024 32,602 36,261 36,564 27,087
TH Revenue Refunds. ......... (1,957) (1,959) (2,085) (2,085) (70)
Total Revenues .............. $1,144,652 $1,197,611 $1,247 587 $1,174,658 $1,252,876

For Fiscal Years 2004, 2005 and 2006 the schedule of revenues includes all revenues for the fiscal year,
including revenue accruals at June 30.

For the twelve-month periods ended June 30, 2006, and June 30, 2007, only current year receipts have
been included.

These amounts represent the Trunk Highway Fund portion of the Motor Fuel, Motor Vehicle Registration, and
Motor Vehicle Sales Taxes to the Highway User Tax Distribution Fund.

The 2005 Legislature transferred revenues and corresponding collection expenses relating to driver’s
license from the Trunk Highway Fund to the Department of Public Safety Driver’'s Services Account in the
Special Revenue Fund. In Fiscal Year 2006 the first $833,000 collected and in Fiscal Year 2007 the first
$1,5623,000 collected was transferred back to the Trunk Highway Fund.

An additional transfer of $15.4 million for June 2006 was made on July 7, 2006, and an additional transfer
of $15.0 million for June 2007, was made on July 6, 2007.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA
TRUNK HIGHWAY FUND

COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS

Expenditures:
Personal Services ..............
Purchased Services ............
Materials and Supplies . ........
Capital Outlay:
Equipment ... .. ... ...
Capital Outlay & Real Property®
Encumbered® ... ... . ...,
Grants and Subsidies:
Individuals . ................
Counties ...................
Other ......... ... ... .. .....
All Other .....................

Total Expenditures . ..........
Transfers:

Debt Service .. ..............

Other Transfers . .............

Net Transfers ...............
Total Expenditures and Net
Transfers Out ..............

(Thousands of Dollars)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30

July 1, 2005
Through

July 1, 2006
Through

2004™M 2005 June 30, 2006 June 30, 2007
$ 295,593 $ 369,892 $ 355,263 $ 337,243 $ 341,490
87,099 122,885 83,528 82,549
47,251 64,919 51,855 55,826
13,124 28,131 14,566 18,404
665,871 641,805 185,107 208,443
0 0 439,221 585,025
1 25 40 20
219 168 64 70
908 949 898 822
12,896 5,655 6,308 7,818
$1,110,066 $1,234,429 $1,158,298 $1,118,830 $1,300,467
16,289 27,512 36,347 53,752
(7,081) (7,040) (12,542) (8,557)
$ 9,208 $ 20,472 $ $ 23,805 $ 45,195
$1,119,274 $1,254,901 $1,176,733 $1,142,635 $1,345,662

(1) For Fiscal Years 2004, 2005 and 2006, the schedule of expenditures includes all expenditures for the fiscal
year, and encumbrances outstanding as of June 30.

(2) For the twelve-month periods ended June 30, 2006 and June 30, 2007, only current year expenditures have

been included.

(8) Because construction contracts typically span into future Fiscal Years, and are encumbered in their entirety
in the appropriate Fiscal Year, materially large amounts of encumbrances exist at the end of a Fiscal Year.
For Fiscal Year 2004, 2005 and 2006, encumbrances have therefore been included in Capital Outlay and

Real Property totals.
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MINNESOTACARE® PROGRAM

The 1992 Legislature established the MinnesotaCare® program to provide subsidized health care
insurance for long term uninsured Minnesotans.

The program is not part of the General Fund. A separate fund, called the Health Care Access
Fund, was established as a special revenue fund to account for revenues and expenditures for the
MinnesotaCare® program. Program revenues are derived primarily from a 2 percent gross revenue tax
on hospitals, health care providers and wholesale drug distributors, and a 1 percent gross premium
tax on nonprofit health service plans and HMOs. The 2005 Legislature made changes in the
MinnesotaCare® program that shift many current recipients of General Assistance Medical Care,
another health insurance program funded out of the General Fund, to MinnesotaCare® starting in
Fiscal Year 2007. This will shift significant costs out of the General Fund and into the Health Care
Access Fund. The amounts to be transferred from the Health Care Access Fund to the General Fund
are set in law for the Current Biennium. The total amount to be transferred is $125.812 million.

Based on current tax levels, projected activity in the Health Care Access Fund for the Previous
Biennium and Current Biennium are detailed below:

MINNESOTACARE®
Previous Biennium
Health Care Access Fund

($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2005..................... $ 54
Revenues . ... .. 967
Total ResSources . ........... . 1,021
Expenditures. . ... ... ... ... ... 768
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007............ $ 253
Transfer to General Fund . ................................ 112
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30, 2007 ........... $ 141

MINNESOTACARE®
Current Biennium
Health Care Access Fund
($ in Millions)

Resources
Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2007 . .................... $ 141
Revenues . ... .. 1,090
Total ResSoUrces . ........... . 1,231
Expenditures........ ... .. ... 1,000
Projected Unreserved Balance at June 30, 2009............ $ 231
Transfer to General Fund .. ............................... 96
Projected Unrestricted Balance at June 30,2009 ........... $ 135
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SCHOOL DISTRICT CREDIT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM

Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.55 establishes a school district credit enhancement program.
The law authorizes and directs the Commissioner of Finance, under certain circumstances and
subject to the availability of funds, to issue a warrant and authorize the Commissioner of Education to
pay debt service due on school district tax and state-aid anticipation certificates of indebtedness,
certificates of indebtedness and capital notes for equipment, certificates of participation issued under
Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.40 Subdivision 6, and school district general obligation bonds, in
the event that the school district notifies the Commissioner of Education that it does not have sufficient
money in its debt service fund for this purpose, or the paying agent informs the Commissioner of
Education that it has not received from the school district timely payment of moneys to be used to pay
debt service. The legislation appropriates annually from the General Fund to the Commissioner of
Education the amounts needed to pay any warrants which are issued.

The amounts paid on behalf of any school district are required to be repaid by it with interest, by
the levy of an ad valorem tax which may be made with the approval of the Commissioner of Education.

Under State law school districts are authorized to issue tax and state aid anticipation certificates
of indebtedness in amounts not exceeding 75 percent of ad valorem taxes in the process of collection
and 75 percent of state aids in the process of collection. As of July 24, 2007, there were approximately
$315 million of certificates of indebtedness enrolled in the program all of which will mature within a
fourteen month period. The State expects that school districts will issue certificates of indebtedness
next year and will enroll these certificates in the program in about the same amount of principal as this
year.

School districts may issue certificates of indebtedness or capital notes to purchase certain
equipment. The certificates or notes may be issued by resolution of the board, must be payable in not
more than five years, and are payable from school district taxes levied within statutory limits.

Under Minnesota Statutes, Section 126C.40, Subdivision 6, certain school districts, with the
approval of the Commissioner of Education, may issue certificates of participation in installment
contracts for the purchase of real or personal property or in lease purchase agreements for the lease
with option to purchase of real or personal property. Such certificates of participation, contracts and
agreements are not general obligations of the school districts, but are payable from taxes levied
annually in amounts necessary to pay the amounts due thereunder.

School districts are authorized to issue general obligation bonds only when authorized by school
district electors or special law, and only after levying a direct, irrevocable ad valorem tax on all taxable
property in the school district for the years and in amounts sufficient to produce sums not less than
105 percent of the principal of and interest on the bonds when due. As of July 24, 2007 the total
amount of principal on certificates of indebtedness and capital notes issued for equipment, certificates
of participation and bonds, plus the interest on these obligations, through the year 2034, is
approximately $10.6 billion. However, more certificates of indebtedness, capital notes, certificates of
participation and bonds are expected to be enrolled in the program and these amounts are expected
to increase.

Based upon the amount of certificates of indebtedness and capital notes for equipment,
certificates of participation and bonds now enrolled in the program, during the Current Biennium the
total amount of principal and interest outstanding as of July 24, 2007 is about $1.8 billion, with the
maximum amount of principal and interest payable in any one month being $517 million.

Minnesota Laws 2005, Chapter 152, Article 1, Section 39, as amended by Minnesota Laws 2006,
Chapter 259, Article 12, Section 15, provides that the commissioner of Iron Range Resources and
Rehabilitation shall issue revenue bonds payable from certain taconite production tax revenues in a
total principal amount of $15,145,000, plus costs of issuance relating thereto, for the purpose of
making grants to school districts located in the taconite relief area or taconite assistance area, as
statutorily defined, to be used by such school districts for health, safety, and maintenance improvements.
Bonds issued under this program are debt obligations subject to the school district credit enhancement
program, provided that advances made by the State are not subject to the provisions of the school
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district credit enhancement program requiring the levy of an ad valorem tax by affected school
districts in order to repay the State. The commissioner of the Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation
Board issued $15,145,000 of the bonds in July, 2006.

The State has not had to make any debt service payments on behalf of school districts under the
program and does not expect to make any payments in the future. If such payments are made the
State expects to recover all or substantially all of the amounts so paid pursuant to contractual
agreements with the school districts.

COUNTY CREDIT ENHANCEMENT PROGRAM

Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.45 establishes a County Credit Enhancement Program. The law
authorizes and directs the Commissioner of Finance, under certain circumstances and subject to the
availability of funds, to issue a warrant and authorizes the Public Facilities Authority to pay debt
service coming due on certain county general obligation bonds, bonds to which the general obligation
of a county has been pledged under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.034 and certain lease
obligations, in the event that the county notifies the Public Facilities Authority that it does not have
sufficient money in its debt service fund for this purpose, or the paying agent informs the Public
Facilities Authority that it has not received from the county timely payment of moneys to be used to pay
debt service. The legislation appropriates annually from the General Fund to the Public Facilities
Authority the amounts needed to pay any warrants which are issued.

The amounts paid on behalf of any county are required to be repaid by it with interest, either
through a reduction of subsequent state-aid payments or by the levy of an ad valorem tax which may
be made with the approval of the Public Facilities Authority.

Bonds to which the general obligation of a county is pledged are supported by the levy of a
direct, irrevocable ad valorem tax on all taxable property in the county for the years and in amounts
sufficient to produce sums not less than 5 percent in excess of the principal of and interest on the
bonds when due.

Counties are authorized under Minnesota Statutes, Section 641.24 to enter into lease agreements
with certain governmental units for the acquisition of jail or other law enforcement facilities. Counties
provide for payment of rentals under such leases through the levy of a tax without limitation as to rate
or amount.

The program enrolls general obligation bonds issued for the following purposes: jails, correctional
facilities, law enforcement facilities, social services and human services facilities, solid waste facilities,
and qualified housing development projects; and lease obligations for the purposes as specified
above.

The County Credit Enhancement Program is administered by the Minnesota Public Facilities
Authority.

As of July 24, 2007, the total amount of principal on bonds plus interest on the bonds enrolled in
the program, through the year 2031, is approximately $213 million. More bonds are expected to be
enrolled in the program and these amounts are expected to increase.

Based upon the bonds enrolled in the program, during the Current Biennium the total amount of
principal and interest outstanding as of July 24, 2007 is $27.1 million with the maximum amount of
principal and interest payable in any one month being $9.5 million. The State has not had to make any
debt service payments on behalf of counties under the program and does not expect to make any
payments in the future. If such payments are made the State expects to recover all or substantially all
of the amounts so paid pursuant to contractual agreements with the counties.
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m N  OFFICE OF THE LEGISLATIVE AUDITOR

State of Minnesota ¢ James Nobles, Legislative Auditor

Independent Auditor’s Report

Members of the Minnesota State Legislature
The Honorable Tim Pawlenty, Governor

Ms. Peggy Ingison, Commissioner of Finance

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of Minnesota, as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2006, which collectively comprise the state’s basic financial statements as listed
in the Table of Contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the State of
Minnesota’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Minnesota State Colleges
and Universities, which is both a major proprietary fund and 73 percent, 67 percent, and 34
percent, respectively, of the total assets, net assets, and operating revenues of the primary
government’s business-type activities. We also did not audit the financial statements of the
Housing Finance Agency, Metropolitan Council, University of Minnesota, Minnesota
Partnership for Action Against Tobacco, National Sports Center Foundation, Office of Higher
Education, Public Facilities Authority, and Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan, which
cumulatively represent 99 percent, 99 percent, and 99 percent, respectively, of the total assets,
net assets, and operating revenues of the total discretely presented component units. Those
financial statements were audited by other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to
us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the aforementioned major
proprietary fund, business-type activities, and discretely presented component units, is based
solely on the reports of other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based upon our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements

referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented

Room 140, 658 Cedar Street, St. Paul, Minnesota 55155-1603 * Tel: 651/296-4708 <+ Fax: 651/296-4712

E-mail: auditor@state.mn.us ¢ TDD Relay: 651/297-5353 <+ Website: www.auditor.leg.state.mn.us
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Members of the Minnesota State Legislature
The Honorable Tim Pawlenty, Governor

Ms. Peggy Ingison, Commissioner of Finance
Page 2

component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the State of
Minnesota as of June 30, 2006, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information, as
listed in the Table of Contents, are not a required part of the State of Minnesota’s basic financial
statements, but are supplementary information required by accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. We and the other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not
audit the information and express no opinion on it.

SR Ot b Stk

James R. Nobles Cecile M. Ferkul, CPA
Legislative Auditor Deputy Legislative Auditor

December 14, 2006
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State of Minnesota

2006 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Introduction

The following discussion and analysis of the state of Minnesota (state) financial performance provides an
overview of the state’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006, and identifies changes
in the financial position of the state, which occurred during the fiscal year. This section should be read in
conjunction with the preceding transmittal letter and the state’s financial statements and notes to the
financial statements, which follow.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The focus of Minnesota’s financial reporting is on the state as a whole, and on the individual funds that
are considered to be major. This reporting focus presents a more comprehensive view of Minnesota'’s
financial activities and financial position, and makes the comparison of Minnesota’s government to other
governments easier.

The financial section of this annual report has four parts:

= Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

= Basic Financial Statements

= Required Supplementary Information

= Combining and Individual Fund Statements — Nonmajor Funds

The report also includes statistical and economic information, which generally provides a ten-year history
of various indicators.

The basic financial statements include government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements that provide more detailed information to the users of the financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide an overall view of the state’s operations in a manner
similar to a private-sector business. Government-wide financial statements consist of the statement of net
assets and the statement of activities that are prepared using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All current year revenues and expenses are included in the
statements regardless of whether the related cash has been received or paid. Revenues and expenses
are reported in the statement of activities for some items that will not result in cash flows until future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, accounts receivable, and earned but unused vacation leave). This
reporting method produces a view of financial activities and position similar to that presented by most
private-sector companies. The statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the
state’s financial position, which assists readers in assessing the state’s economic condition at the end of
the fiscal year.
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The government-wide financial statements are located immediately following this discussion and analysis.

The statement of net assets presents all of the state’s financial resources along with capital assets and
long-term obligations. The statement includes all assets and liabilities of the state. Net assets is the
difference between assets and liabilities and is one method to measure the state’s financial condition.

= An increase or decrease in the state’s net assets from one year to the next indicates whether the
financial position of the state is improving or deteriorating.

= Other indicators of the state’s financial condition include the condition of its infrastructure, and
economic events and trends that affect future revenues and expenses.

The statement of activities presents the changes in net assets and reports on the gross and net cost of
various activities carried out by the state (governmental, business-type, and component units). These
costs are paid by general taxes and other revenues generated by the state. This statement summarizes
the cost of providing specific services by the government, and includes all current year revenues and
expenses.

The statement of net assets and the statement of activities segregate the activities of the state into three
types:

Governmental Activities

The governmental activities of the state include most basic services such as environmental resources,
general government, transportation, education, health and human services, and protection of persons and
property. Most of the costs of these activities are financed by taxes, fees, and federal grants.

Business-type Activities

The business-type activities of the state normally are intended to recover all, or a significant portion of,
their costs through user fees and charges to external users of goods and services. The operations of the
Unemployment Insurance Fund, the State Colleges and Universities, and the Lottery are examples of
business-type activities.

Discretely Presented Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the state is financially accountable, or the
nature and significance of the unit’s relationship with the state is such that exclusion of the unit would
cause the state’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Financial accountability is defined
as the appointment of a voting majority of the component unit governing body, and either a) the ability of
the state to impose its will, or b) the potential for the organization to provide financial benefits to, or
impose financial burdens on, the primary government.

The state’s ten component units are reported in two categories: major and nonmajor. This categorization
is based on the relative size of an individual component unit's assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses
in relation to the total of all component units and the primary government.

The state’s three discretely presented major component units are:

= Housing Finance Agency

= Metropolitan Council

= University of Minnesota



The state’s seven nonmajor component units are combined into a single column for reporting in the fund
financial statements. These nonmajor component units are:

= Agricultural and Economic Development Board

= Minnesota Partnership for Action Against Tobacco

= National Sports Center Foundation

= Office of Higher Education

= Public Facilities Authority

= Rural Finance Authority

= Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan

State Fund and Component Unit Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related self-balancing accounts used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The state of Minnesota, like other state and local
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements.

Fund financial statements present financial information in a format familiar to experienced users of
governmental financial statements and reports. The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of
the state, reporting the state’s operations in more detail than in the government-wide statements. Fund
financial statements focus on the most significant funds within the state.

The state’s funds are divided into three categories:
Governmental Funds

Governmental funds record most of the basic services provided by the state and account for essentially
the same functions as reported in the governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Unlike the government-wide financial statements, the fund financial statements focus on how
money flows in and out of the funds during a fiscal year, and spendable resources available at the end of
the fiscal year.

Governmental funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting, which recognizes
revenues when they are available and measurable. Expenditures are generally recognized in the
accounting period when the fund liability is incurred, if measurable. This approach is known as the flow of
current financial resources measurement focus. These statements provide a detailed short-term view of
the state’s finances that assists in determining whether there are more or less resources available and
whether these financial resources will be adequate to meet the current needs of the state. Governmental
funds include the General, special revenue, capital project, Debt Service, and permanent funds.

The focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements. It is
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By comparing this financial
information, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the state’s short-term financing
decisions.

The basic financial statements include a reconciliation of governmental funds to governmental activities.
These reconciliations follow the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances.



The state maintains 28 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures,
and changes in fund balances for the General and Federal funds, which are reported as major funds.
Information from the remaining 26 funds is combined into a single, aggregated column. Individual fund
data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
included in this report.

The state adopts a biennial budget with annual appropriations for the General Fund. A budgetary
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund to demonstrate compliance with this
budget.

Proprietary Funds

When the state charges customers for the services it provides, whether to outside customers or to other
agencies within the state, these services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds
(enterprise and internal service) utilize accrual accounting which is the same method used by private-
sector businesses. Proprietary fund financial statements provide the same type of information as the
government-wide financial statements, only in more detail.

Enterprise funds, a type of proprietary funds, are used to report activities that provide goods and services
to outside (non-government) customers, including the general public. Internal service funds are an
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally for goods and services provided by
one program of the state to another. Because the activities reported by internal service funds
predominantly benefit governmental functions rather than business-type functions, the internal service
funds have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.

The state maintains 16 individual proprietary funds. The State Colleges and Universities and
Unemployment Insurance funds, both of which are considered major funds, are presented separately in
the proprietary funds statement of net assets and in the proprietary funds statement of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets. Information from the 7 nonmajor enterprise funds and the 7
internal service funds are combined into two separate aggregated columns. Individual fund data for each
of these nonmajor proprietary funds is provided in the form of combining statements presented in this
report.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to report activities when the state acts as a trustee or fiduciary to hold resources
for the benefit of parties outside the state. The accrual basis of accounting is used for fiduciary funds and
is similar to the accounting used for proprietary funds. The government-wide statements exclude
fiduciary fund activities and balances because these assets are restricted in purpose and cannot be used
by the state to finance its operations. The state must assure that the assets reported in fiduciary funds
are used for their intended purposes.

The state maintains 19 individual fiduciary funds. The state’s fiduciary funds are the pension trust funds,
the investment trust funds (which accounts for the transactions, assets, liabilities, and fund equity of the
external investment pool), and the Agency Fund (which accounts for the assets held for distribution by the
state as an agent for other governmental units, other organizations, or individuals). Individual fund detail
is included in the combining financial statements included in this report.

Component Units

Component units are legally separate organizations for which the state is financially accountable. The
government-wide financial statements present information for the component units in a single column on
the statement of net assets. Also, some information on the statement of changes in net assets is
aggregated for component units. The component units statements of net assets and the component units
statement of changes in net assets provide detail for each major component unit and aggregate the detail
for nonmajor component units. Individual nonmajor component unit detail can be found in the combining
financial statements included in this report. A statement of cash flows is included for the two nonmajor
component units that do not issue separately audited financial statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional narrative and financial information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. The
notes to the financial statements are located immediately following component unit financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information that
further explains and supports the information in the financial statements. This section includes
maintenance data regarding certain portions of the state’s infrastructure, actuarial measures of pension
funding progress, and public employees insurance program development information.

Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes combining financial statements for nonmajor governmental,
proprietary, and fiduciary funds and nonmajor discretely presented component units. These funds are
added together by fund type and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements.

Financial Highlights
Government-wide

* The assets of the state exceeded liabilities at June 30, 2006, by $11.4 billion (presented as net
assets). Of this amount, $648 million was reported as unrestricted net assets. Unrestricted net assets
represent the amount available to the state to meet ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
However, many of the resources have internally imposed designations, such as state statutory
language, which limit resource use. These assets are not reported as restricted net assets because
the limitations are imposed internally by the state, not externally imposed by sources such as
creditors or the constitution.

= The state’s total net assets increased by $2.257 billion (24.7 percent) during fiscal year 2006. Net
assets of governmental activities increased by $1.878 billion (24.3 percent), while net assets of the
business-type activities showed an increase of $379 million (27.0 percent).

Fund Level

= At the end of the current fiscal year, governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance of
$4.551 billion, an increase of $995 million compared to the prior year. This amount includes an
unreserved fund balance of $1.517 billion.

Long-Term Debt

= The state’s total long-term debt obligations decreased by $106 million (1.9 percent) during the current
fiscal year. The decrease is primarily due to a decrease in the claims payable of $426 million. This
decrease is primarily the result of discounting the liability related to the supplementary and second
injury workers’ compensation injuries to present value during the current year. This decrease was
offset by an increase in capital leases payable for two buildings leased from the St. Paul Port
Authority in governmental activities of $180 million and issuance of general obligation bonds for the
trunk highway projects and other various state purposes.



Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. The
state’s combined net assets (governmental and business-type activities) totaled $11.383 billion at the end
of 2006, compared to $9.126 billion at the end of the previous year.

Net Assets
June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Current Assets $ 8953370 § 8,146,869 $ 1233116 § 941984 § 10186486 $ 9,083,853
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets 9,171,111 8,413,867 1,186,102 1,110,287 10,357,213 9,524,154
Other Assets 738,563 718,969 89,839 52,664 828,402 771,633
Total Assets $ 18,863,044  § 17,279,705 $ 2,509,057 § 2,104,935 $ 21,372,101 $ 19,384,640
Current Liabilities $ 4616173 § 4,833,877 $ 304511 § 342,004 $ 4920684 $ 5,175,881
Noncurrent Liabilities 4,646,661 4,723,597 421,395 358,796 5,068,056 5,082,393
Total Liabilities $ 9262834 $ 9,557,474 $ 725906 § 700,800 $§ 9983740 $ 10,258,274
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt $ 6,468,103 $ 5,943,503 $ 931297 § 884486 $§ 7399400 $ 6,827,989
Restricted 2,482,626 2,452,423 852,943 520,745 3,335,569 2,973,168
Unrestricted 649,481 (673,695) (1,089) -(1,096) 648,392 (674,791)

Total Net Assets $ 9600210 § 7,722,231 $ 1,783,151  $ 1,404,135 $ 11,383,361 $ 9,126,366

The largest portion, $7.4 billion of $11.4 billion, of the state’s net assets reflects investment in capital
assets such as land, buildings, equipment, and infrastructure (pavement, bridges, and other immovable
assets), less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The state uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens. Capital assets are not considered to be convertible to cash and
cannot be used to fund the daily activities of the state or pay for the debt related to capital assets.
Therefore, the resources needed to repay this debt related to capital assets must be provided from other
sources.

Approximately $3.3 billion of the state’s net assets represent resources subject to external restrictions,
constitutional provisions, or enabling legislation, which restricts how these assets may be used.

The remaining net assets balance of $648 million represents primarily unrestricted net assets of the
governmental activities that may be used to meet the state’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
As noted previously, within this balance, many of the resources have internally imposed designations,
such as state statutory language, which limit resource use. These assets are not reported as restricted
net assets because the limitations are imposed internally by the state, not externally imposed by sources
such as creditors.
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The state’'s combined net assets for governmental and business-type activities increased $2.257 billion
(24.7 percent) over the course of this fiscal year. This resulted from a $1.878 million (24.3 percent)
increase in net assets of governmental activities, and a $379 million (27.0 percent) increase in net assets

of business-type activities.

Revenues:
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and
Contributions

Capital Grants
General Revenues:
Individual Income Taxes
Corporate Income Taxes
Sales Taxes
Property Taxes
Motor Vehicle Taxes
Fuel Taxes
Other Taxes
Tobacco Settlement
Investment/Interest Income
Other Revenues
Total Revenues
Expenses:
Public Safety and Corrections
Transportation

Agricultural and Environmental
Resources

Economic and Workforce
Development

General Education
Higher Education
Health and Human Services
General Government
Intergovernmental Aid
Interest
State Colleges and Universities
Unemployment Insurance
Lottery
Other
Total Expenses

Excess (Deficiency) Before
Transfers

Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net Assets, Beginning

Prior Period Adjustments
Net Assets, Ending

Changes in Net Assets
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Total Primary Government

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
$ 1,358,286 $ 1,144,454 §$ 2376805 $ 2,136,827 $ 3735091 $ 3,281,281
5,694,003 5,556,221 176,023 198,217 5,870,026 5,754,438
452,197 261,236 1,963 1,687 454,160 262,923
7,069,242 6,556,331 - - 7,069,242 6,556,331
1,189,328 702,839 - - 1,189,328 702,839
4,439,667 4,269,837 - - 4,439,667 4,269,837
633,288 603,412 - - 633,288 603,412
539,468 552,856 - - 539,468 552,856
659,980 652,493 - - 659,980 652,493
2,663,939 2,417,175 - - 2,663,939 2,417,175
184,139 178,177 - - 184,139 178,177
101,803 42,753 18,300 9,264 120,103 52,017
28,447 63,182 17,141 12,240 45,588 75,422
$ 25013787 $ 23,000,966 $ 2,500,232 $ 2358235 $ 27,604,019 $ 25359,201
$ 818192 § 764,307 § -3 - $ 818192 $ 764,307
1,791,316 1,685,256 - - 1,791,316 1,685,256
525,251 612,566 - - 525,251 612,566
273,510 505,901 - - 273,510 505,901
7,336,455 6,820,389 - - 7,336,455 6,820,389
786,563 762,092 - . 786,563 762,092
8,823,115 8,466,865 - - 8,823,115 8,466,865
718,996 654,758 - - 718,996 654,758
1,400,479 1,284,576 - - 1,400,479 1,284,576
172,612 184,573 - - 172,612 184,573
- - 1,479,519 1,394,893 1,479,519 1,394,893
- - 690,713 686,818 690,713 686,818
- - 332,031 302,575 332,031 302,575
- - 183,043 172,886 183,043 172,886
$ 20,646,480 § 21,741,083  § 2,685,306 $ 2557172 $ 25331795 $ 24298455
$ 2367298 $ 1,250,683 $ (95074) $ (198,937) $ 2,272,224 $ 1,060,746
(474,090) (425,180) 474,090 425,180 - -
$ 1893208 $ 834503 $ 379,016 $ 226243 $ 2272224 $ 1,060,746
$ 7722231 $ 6925577 $ 1,404,135 $ 1,177,892 $ 9,126,366 $ 8,103,469
(15,229) (37,849) - - (15,229) (37,849)
§ 9,600,210 § 7,722,231 § 1,783,151 § 1,404,135 § 11,383,361 & 9,126,366
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Approximately 62 percent of the state’s total revenue (governmental and business-type activities) came
from taxes, while 23 percent resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for
various goods and services provided 14 percent of the total revenues. The remaining 1 percent came
from other general revenues.

The state’s expenses cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general education, and
health and human services.

Governmental Activities

Governmental activities increased the state’s net assets by $1.878 billion. The increase in revenues was
primarily attributable to the continued strengthening economy resulting in increases in income and sales
taxes as well as a new revenue stream in the Health Impact Fund for fees imposed on cigarette and
tobacco products distributors that is transferred to the General Fund of approximately $200 million.

General Revenues - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

2006 W 2005

$8,000,000
$7,000,000 -

$6,000,000 -
$5,000,000 -
$4,000,000 -
$3,000,000 -

$2,000,000 -
$1,000,000 -

77777777/
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Functional Expenses - Governmental Activities
Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

N2006 M 2005 1

$10,000,000
$9,000,000
$8,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
$-

The increase in revenues was partially offset by an increase in General Education and Health and Human
Services expenditures. General Education expenditures increased due to a 4 percent increase in per
pupil general education formula and a one-time reversal of a prior year reduction in aid payments. Health
and Human Services expenditures increased primarily due to growth in health care programs such as
Medical Assistance and General Assistance Medical Care resulting from increased caseloads and
increased average health care costs.

Business-type Activities

The state’s proprietary funds net assets increased by $379 million during the current year. This primarily
resulted from a $301 million increase in net assets in the Unemployment Insurance Fund due to an
increase in insurance premiums. The remaining increase of $78 million resulted primarily from an
increase in General Fund transfers to the State Colleges and Universities Fund as a result of funding
additional construction activity.

Charges for Services - Business-type Activities
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

N2006 mW2005

$1,200,000

$1,000,000

$800,000

$600,000 +

$400,000

$200,000

$. b -
State Colleges & Unemployment Lottery Other
Universities Insurance
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State Funds Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, the state uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. '

Governmental Funds

The focus of the state’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term cash inflows and
outflows during the fiscal year, and balances of spendable resources as of fiscal year end. Such
information is useful in assessing the state’s financing requirements. Unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of the state’s net resources available for future spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the state’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund
balances of $4.551 billion, an increase of $995 million in comparison with the prior year.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the state. At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved
fund balance of the General Fund was $610 million, an increase of $678 million in comparison with the
prior year. This improvement primarily resulted from an increase in sales and income tax receipts due to
a continued rebound of the economy through increased job growth. The increase in corporate income
taxes included a revised reduction in the estimated liability from the prior year for the Hutchinson
Technology Minnesota Supreme Court ruling liability. The increase is also attributable to a new revenue
stream in the Health Impact Fund for fees imposed on cigarette and tobacco products distributors that is
transferred to the General Fund of approximately $200 million. The increase in revenues was also
partially offset by an increase in General Education for increased state general education aid formula
expenditures and Health and Human Services expenditures for increased caseloads in health care
programs.

Proprietary Funds

The statements for proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide
financial statements, but in more detail.

The state’s proprietary funds net assets increased by $379 million during the current year. This resulted
from a $301 million increase in net assets in the Unemployment Insurance Fund and an increase of $78
million in net assets of the State Colleges and Universities Fund.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

Based on the November 2005 and February 2006 forecasts, the state’s financial outlook has improved
since the fiscal year 2006 budget was enacted during the 2005 legislative session. This improvement
was primarily caused by a projected increase in income and corporate taxes as well as sales tax. The
increase in revenues during fiscal year 2006 was used to restore budgetary reserves and buy back $338
million in the school aid shift, which increased General Education budgetary expenditures.

There were no net over-expenditures or line-item over-expenditures by the General Fund departments
during the current fiscal year.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

The state’s investment in capital assets for governmental and business-type activities as of June 30,
2006, was $12.4 billion, less accumulated depreciation of $2.0 billion, resulting in a net book value of
$10.4 billion. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, equipment, infrastructure, and
construction in progress. Infrastructure assets are long-lived capital assets, such as pavement, bridges,
tunnels, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items that are normally stationary in nature.
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Capital Assets
June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
Capital Assets not Depreciated:
Land $ 1680456 $ 1,559,646 $ 76365 $§ 74828 $§ 1,756,821 $ 1,634,474
Buildings, Structures, Improvements 27,328 26,624 - - 27,328 26,624
Construction in Progress 108,217 193,137 104,354 54,170 212,571 247,307
Infrastructure 5,965,253 5,519,129 - - 5,965,253 5,519,129
Art and Historical Treasures 500 500 - - 500 500

Total Capital Assets not Depreciated $ 7,781,754 $ 7,299,036 $ 180,719 $ 128,998 $ 7962473 $ 7,428,034

Capital Assets Depreciated:

Buildings, Structures, Improvements $ 1,871,213 $ 1,573,229 $ 1,779,350  $ 1,704,480 $ 3650563 $ 3,277,709
Infrastructure 49,250 49,201 - - 49,250 49,201
Library Collections - - 48,505 48,059 48,505 48,059
Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 388,834 374,985 275,915 280,248 664,749 655,233
Total Capital Assets Depreciated $ 2,309,297 $ 1,997,415 $ 2,103,770 $ 2,032,787 $ 4,413,067 $ 4,030,202
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 919,940 882,584 1,098,387 1,051,498 2,018,327 1,934,082
Capital Assets Net of Depreciation $ 1,389,357 $ 1,114,831 $ 1,005383 $ 981,289 $ 2,394,740 $ 2,096,120
Total $ 9,171,111 $ 8,413,867 $ 1,186,102 $ 1,110,287 $ 10,357,213 $ 9,524,154

The state uses the modified approach for reporting selected infrastructure assets. The modified approach
requires that the state meet certain requirements regarding the inventory and maintenance of eligible
capital assets, including condition assessments. Under the modified approach, assets are not
depreciated and certain maintenance and preservation costs associated with those assets are expensed.
Assets accounted for under this approach include approximately 29,000 lane miles of pavement and
3,200 bridges that are maintained by the Minnesota Department of Transportation.

The state’s goal is to maintain pavement at, or above, a 3.0 Pavement Quality Index (PQI) for all principal
arterial pavement and at, or above, a 2.8 PQI for all other pavement. The most recent condition
assessment, completed for calendar year 2005, indicated that the average PQI for principal arterial
pavement was 3.4 and 3.2 for all other pavements. The state has maintained a stable condition of
pavement over the past four years.

The state’s goal is to have over 92 percent of principal arterial system bridges and 80 percent of all other
system bridges in fair to good condition. The most recent condition assessment, completed for calendar
year 2005, indicated that 96 percent of principal arterial system bridges and 95 percent of all other system
bridges were in fair to good condition. The state has also maintained a stable condition of bridges over
the past several years.

Additional information on the state’s capital assets and infrastructure under the modified approach is
included in Note 6 — Capital Assets of the notes to the financial statements and in the required
supplementary information, respectively.

Debt Administration

The authority of the state to incur debt is described in Article XI, Sections 5 and 7, of the state’s

constitution. General obligation bonds, issued by the state, are backed by the full faith, credit, and taxing
powers of the state.
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The state’s general obligation bonds are rated as follows:
= Aa1l by Moody’s Investors Service

= AAA by Standard & Poors

= AAA by Fitch Ratings

The state also issues revenue bonds, which are payable solely from rentals, revenues, and other income,
charges and monies that were pledged for repayment.

Outstanding Bonded Debt
June 30, 2006 and 2005
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
General Obligation $ 3,414,239 $ 3,315,282 $ 156,896 $ 145,028 $ 3,571,135 $ 3,460,310
Revenue - - 95,780 52,475 95,780 52,475
Total $ 3,414,239 $ 3,315,282 $ 252,676 $ 197,503 $ 3,666,915 $ 3,512,785

During fiscal year 2006, the state issued the following bonds:

= $285.4 million in general obligation state various purpose bonds

»  $111.6 million in general obligation state trunk highway bonds

= $45.3 million in revenue bonds for Minnesota State Colleges and Universities

In addition to the general obligation bonds noted above, the state issued $161 million of refunding bonds
in October 2005.

Additional information on the state’s long-term debt obligations is located in Note 12 — General Long-
Term Obligations in the notes to the financial statements.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with a
general overview of the state’s finances and to demonstrate the state’s accountability for the money it
receives.

Questions about this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the

Minnesota Department of Finance, 400 Centennial Office Building, 658 Cedar Street, Saint Paul,
Minnesota, 55155.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Investments................
Accounts Receivable...
Due from Component Units ....
Due from Primary Government .....
Accrued Investment/Interest Income.
Federal Aid Receivable..
Inventories.........cceceeeeenn.
Loans and Notes Receivable..
Internal Balances...............
Securities Lending Collateral
Other Assets

Total Current Assets.............coeecuviiiiiinnnn.

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Restricted...
Investments-Restricted
Accounts Receivable-Restricted

Due from Primary Government.........................

Other Assets-Restricted

Due from Component Units.............ccoceevveennnn

Investments
Accounts Receivable
Loans and Notes Receivable
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net)...
Nondepreciable Capital Assets ..
Infrastructure (Not depreciated)
Other Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets..

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Component Units...
Due to Primary Government
Unearned Revenue.........
Accrued Interest Payable..........
General Obligation Bonds Payable.
Bond Premium Payable.......
Loans and Notes Payable.
Revenue Bonds Payable
Claims Payable.................
Compensated Absences Payable
Workers' Compensation Liability.
Capital Leases Payable..........
Securities Lending Liabilities
Other Liabilities....

Total Current Liabilities.............

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accounts Payable-Restricted...
Unearned Revenue-Restricted...
Accrued Interest Payable-Restricted.
Due to Primary Government
Unearned Revenue..................
General Obligation Bonds Payable
Bond Premium Payable....
Loans and Notes Payable.
Revenue Bonds Payable
Claims Payable ................
Compensated Absences Payable..
Workers' Compensation Liability
Capital Leases Payable..
Funds Held in Trust.....
Due to Component Units
Other Liabilities...........c.cceuee.

Total Noncurrent Liabilities.................cco.eeet.

Total Liabilities.........cccccooviviiiniiieeen,

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS

$ 4,513,051 $ 730,097 $ 5243148 $ 1,327,135

1,193,163 26,025 1,219,188 1,096,391

1,833,169 450,957 2,284,126 319,803

56,900 - 56,900 -

- - - 156,098

56,625 18 56,643 38,343

685,091 11,769 696,860 2,318

19,595 18,336 37,931 35,028

69,531 7,820 77,351 88,544

37,621 (37,621) - -

487,003 21,954 508,957 209,453

1,621 3,761 5,382 62,062

$ 8,953,370 $ 1,233,116 $ 10,186,486 $ 3,335,175

$ - $ 62,767 $ 62,767 $ 365,092

- - - 154,623

- - - 24,255

- - - 22,940

- 102 102 10,387

101,843 - 101,843 -

- - - 2,954,159

310,183 - 310,183 427,018

272,565 26,970 299,535 3,798,853

1,389,357 1,005,383 2,394,740 3,745,478

1,816,501 180,719 1,997,220 465,435

5,965,253 - 5,965,253 -

53,972 - 53,972 10,893

$ 9,909,674 $ 1,275,941 $ 11,185,615 $ 11,979,133

$ 18,863,044 $ 2,509,057 $ 21,372,101 $ 15,314,308

$ 2,967,438 $ 190,889 $ 3,158,327 $ 206,408

114,745 - 114,745 -

- - - 66,594

503,854 45,288 549,142 174,396

69,706 218 69,924 62,002

301,856 11,468 313,324 215,787

13,448 - 13,448 .

13,444 1,101 14,545 161,456

- 2,910 2,910 447,362

97,102 - 97,102 108,888

26,121 14,285 40,406 150,889

13,308 1,633 14,941 -

8,148 2,514 10,662 -

487,003 21,954 508,957 209,453

- 12,251 12,251 40,638

$ 4,616,173 $ 304,511 $ 4,920,684 $ 1,843,873

$ . $ . $ - $ 91,197

) ) - 83,484

- - - 8,764

- - - 101,843

- - - 5,085

3,112,383 145,428 3,257,811 1,253,833

187,694 7,735 195,429 -

32,474 4,731 37,205 4,945

- 92,870 92,870 3,068,120

795,511 - 795,511 563,830

220,242 107,685 327,927 18,968

96,097 3,778 99,875 -

174,782 24,006 198,788 -

- - - 83,691

22,940 - 22,940 -

4,538 35,162 39,700 61,375

$ 4,646,661 $ 421,395 $ 5,068,056 $ 5345135

$ 9,262,834 $ 725,906 $ 9,988,740 $ 7,189,008

CONTINUED
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
GOVERNMENTAL BUSINESS-TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt..............cc.ocoovviiiiiiinn, $ 6,468,103 $ 931,297 $ 7,399,400 $ 2,700,041
Restricted for:
Capital Projects........cc.cvveiiiviniiienine s $ 15,886 $ - $ 15,886 $ -
Debt Service.........ooovvviiiiiiii i 385,870 - 385,870 -
Transportation...........ooveiin i 708,474 - 708,474 -
Environmental Resources............... 581,322 - 581,322 -
Economic and Workforce Development 59,334 3,999 63,333 -
School Aid-Nonexpendable . . 642,695 - 642,695 -
School Aid-Expendable....... . 89,045 - 89,045 -
Health & Human Services. . - 28,724 28,724 -
Unemployment Benefits............coooeviniinennns - 518,336 518,336 -
State Colleges and Universities........................ - 277,878 277,878 -
Other Purposes .. - 24,006 24,006
Component Units.........coooveiiiiniiiinenenne, - - - 4,761,535
Total Restricted.............ccoocviiiiiininn, $ 2,482,626 $ 852,943 $ 3,335,569 $ 4,761,535
Unrestricted .......ooooiiiii $ 649,481 $ (1,089) $ 648,392 $ 663,724
Total Net ASSets......cccooveeiiiiiiiiiicieieeeiee $ 9,600,210 $ 1,783,151 $ 11,383,361 $ 8,125,300

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)
PROGRAM REVENUES
OPERATING CAPITAL
CHARGES GRANTS AND GRANTS AND
FOR CONTRIBU- CONTRIBU-
FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS EXPENSES SERVICES TIONS TIONS
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
Public Safety and Corrections.......................... $ 818,192 $ 174,807 $ 141,550 $ -
Transportation...............ooooi i 1,791,316 19,226 237,994 452,197
Agricultural and Environmental Resources.......... 525,251 218,376 72,039 -
Economic and Workforce Development.............. 273,510 214,650 306,765 -
General Education...................cocco v 7,336,455 38,808 650,044 -
Higher Education..............ocooiii i 786,563 - - -
Health and Human Services............................ 8,823,115 447,404 4,187,909 -
General Government................coooviiiiei e 718,996 245,015 97,702 -
Intergovernment Aid..................c, 1,400,479 - - -
Interest ... 172,612 - - -
Total Governmental Activities....................... $ 22,646,489 $ 1,358,286 $ 5,694,003 $ 452,197
Business-type Activities:
State Colleges and Universities ....................... $ 1,479,519 $ 694,053 $ 176,023 $ 1,963
Unemployment Insurance............ccoceevieineeen, 690,713 1,054,227 - -
Lottery. ... 332,031 449,761 - -
Other... ..o 183,043 178,764 - -
Total Business-type Activities........................ $ 2,685,306 $ 2,376,805 $ 176,023 3 1,963
Total Primary Government....................... $ 25,331,795 $ 3,735,091 $ 5,870,026 $ 454,160
Component Units:
University of Minnesota...............ccoooiviiiinienn . $ 2,591,507 $ 1,139,917 $ 698,431 $ 112,766
Metropolitan Council................cocoiii e, 695,203 294,923 170,509 26,697
Housing Finance..............c.cooci 330,846 146,680 170,318 -
OtherS. ..o e 387,018 195,398 59,035 -
Total Component Units..................coeeviiniinnnn. 3 4,004,574 $ 1,776,918 $ 1,098,293 $ 139,463
General Revenues:
Taxes:
INdividual INCOME TaXES... ... ittt e et et et eeee e eea e,
Corporate INCOME TaXES.......oiiiiee et et et et e e
SalES TaXES ...ttt e
Property TaXeS.....c.uuit it e e e e e
Motor Vehicle TaXes........ooooiiiii i e
FUBT TaXES. .. e
Other TAXES ... ettt e e e e
Tobacco Settlement.... ...
Unallocated Investment/Interest Income.............cocoiiiiii i,
Other REVENUES ... ...ttt ettt e e et e e e e e
State Grants Not Restricted. .. ... .......iuiiiiie e
LT Y £ TP
Total General Revenues and Transfers.............c...oviiiin e e
Change in Net ASSEtS..........ooiiiiiiii e e,

Net Assets, Beginning, as Reported
Prior Period Adjustments... ... ..ot

Net Assets, Beginning, as Restated
Net Assets, ENdiNg.......coooiiii i e

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
BUSINESS-
GOVERNMENTAL TYPE COMPONENT
ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES TOTAL UNITS
$ (501,835) $  (501,835)
(1,081,899) (1,081,899)
(234,836) (234,836)
247,905 247,905
(6,647,603) (6,647,603)
(786,563) (786,563)
(4,187,802) (4,187,802)
(376,279) (376,279)
(1,400,479) (1,400,479)
(172,612) (172,612)
$ (15,142,003) $ (15,142,003)
$ (607,480) $  (607,480)
363,514 363,514
117,730 117,730
(4,279) (4,279)
$ (130,515) $  (130,515)
$ (15,142,003) $ (130,515) § (15,272,518)
(640,393)
(203,074)
(13,848)
(132,585)
(989,900)
$ 7,069,242 $ - $ 7,069,242 -
1,189,328 - 1,189,328 -
4,439,667 - 4,439,667 -
633,288 - 633,288 -
539,468 - 539,468 -
659,980 - 659,980 -
2,663,939 - 2,663,939 189,542
184,139 - 184,139 -
101,803 18,300 120,103 342,988
28,447 17,141 45,588 59,189
- - - 830,550
(474,090) 474,090 - -
$ 17,035211 $ 509,531 $ 17,544,742 1,422,269
$ 1,893,208 $ 379,016 $ - 2,272,224 432,369
$ 7,722,231 $ 1404135 $ 9,126,366 7,692,931
(15,229) - (15,229) -
$ 7,707,002 $ 1404135 $  9111,137 7,692,931
$ 9,600,210 $ 1783151 $ 11,383,361 8,125,300
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)
NONMAJOR
GENERAL FEDERAL FUNDS TOTAL
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents... $ 1,914,806 $ 2,125 $ 2,393,296 4,310,227
Investments..........ccccveeeen. 11,229 - 1,161,921 1,173,150
Accounts Receivable.... 1,620,486 136,004 374,764 2,131,254
Interfund Receivables.........c.cooeeiiiiiiiciicecceee e 258,056 5,161 159,576 422,793
Due from Component Units..........cccoevveeiiiicviciie e, 38,218 - 120,525 158,743
Accrued Investment/Interest Income 45,662 - 10,554 56,216
Federal Aid Receivable..................... - 594,214 90,877 685,091
Inventories............c........ s - - 18,723 18,723
Loans and Notes Receivable.. 47,419 65 294,612 342,096
Advances to Other Funds....... 3,500 - - 3,500
Securities Lending Collateral.. 132,884 - 340,349 473,233
InvestmentinLand.............cocoooeiii i - - 15,448 15,448
TOtal ASSELS ..o $ 4,072,260 $ 737,569 $ 4,980,645 9,790,474
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable..........ccociiiiiiiiiiii e $ 1,822,923 $ 682,294 $ 404,561 2,909,778
Interfund Payables.......... 12,098 21,838 351,734 385,670
Due to Component Units. 96,137 2,086 9,552 107,775
Deferred Revenue.................. 1,146,611 24,648 169,153 1,340,412
Accrued Interest Payable................c.oooiiiiiiiiiinnn. 22,800 - - 22,800
Securities Lending Liabilities..........cccccocvevveviniiienirene 132,884 - 340,349 473,233
Total Liabilities........c.ccocovieiiiiiiiiceccceeeee $ 3,233,453 $ 730,866 $ 1,275,349 5,239,668
Fund Balances:
Reserved Fund Balances:
Reserved for Encumbrances..........ccocoeevevvveveenieennenns $ 177,643 $ - $ 184,028 361,671
Reserved for Local Governments... - - 410,179 410,179
Reserved for Trust Principal................coooi. - - 1,041,547 1,041,547
Other Reserved Fund Balances 50,997 6,703 1,162,925 1,220,625
Total Reserved Fund Balances......................... $ 228,640 $ 6,703 $ 2,798,679 3,034,022
Unreserved Fund Balances:
Designated for:
General Fund..........cocoiiiiiii $ 610,167 $ - $ - 610,167
Special Revenue Funds .........c..cccoeniniiicnennenne. - - 715,202 715,202
Undesignated, reported in:
Capital Project Funds............ccoooviiiiiiniininns - - (48,184) (48,184)
Special Revenue Funds..............ccoveiiiinnnn. - - 239,599 239,599
Total Unreserved Fund Balance.................... $ 610,167 $ - $ 906,617 1,516,784
Total Fund Balances............ccccccovveeieiecneennne, $ 838,807 6,703 3,705,296 4,550,806
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances........... $ 4,072,260 737,569 4,980,645 9,790,474

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

Total Fund Balance for Governmental Funds.....................ooi e
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds. These assets consist of:

Infrastructure............coovvvvvii i $ 5,965,253
Depreciable Capital Assets..................... 2,223,124
Nondepreciable Capital Assets................ 1,801,053
Accumulated Depreciation....................... (861,228)

Total Capital ASSEtS........ovei i

Net effect of state revenues that will be collected after year-end but not available to pay for
current period expenditures and refunds of revenues that will be paid after year-end......................

The pension assets resulting from contributions in excess of the annual required contributions
are not financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds...................c.cco

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to
individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.............ccoooiiiiii

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in
the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

General Obligation Bonds Payable............ $ (3,414,239
Bond Premium Payable.......................... (201,142)
Accrued Interest Payable on Bonds.......... (46,906)
Loans and Notes Payable....................... (29,378)
Claims Payable...............ccocoiviie i, (892,613)
Workers' Compensation Liability............... (109,405)
Capital Leases Payable.......................... (182,930)
Compensated Absences Payable............. (241,520)
Net Pension Obligation........................... (4,538)
Due to Component Units......................... (29,910)

Total Liabilities.....c.ovve i e

Net Assets of Governmental ACtiVities...............ooo it s
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9,128,202

841,749

53,750

178,284

(5,152,581)
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)

Net Revenues:

Individual Income Taxes

Corporate Income Taxes....

Sales Taxes

Property Taxes...........
Motor Vehicle Taxes...................

Fuel Taxes
Other Taxes

Tobacco Settlement..
ENUES.....cooveverenae.
Licenses and Fees

Federal Rev

Departmental Services.......

Investment/Interest Income....
Securities Lending Income
Other Revenues

Net Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public Safety and Corrections

Transport

ation

Agricultural and Environmental Resources.........
Economic and Workforce Development.............

General Education
Higher Education
Health and Human Services
General Government
Intergovernment Aid

Securities Lending Rebates and Fees..................

Total Current Expenditures

Capital Outlay

Debt ServiCe.......ovviiiiciicece e

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
General Obligation Bond Issuance

Loan Proceeds..........ccoevvviiiiinininennn,

Proceeds from Refunding Bonds

Payment to Refunded Bonds Escrow Agent...........

Bond Issue Premium
Transfers-In.........

Transfers-Out

Capital Leases.......ccccveiiiiiiiiciiccieenciceeeeeee

Net Other Financing Sources (Uses)..........c.c......

Fund Balances, Ending

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balances, Beginning, as Reported
Change in Inventory

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

NONMAJOR

GENERAL FEDERAL FUNDS TOTAL
$ 7,068,712 - 3 - 7,068,712
1,189,915 - - 1,189,915
4,471,993 - 1,282 4,473,275
631,279 - - 631,279
372,880 - 664,713 1,037,593
- - 659,647 659,647
1,294,442 - 646,228 1,940,670
180,790 - - 180,790
8,842 5,376,554 478,977 5,864,373
255,244 - 474,472 729,716
42,729 18,030 224,916 285,675
55,867 685 150,217 206,769
5,612 - 12,944 18,556
324,919 143,288 250,135 718,342
$ 15,903,224 5538557 $ 3,563,531 25,005,312
$ 492,538 116,400  § 184,264 793,202
226,107 194,436 1,356,437 1,776,980
153,154 36,661 347,405 537,220
126,891 310,371 265,846 703,108
6,675,827 609,603 52,458 7,337,888
722,870 - 63,736 786,606
4,047,550 4,198,327 574,266 8,820,143
588,897 14,361 87,495 690,753
1,400,265 - 214 1,400,479
5,543 . 12,506 18,049
$ 14,439,642 5480,159  $ 2,944,627 22,864,428
192,094 31,726 630,792 854,612
18,873 397 452,902 472,172

$ 14,650,609 5512,282  § 4,028,321 24,191,212
$ 1252615 26275 $ (464,790) 814,100
$ - -3 377,949 377,949
- - 24,388 24,388
- - 160,960 160,960
- - (160,960) (160,960)

. - 45,141 45,141
488,874 1,127 2,128,912 2,618,913
(1,175,652) (26,979) (1,865,528) (3,068,159)
180,005 - - 180,005
$  (506,773) (25852)  $ 710,862 178,237
$ 745842 423§ 246,072 992,337
$ 92,965 6280 $ 3,457,011 3,556,256
- - 2,213 2,213
$ 838,807 6,703 $ 370529 4,550,806
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

Net Change in Fund Balances for Governmental Funds............................................................$ 992,337
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. However, in the Statement
of Activities, the cost of capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation.
This is the amount by which capital outlay exceeded depreciation in the current period..................... 777,650

Governmental funds report the proceeds from the sale of capital assets as increases in financial
resources. However, in the Statement of Activities, only the gain or loss on the sale and the
fair market value of donated capital assets are reported................oo oot (20,264)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual
funds. The net revenue (expense) of internal service funds activities reported with
governmMental aCHIVItIES. .. ... e e 47,732

The direct expenses of the appropriate function is used for reporting inventory in the Statement
of Activities, but in the Governmental funds the purchases methodisused...................c.ccovviininnn. 2,213

Net changes in revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources
are not reported as revenues iNthe fUNAS............. i e (776)

Bond proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds; however issuing debt
is reported as an increase of long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets.............c.ccoooe i (584,050)

Some capital additions were financed through capital leases. In governmental funds, a capital lease
arrangement is reported as a source of financing, but in the Statement of Net Assets, the lease
obligation is reported as a liability INCreaSE. .. ... ...ttt e e (180,005)

Repayment of bonds is reported as an expenditure in governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets..............ooi i 439,952

Net changes in expenses reported in the Statement of Activities that do not require the use of
current financial resources are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.................... 418,419

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities...............................oo . 8 1,893,208
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BUDGETARY BASIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)

GENERAL FUND

ORIGINAL FINAL
BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL
Net Revenues:
Individual Income Taxes.........c.cccevveruernecrinnneenne 6,565,529 6,604,170 $ 6,862,953
Corporate INCOme TaXes.........cocevvrrverneenerenieenne 767,515 955,940 1,061,626
Sales Taxes 4,394,489 4,468,362 4,463,834
Property TaXesS.......cocvevveeiieniinienieeniie e 634,683 629,977 631,278
Motor Vehicle Taxes........ccccccoooviiii, 389,484 374,472 373,668
Other Taxes................ 993,873 1,163,917 1,203,897
Departmental Earnings....... 271,569 314,442 314,442
Investment/Interest Income.... 15,000 40,000 54,809
Tobacco Settlement............ 171,657 179,060 180,790
Other REVENUES..........covieriiiiieciceee s 545,863 553,893 580,702
Net REVENUES........ccveriiieeiciicciicecee e 14,749,662 15,284,233 $ 15,727,999
Expenditures:
Public Safety and Corrections............ccceeevveeeineenn. 518,175 519,033 $ 503,239
Transportation.........cccceeeviveenieniieennnen. 227,670 223,301 223,199
Agricultural and Environmental Resources 170,992 168,564 156,198
Economic and Workforce Development..... 96,385 100,540 92,730
General Education............ccccceecnnnnnn. 6,267,433 6,996,590 6,988,191
Higher Education................. 762,197 761,587 747,186
Health and Human Services... . 3,823,819 3,937,290 3,856,238
General Government............ccccovevvveieieeeiiiiiieeceees 653,874 630,174 589,463
Intergovernment Aid..........ccooceiieniiniieeeee, 1,428,931 1,401,842 1,401,842
Total Expenditures 13,949,476 14,738,921 $ 14,558,286
Excess of Revenues Over (Under)
EXPenditures..........coccviiiriiiiniii e 800,186 545,312 $ 1,169,713
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers-In........cccovvieeeiiiii e 369,122 374,408 $ 384,716
Transfers-Out..........ccoueiiiiniirnieeee e (1,217,495) (1,187,021) (1,156,509)
Net Other Financing Sources (Uses).................. (848,373) (812,613) $ (771,793)
Net Change in Fund Balances..............cccocevveennnne. (48,187) (267,301) $ 397,920
Fund Balances, Beginning, as Reported ................... 1,464,852 1,464,852 $ 1,464,852
Prior Period Adjustments...........ccooccvviiiinninninnn, - - 21,337
Fund Balances, Beginning, as Restated..................... 1,464,852 1,464,852 $ 1,486,189
Budgetary Fund Balances, Ending.........c.cccccoeeevieninen. 1,416,665 1,197,551 $ 1,884,109
Less: Appropriation Carryover................. - - 190,094
Less: Reserved for Long-Term Receivables - - 47,751
Less: Budgetary Reserve..........c.ccooceeenne - - 1,112,660
Undesignated Fund Balances, Ending........................ 1,416,665 1,197,551 $ 533,604

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.




STATE OF MINNESOTA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents..
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Interfund Receivables
Accrued Investment/Interest Income
Federal Aid Receivable..............

Inventories..
Deferred Costs..
Loans and Notes Receivable
Securities Lending Collateral.
Other Assets................

Total Current Assets..........c..ooceeneennnn.

Noncurrent Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents-Restricted..........
Other Assets-Restricted................ .
Deferred Costs................
Loans and Notes Receivable....
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net).
Nondepreciable Capital Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets................oeve
Total ASSEtS.....c.cvivveeiiiiiiccicineeeen

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable
Interfund Payables
Unearned Revenue..........
Accrued Bond Interest Payable... .
General Obligation Bonds Payable.................
Loans and Notes Payable..
Revenue Bonds Payable....
Workers' Compensation Liability.. .
Capital Leases...........cccceuveeiriiiiniinnnee,
Compensated Absences Payable...
Securities Lending Liabilities..
Other Liabilities

Total Current Liabilities..........................

Noncurrent Liabilities:
General Obligation Bonds Payable..
Loans and Notes Payable..
Revenue Bonds Payable....
Workers' Compensation Liability........
Capital Leases.........................
Compensated Absences Payable
Advances from Other Funds.....
Other Liabilities

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities.

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt................c.occoievniinan.

Restricted for:
Bond Covenants.............cccccoviiiiiviiinieenns
Debt Service.....
Capital Projects
Economic and Workforce Development.
Health and Human Services............. .
Other PUrpoSeSs........o.uvvieiiniiiiii i

Total Restricted..........co.veiviii i
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets...

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATE NONMAJOR INTERNAL
COLLEGES&  UNEMPLOYMENT  ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UNIVERSITIES INSURANCE FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
$ 456371 § 211,548 $ 62,178 730,097 202,824
26,025 - - 26,025 20,013
34,887 388,564 27,506 450,957 24,367
15,847 - 1,086 16,933 767
; - 18 18 409
11,769 - - 11,769 -
9,662 - 8,674 18,336 872

- - 382 382 1,621
7,820 - - 7,820 -
21,954 - . 21,954 13,770
- - 3,379 3,379 -

$ 584335 $ 600,112 § 103,223 1,287,670 264,643
$ 60,697  § - 8 2,070 62,767 -
102 . . 102 -

. . - . 222
26,970 . - 26,970 -
972,161 . 33,222 1,005,383 27,461
179,040 - 1,679 180,719 -

$ 1238970 § -3 36,971 1,275,941 27,683
$ 15823305  $ 600,112 $ 140,194 2,563,611 292,326
$ 140851 28434 § 21,604 190,889 69,929
- 43,785 10,769 54,554 269

31,699 9,557 4,032 45,288 5,191

- - 218 218 -

11,221 - 247 11,468 -
1,101 - - 1,101 7,404
2,245 - 665 2,910 -
1,633 - . 1,633 .
2,341 - 173 2,514 -
12,644 - 1,641 14,285 434
21,954 - - 21,954 13,770
12,229 - 22 12,251 -
$ 237,918 § 81776 § 39,371 359,065 96,997
$ 142278 $ -8 3,150 145,428 -
4731 - - 4,731 9,136
79,280 - 13,590 92,870 -
3,778 i - 3,778 -
23,130 - 876 24,006 -
98,287 - 9,398 107,685 4,409
- - . . 3,500
42,897 - - 42,897 -
$ 394381 3 - 3 27,014 421,395 17,045
$ 632299 § 81776 § 66,385 780,460 114,042
$ 913128 § - 3 18,169 931,297 10,947
$ 27141 § -8 - 27,141 -
15,847 - - 15,847 -
13,202 - - 13,292 -
- - 3,999 3,999 -
- - 28,724 28,724 -
13,326 - 24,006 37,332 -
$ 69606 $ - s 56,729 126,335 -
$ 208272 § 518,336 § (1,089) 725,519 167,337
$ 1191006  $ 518,336 $ 73,809 1,783,151 178,284

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

Operating Revenues:
Tuition and FEES............ocoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e
Net Sales........
Rental and Service Fees..
Insurance Premiums.....

Federal Revenues.............o.oocviviiiiiii e,
State Grants..............ooo
Other INCOMEe........coooiiiiiii e

Total Operating RevenUEs............cccoovveveieieeennnn,
Less: Cost of Goods Sold...........cccevviviireiieeiann.

Gross Margin.........cocerveeeeineneneeieeee e

Operating Expenses:

Purchased Services.............occooviiiviiiioeiiiiieee

Salaries and Fringe Benefits...
Student Financial Aid..............c..coooiiii

Depreciation.
Amortization.....................

Supplies and Materials...........
Repairs and Maintenance

INAireCt COStS......ooviiiieciiciiececceee e,

Total Operating Expenses

Operating INCOME (LOSS)........cccviiriiiieieiiiieiereiee e,

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Investment INCOME.........ccooviviiiiiiiiic s
Private Grants............
Grants and Subsidies..........
Securities Lending Income......

Other Nonoperating Revenues...............ocooeeerveennnn

Interest and Financing Costs...........cccoooeviiiiiniiinnnns
Grants, Aids and Subsidies..............
Securities Lending Rebates and Fees..

Other Nonoperating EXpenses...........cccevveevriiiieanns

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets..................
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses).............

Income (Loss) Before Transfers & Contributions.............

Capital Contributions
Transfers-In........ccooociviiiiiiiiiees
Transfers-Out.........cccoovvieriiiiiiicie e

Change in Net Assets...........occoiiiiiiiiniiiii
Net Assets, Beginning, as Reported.............cccccoovvnnn

Net Assets, Ending

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATE NONMAJOR INTERNAL
COLLEGES & UNEMPLOYMENT ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UNIVERSITIES INSURANCE FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
$ 610612 § -8 - 8 610612 $ -
- - 497,638 497,638 16,533

- - 112,910 112,910 142,475

- 975,186 14,511 989,697 544,547

162,933 - - 162,933 -
67,587 - - 67,587 -
15,854 79,041 3,466 98,361 8,970

$ 856986 $ 1,054,227 § 628,525 $ 2,539,738  § 712,525
- - 334,033 334,033 5,042

$ 856986 $ 1,054,227  § 294492 $ 2205705  $ 707,483
$ 179,801 $ -8 30873 § 210,674 $ 143,772
1,031,148 - 109,588 1,140,736 44,701
22,341 - - 22,341 -

- 690,713 - 690,713 -

- - 10,899 10,899 431,091

71,008 - 4,040 75,048 8,157

- - 71 71 167

81,027 - 7,202 88,229 7,705
35,898 - - 35,898 -

- - 7,581 7,581 1,969

37,358 - 6,023 43,381 3,150

$ 1,458,581 $ 690,713  § 176,277  $ 2,325,571 640,712
$ (601,595) § 363514  $ 118215  $  (119,866) 66,771
$ 14,802  $ 333§ 3,152 8 18,287  $ 8,873
13,090 - - 13,090 -
1,963 - - 1,963 -
1,018 - - 1,018 613

- 17,929 10 17,939 86

(12,347) - (1,348) (13,695) (909)
(8,591) - - (8,591) -
(1,005) - - (1,005) (605)

- - (3,416) (3,416) (2,361)

(702) - (96) (798) 108

$ 8,228 $ 18,262  $ (1,698) 8 24792 $ 5,805
$  (593,367) $ 381,776  $ 116,517  § (95,074)  $ 72,576
71,249 - - 71,249 .
600,694 1,747 2,032 604,473 -

- (82,535) (119,097) (201,632) (24,844)

$ 78,576 300,988  $ (548) $ 379016  $ 47,732
$ 1,112,430 217,348 $ 74357 $ 1404135  § 130,552
$ 1,191,006 518,336  $ 73,809 § 1,783,151 $ 178,284
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from Customers
Receipts from Grants..........
Receipts from Other Revenues
Receipts from Repayment of Program Loans...
Financial Aid Disbursements...................
Payments to Claimants....
Payments to Suppliers
Payments to Employees
Payments to Others............
Payments of Program Loans....

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities...............c.........

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities:
Grant Receipts
Transfers-In.....
Transfers-Out...............
Advances to Other Funds...
Advances from Other Funds
Repayments of Advances to Other Funds..
Repayments of Advances from Other Funds.
Interest Paid.......................
Other Nonoperating Expenses..
Other Nonoperating Revenues..................cooeeviiiiiieein,

Net Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities.......

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Capital Contributions................coiiiiiiii e
Investment in Capital Assets................
Proceeds from Disposal of Capital Assets..
Proceeds from Capital Debt...............cc.oooiiiiini e,
Proceeds from Loans
Capital Lease Payments..
Repayment of Loan Principal.
Repayment of Bond Principal.
Interest Paid

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing ActiVities............ccocoviiiiiiiiii e

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from Sales and Maturities of Investments.
Purchase of Investments
Investment Earnings

Net Cash Flows from Investing Activities.................c.........
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents...........
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning, as Reported...............
Cash and Cash Equivalents, ENding............cccccccevvvevieivvceineennnns

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATE NONMAJOR INTERNAL
COLLEGES & UNEMPLOYMENT ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UNIVERSITIES INSURANCE FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS

$ 680,998 § 994,665 $ 622,135 $ 2297798 § 696,045

229,731 - - 229,731 -

- - 2,908 2,908 9,401

7,175 - - 7,175 -

(21,874) - - (21,874) -
- (671,626) (279,228) (950,854) (431,059)
(388,498) - (89,757) (478,255) (157,905)
(1,013,963) - (109,169) (1,123,132) (43,910)
- - (28,055) (28,055) (2,310)

(7,096) - - (7,096) -

$ (513,527) § 323,039 $ 118,834 $ (71,654) $ 70,262
$ 13,000 § -3 - $ 13,090 § -
600,694 1,747 2,032 604,473 -

- (54,658) (119,832) (174,490) (25,612)

i - (70) (70) -

- 47,387 - 47,387 4,500

_ - 70 70 -

- (122,956) - (122,956) (5,104)

- (4,182) - (4,182) -

(10,774) - (3,527) (14,301) (2,299)

- 16,110 - 16,110 -

$ 603,010 $ (116,552) $ (121,327) § 365131 § (28,515)
$ 71249  § - - $ 71249 $ -
(137,312) - (2,827) (140,139) (9,582)

1,656 - 61 1,717 2,144

71,260 - - 71,260 -

. - - - 7,102

(2,457) - (165) (2,622) -

(1,107) - - (1,107) (8,315)

(12,090) - (850) (12,940) -
(11,947) - (1,229) (13,176) (1,085)

$ (20,748)  $ - 8 (5010) $ (25,758) § (9,736)
$ 1182  § -8 - $ 1,182 § 7,669
(3,767) - - (3,767) (7,687)

15,520 333 3,153 19,006 9,286

$ 12935  § 333§ 3,153 $ 16,421  $ 9,268

$ 81670 § 206,820 $ (4,350) $ 284140 $ 41,279

$ 435398 § 4728  $ 68,598 $ 508,724 § 161,545

$ 517,068 § 211,548  § 64,248 $ 792,864 $ 202,824
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Operating INCOME (LOSS).....c..eeimiiiiiiiiiiieciceceice e

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Depreciation....
Amortization....
Loan Principal Repayments...
Loans Issued..........cc.......
Loans Forgiven.............
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts Receivable
Inventories.........
Other Assets......
Accounts Payable
Compensated Absences Payable....
Unearned Revenues..............
Other Liabilities

Net Reconciling Iltems to be Added to
(Deducted from) Operating Income............cccccovveennnnn.

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities.................

Noncash Investing, Capital and Financing Activities:
Change in Fair Value of Investments........................oeos
Capital Assets Acquired Through Leases.........................
Capital Assets Purchased on Account..............cc.oooeevnnnnnn.
Disposal of Capital Assets......................
Buildings Capitalized under Notes Payable
Investment Earning on Account...........c.oooiiiiiiiiiieiiee
Bond Premium Amortization..............c.eoeeiiiiinne e,

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

ENTERPRISE FUNDS

STATE NONMAJOR INTERNAL
COLLEGES & UNEMPLOYMENT  ENTERPRISE SERVICE
UNIVERSITIES INSURANCE FUNDS TOTAL FUNDS
$  (601,595) § 363514 § 118,215 (119,866) $ 66,771
$ 71,008 § -8 4,040 75048 § 8,157
- - 71 71 167

7,175 - - 7,175 -
(7,096) - - (7,096) -
1,031 - - 1,031 -
(1,186) (59,584) (5,087) (65,857) (7,342)
(1,046) - 1,587 541 (147)
1,063 2,699 (834) 3,828 911

2,116 13,161 (851) 14,426 1,287
4,046 - 149 4,195 320
3,435 3,249 2,787 9,471 209
6,622 - (1,243) 5,379 1)

$ 88,068 $ (40,475)  $ 619 48212 $ 3,491
$  (513,527) § 323039 $ 118,834 (71654) 70,262
$ 17 8 -8 - 17 8 -
2,646 - 808 3,454 -
16,565 - - 16,565 -
(702) - - (702) 136

973 - - 973 !

95 - - 95 715

572 - - 572 -
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- STATE OF MINNESOTA

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
JUNE 30, 2006

(IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST AGENCY
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents............ccccceevviinnnnns $ 35,315 $ - $ 69,569
Investment Pools, at fair value:
Cash Equivalent Investments..................c.......... $ 2,485,177 $ 15,508 $ -
Investments:
Commercial Paper $ 88,455 $ 847 $ -
Debt Securities..........cccocceininn . 10,988,084 111,988 -
Equity Securities............ccoooiiiiiiii 32,476,088 227,752 -
Mutual Funds..........cooooviiiiii i 3,350,965 - -
Total Investments............ccc.cooveeeieiiienenn, $ 46,903,592 $ 340,587 $ -
Accrued Interest and Dividends.......................... $ 137,478 $ 1,311 $ -
Securities Trades Receivables (Payables)........ (1,202,723) (11,666) -
Total Investment Pool Participation................ $ 48,323,524 $ 345,740 $ -
Receivables:
Employer Contributions...............ccoovvvieviiieeenn... $ 20,009 $ - $ -
Member Contributions 9,377 - -
Accounts Receivable...... - - 11,705
Interfund Receivables. 8,278 - -
Other Receivables...................... 46,080 - -
Accrued Interest and Dividends 229 - -
Total Receivables...........cccco........ et $ 83,973 $ - $ 11,705
Securities Lending Collateral................c...ccceuveene.. $ 5,259,265 $ 48,082 $ -
Depreciable Capital Assets (Net)....... 27,901 - -
Nondepreciable Capital Assets..................coeeeni. 429 - -
Total ASSetS......cveeiviieeiiieceieeeeeeeee $ 53,730,407 $ 393,822 $ 81,274
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable.............ccccccoereeiivieiiiiiecne s, $ 38,894 $ 75 $ 45,478
Interfund Payables...........ccccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiec s 8,278 - -
Accrued Expense............... 47 - -
Revenue Bonds Payable.... 26,625 - -
Bond Interest.............ooeoiiiiiiiin, 77 - -
Compensated Absences Payable...............cc........ 1,968 - -
Securities Lending Liabilities...........c.cccoovviniens 5,259,265 48,082 -
Funds Held in Trust..............ooooiiiiiii s - - 35,796
Total Liabilities..........cocooveviiiiiiiiiiciicn $ 5,335,154 $ 48,157 $ 81,274
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Pool Participants..........cccccccveieriiiineeeeeens $ 48,395,253 $ 345,665 $ -

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGES
IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)
PENSION INVESTMENT
TRUST TRUST
Additions:
Contributions:
EMPIOYET. ..o 657,990 -
Member..........cccoovieeviiie 864,811 -
Contributions From Other Sources 9,396 -
Participating Plans......... - 36,940
Total Contributions..........c..coovvviiviiiiiiiec e 1,532,197 36,940
Net Investment Income:
Investment Income...........occovviiiiiiiii 5,295,488 29,124
Less: Investment EXpense............cccccvvveiieiiirnnnenn (65,442) (307)
Net Investment Income.............ccoeeiiiiiiiinnnnn. 5,230,046 28,817
Securities Lending Revenues (Expenses):
Securities Lending Income..........cccoooiieiiiieniineenen. 231,965 2,654
Borrower Rebates...........occeviiiiiiiiiiiiecicc (211,500) (2,476)
Management Fees..........cccooviiiiiiiiiiiine i, (4,762) -
Net Securities Lending Revenue... 15,703 178
Total Investment Income.................................. 5,245,749 28,995
Transfers From Other Funds..........ccccoveveieiviieeeeeiin, 12,303 -
Other Additions...........cvviiiiiiieieieeee 41,126 -
Total Additions..........cocviiiiiiiiiiee e 6,831,375 65,935
Deductions:
BenefitS......eeiiiiiiiiee e 2,778,192 -
Refunds/Withdrawals..............ccccvvvvvvvivieeeieiiiiieeiiieiienn, 185,983 65,575
Administrative EXpenses..........ccccoeeevvvvieeiiiiiiiiiieee s 47,189 -
Transfers to Other Funds.......ccccccoeeeiviinieeeeicec e, 12,303 -
Total Deductions...........ccceevvvvvviviriiviiiieeeeeriieviieiviees 3,023,667 65,575
Net Increase (Decrease)..........oevcvvvveeeeevvvnnneeennnn, 3,807,708 360
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Pool Participants, Beginning, as Reported............. 43,719,316 468,319
Change in Reporting Entity.............cooiiiii i 745,215 -
Change in Fund Structure................ooooi 123,014 (123,014)
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Pool Participants, Beginning, as Restated............. 44,587,545 345,305
Net Assets Held in Trust for Pension Benefits
and Pool Participants, Ending..........ccccccooviiiniiinnin. 48,395,253 345,665

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2005 and JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

HOUSING UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR TOTAL
FINANCE METROPOLITAN OF COMPONENT COMPONENT
AGENCY COUNCIL MINNESOTA UNITS UNITS
ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 643,257 $ 63,664 $ 163,735 $ 466,479 $ 1,327,135

Investments 234,016 239,304 116,673 506,398 1,096,391

Accounts Receivable... 1,508 15,431 235,342 67,522 319,803

Due from Other Governmental Units.. - 13,079 - - 13,079

Due from Primary Government....... - 42,639 106,450 7,009 156,098

Accrued Investment/Interest Income.. 12,065 865 5,926 19,487 38,343

Federal Aid Receivable . 2,211 - - 107 2,318

Inventories - 16,186 18,792 50 35,028

13,794 - - 7,831 21,625

Loans and Notes Receivable - - 13,696 74,848 88,544

Securities Lending Collateral.... - - 161,911 47,542 209,453

Other Assets..........ccoeviiiiiiiiiiiinciiii e 1,414 877 24,383 684 27,358

Total Current Assets..........ccoeevviiiiiiiceiiiinnnn $ 908,265 $ 392,045 $ 836,908 $ 1,197,957 $ 3,335,175
Noncurrent Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Restricted.... $ 204,981 $ 130,942 $ 23,055 $ 6,114 $ 365,092

Investments-Restricted 20,878 - 114,662 19,083 154,623

Accounts Receivable-Restricted . - 20,775 - 3,480 24,255

Due from Primary Government-Restricted - - - 22,940 22,940

Other Assets-Restricted. - 10,387 - - 10,387

Investments............. - - 2,806,897 147,262 2,954,159

Accounts Receivable - - 86,476 340,542 427,018

Loans and Notes Receivable 1,805,094 26,557 56,646 1,910,556 3,798,853

Depreciable Capital Assets (Net 3,685 1,910,119 1,831,280 394 3,745,478

Nondepreciable Capital Assets - 332,643 129,958 2,834 465,435

Other ASSetS.......cocouiuiieiiiiiiiiiciccenec e - - 5,492 5,401 10,893

Total Noncurrent Assets...........cccocevcvincncicnnennns $ 2,034,638 $ 2,431,423 $ 5,054,466 $ 2,458,606 $ 11,979,133
Total ASSELS......ocveeeieieirieeree e $ 2,942,903 2,823,468 $ 5891374 $ 3,656,563 $ 15,314,308
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable..........c..ccoouveininrcinenecen e $ 16,905 $ 62,952 $ 105,476 $ 16,369 $ 201,702

Payable to Other Governmental Units... - 1,529 - - 1,529

Due to Primary Government. 35,235 - 5,449 25,910 66,594

Unearned Revenue.......... - 5,576 111,520 57,300 174,396

Accrued Bond Interest Payable... . 38,086 4,971 2,920 16,025 62,002

General Obligation Bonds Payable. - 90,820 124,967 - 215,787

Loans and Notes Payable.. - - 160,532 924 161,456

Revenue Bonds Payable. . 398,030 845 1,302 47,185 447,362

Grants Payable - - - 3,177 3,177

Claims Payable - 8,756 19,815 80,317 108,888

Compensated Absences Payable 159 2,389 148,277 64 150,889

Securities Lending Liabilities. - - 161,911 47,542 209,453

Other Liabilities - 121 38,623 1,894 40,638

Total Current Liabilities............ccocovecvviiniciiiiinnn $ 488,415 $ 177,959 $ 880,792 $ 296,707 $ 1,843,873
Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accounts Payable-Restricted................cccoeviniiini $ - $ 22,554 $ 68,643 $ - $ 91,197

Unearned Revenue-Restricted............ . - 83,484 - - 83,484

Accrued Bond Interest Payable-Restricted.. . - 8,764 - - 8,764

Due to Primary Government - - 57,759 44,084 101,843

Unearned Revenue - - 5,085 - 5,085

General Obligation Bonds Payable. - 979,763 274,070 - 1,253,833

Loans and Notes Payable..... - 1,405 1,489 2,051 4,945

Revenue Bonds Payable. 1,548,061 9,800 73,301 1,436,958 3,068,120

Claims Payable............... - 8,385 9,762 545,683 563,830

Compensated Absences Payable 1,485 5,544 11,232 707 18,968

Funds Held in Trust.. 82,368 - 1,323 - 83,691

Other Liabilities - 18,545 37,212 5,618 61,375

Total Noncurrent Liabilities.............ccoceeiviiiiiiinns $ 1,631,914 $ 1,138,244 $ 539,876 $ 2,035,101 $ 5,345,135
Total Liabilities............ccccoviviniiniiiiiiiiiii $ 2,120,329 1,316,203 $ 1,420,668 $ 2,331,808 $ 7,189,008
NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt $ 3,685 $ 1,399,163 $ 1,296,432 $ 761 $ 2,700,041
Restricted-Expendable...... 818,889 144,383 1,850,248 1,110,365 3,923,885
Restricted-Nonexpendable. - - 837,650 - 837,650
Unrestricted - (36,281) 486,376 213,629 663,724

Total Net ASSEtS......ccveiiiieeiiiiecrccee e $ 822,574 $ 1,507,265 $ 4,470,706 $ 1,324,755 $ 8,125,300

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATE OF MINNESOTA

COMPONENT UNIT FUNDS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 AND JUNE 30, 2006
(IN THOUSANDS)

HOUSING UNIVERSITY NONMAJOR TOTAL
FINANCE METROPOLITAN OF COMPONENT COMPONENT
AGENCY COUNCIL MINNESOTA UNITS UNITS
Net Expenses:
Total EXPenses...........ocvuveiiiiiiiiiiiiiii e $ 330,846 $ 695,203 $ 2,591,507 $ 387,018 $ 4,004,574
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services............cccoeevviiiiiiiennon $ 146,680 $ 294,923 $ 1,139,917 $ 195,398 $ 1,776,918
Operating Grants and Contributions................ 170,318 170,509 698,431 59,035 1,098,293
Capital Grants and Contributions.................... - 26,697 112,766 - 139,463
Net (Expense) Revenue................c.oeeeeeanne $ (13,848) $ (203,074) $ (640,393) $ (132,585) $ (989,900)
General Revenues:
TAXES ..t tet et et e $ - $ 189,542 $ = $ = $ 189,542
Investment Income.................ooi - 11,190 311,310 20,488 342,988
Other ReveNnUEeS............covviiiiiiii e 832 - 55,803 2,554 59,189
Total General Revenues before Grants. $ 832 $ 200,732 $ 367,113 $ 23,042 $ 591,719
State Grants Not Restricted........................... 35,235 - 616,445 178,870 830,550
Total General Revenues.............c...c.cceeeeee $ 36,067 $ 200,732 $ 983,558 $ 201,912 $ 1,422,269
Change in Net Assets..............ccoeuvinnnes $ 22,219 $ (2,342) $ 343,165 $ 69,327 $ 432,369
Net Assets, Beginning, as Reported .................. $ 800,355 $ 1,509,607 $ 4,127,541 $ 1,255,428 $ 7,692,931
Net Assets, Ending..........c.ocooveviiiiiiin $ 822,574 $ 1,507,265 $ 4,470,706 $ 1,324,755 $ 8,125,300

The notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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These notes provide disclosures relevant to the basic financial statements on the preceding pages.
Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the state of Minnesota (the state) have been prepared to
conform to generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as prescribed by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

GASB Statement No. 44, “Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section” was issued in May
2004. The statement establishes and modifies requirements related to the supplementary information
presented in the statistical section of this report. The objectives of statistical section information are to
provide financial statement users with additional historical perspectives, context, and detail to assist in
using the information in the financial statements. The state implemented this statement for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2006.

GASB Statement No. 46, “Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation” was issued in December 2004.
The statement amends a previous standard by clarifying the meaning of the phrase “legally enforceable”
as it applies to restrictions imposed on net asset use by enabling legislation and by specifying the
accounting and financial reporting requirements for those restricted net assets. The state implemented
this statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006.

GASB Statement No. 47, “Accounting for Termination Benefits” was issued in June 2005. The statement
establishes accounting standards for voluntary and involuntary termination benefits paid by the state to its
employees. The state implemented this statement for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. See Note 9 —
Termination and Postretirement Benefits, for information on the liability amounts accrued.

Financial Reporting Entity of the State of Minnesota

This report includes the state departments, agencies, institutions, and organizational units that are
controlled by or dependent upon the Minnesota legislature or its constitutional officers. The state of
Minnesota, as a primary government, consists of all organizations that make up its legal entity. This
report also includes other legally separate organizations as component units. GASB has established
criteria for determining which organizations should be included as component units. Legally separate
organizations are reported as component units if either the state is financially accountable for the
organization or the nature and significance of the organization’s relationship with the state are such that
exclusion would cause the state's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. These criteria
include the state's ability to appoint a voting majority of an organization's governing body, and either the
state’s ability to impose its will on that organization, or the potential for the organization to provide specific
financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens, on the state.

Component units may be blended or discretely presented. All of the state’s component units are
discretely presented, or shown separately from the primary government. The “Component Units” column
in the accompanying financial statements includes the financial data of the state’s discretely presented
component units. They are also identified separately in the note disclosures because of their separate
legal status. All component units are presented in this report on the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The state does not have any blended component units.
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The following provides a description of the state’s discretely presented component units. Additional
information is available from the component unit's separately issued financial statements.

Housing Finance Agency (HFA) — HFA provides money for loans and technical assistance for
constructing and rehabilitating housing for families of low and moderate incomes. The HFA board
has seven members who are either heads of state departments or appointed by the governor. HFA is
under the administrative control of a commissioner appointed by the governor. HFA issues bonds in
its own name.

Metropolitan Council (MC) — MC is responsible for coordinating the planning and development of the
seven-county metropolitan area. MC operates the public transit system and the regional sewage
collection and treatment system. The governor appoints the council members. The regional
administrator, appointed by the council, is responsible for the administration of council activities. MC
includes the Metropolitan Sports Facilities Commission as a component unit. The fiscal year for MC
ends December 31.

University of Minnesota (U of M) — U of M was established permanently by the Minnesota
constitution. The state appropriates a large percentage of the U of M’'s operating budget. The
legislature elects the twelve-member board of regents, which governs U of M, but the state does not
have direct authority over the management of the university. The state has issued debt for U of M
capital projects. U of M includes several foundations as component units.

Agricultural and Economic Development Board (AEDB) — AEDB provides services to state
government by administering state programs for agricultural and economic development. AEDB has
seven members, four of whom are commissioners of state departments. AEDB controls the
operations of the agriculture resource programs and loans. AEDB may issue revenue bonds for the
purpose of financing development projects.

Office of Higher Education (OHE) — OHE makes and guarantees loans to qualified post-secondary
students. To fund the loan program, revenue bonds are issued in OHE's name with limitations set by
the legislature. OHE also administers the state grant program. The state provides administrative
funding for these programs. The governor appoints all voting members of the board and the OHE
director. As of July 2005, the name of this component unit changed from the Higher Education
Services Office to the Minnesota Office of Higher Education.

Minnesota Partnership for Action Against Tobacco (MPAAT) — MPAAT issues grants to health,
community, and academic organizations throughout Minnesota to support research and cessation
activities that will encourage and help tobacco users quit. MPAAT is funded by tobacco lawsuit
settlement proceeds. Although the state does not appoint a voting majority of MPAAT’s governing
board and is neither able to impose its will on MPAAT nor is there a potential financial benefit/burden
to the state, the state believes that excluding MPAAT from the reporting entity would fail to provide a
complete overview of tobacco settlement funds. As of July 2006, the name of this component unit
changed from the Minnesota Partnership for Action Against Tobacco to ClearWay Minnesota.

National Sports Center Foundation (NSCF) — The Minnesota Amateur Sports Commission contracts
with NSCF to operate the National Sports Center facility primarily for holding youth-oriented athletic
and other non-athletic functions and events. NSCF is responsible for certain improvements to the
facility and the operating costs of the facility. The commission appoints foundation board members,
approves the foundation's spending budget, approves all rates and fees, and owns any reserve funds.
The facility belongs to the state. The foundation's fiscal year ends December 31.

Public Facilities Authority (PFA) — PFA provides assistance to municipalities, primarily for wastewater
treatment construction projects. A state agency provides administrative services to PFA. The state
provides funding for PFA. The authority is composed of commissioners from state departments and
agencies. The commissioners direct the operations of the authority and determine the funding for
local government projects. PFA issues revenue bonds to make loans for wastewater treatment
facilities.
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= Rural Finance Authority (RFA) — RFA administers a number of state agriculture programs, including
the homestead redemption program, loan restructuring program, and agricultural improvement
program. The board of the authority consists of state department heads and members appointed by
the governor. RFA is under the administrative control of the commissioner of agriculture who is a
member of the board. The state has issued general obligation bond debt for RFA programs.

=  Workers' Compensation Assigned Risk Plan (WCARP) — WCARP is the source of workers'
compensation and employers' liability coverage for Minnesota employers unable to obtain an
insurance policy through the voluntary market. WCARP operations are subject to review by the state
commissioner of the Department of Commerce. The commissioner enters into administrative
contracts, sets premium rates, and makes assessments. The commissioner has the authority to
assess all licensed workers' compensation insurance companies doing business in Minnesota an
amount sufficient to fully fund the obligations of the plan to the extent that the assets of the plan are
inadequate to meet its obligations. The fiscal year for WCARP ends December 31.

A component unit is classified as major or nonmajor, depending on its significance relative to other
component units and the nature and significance of the component unit's relationship to the primary
government. HFA, MC, and U of M are classified as major component units for this report.

Because AEDB and RFA do not issue separately audited financial statements, the combining financial
statements include a Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets and a Statement of
Cash Flows for each of these component units.

Complete financial statements of the discretely presented component units may be obtained from their
respective administrative offices as follows:

Housing Finance Agency ClearWay Minnesota (Formerly MPAAT)
400 Sibley Street Two Appletree Square, Suite 400
Suite 300 8011 34" Avenue South
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 Minneapolis, Minnesota 55425
Metropolitan Council National Sports Center Foundation
390 North Robert Street National Sports Center
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101 1700 105" Avenue Northeast
Blaine, Minnesota 55449
Office of Higher Education Public Facilities Authority
1450 Energy Park Drive Department of Employment & Economic Development
Suite 350 1% National Bank Bldg., 332 Minnesota St., Suite E200
St. Paul, Minnesota 55108 St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-1351
University of Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan
Office of the Controller Park Glen Management Company
205 West Bank Office Building 4500 Park Glen Road, Suite 410
1300 South Second Street Minneapolis, Minnesota 55416

Minneapolis, Minnesota 55454

Related Entities — These are entities for which the state is accountable because the state appoints a
voting majority of the board, but for which the state does not have financial accountability. The following
are related entities, but are not included in the reporting entity:

= Higher Education Facilities Authority — The governor appoints a majority of the board. The Authority

can issue revenue bonds and notes in its name. The state has no statutory authority to affect the
operations of the Authority.
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= Joint Underwriting Association — The state commissioner of the Department of Commerce appoints a
majority of the board. The board establishes the operating plan and determines premium rates and
assessments. Membership in the association is a condition for doing business in the state.

= Medical Malpractice Joint Underwriting Association — The state commissioner of the Department of
Commerce and the governor appoint a majority of the board. The board establishes the operating
plan and determines premium rates and assessments. Membership in the association is a condition
for doing business in the state.

= Metropolitan Airports Commission — The governor appoints a majority of the voting commissioners.
The state has no statutory authority to directly affect the commission's activities and operations.
Holders of the commission's debt instruments have no recourse against the state.

=  Workers' Compensation Reinsurance Association — The state commissioner of the Department of
Labor and Industry appoints, or approves the appointment of, a majority of the board. The
association supports itself solely from revenues derived from premiums charged to association
members. The state has no authority to affect the operations of the association.

The following organizations, which are included in the primary government, prepare and publish separate
financial reports, which may contain differences in presentation resulting from differing reporting
emphasis. These financial reports may be obtained directly from each organization.

Minnesota State Lottery Minnesota State Retirement System

2645 Long Lake Road 60 Empire Drive, Suite 300

Roseville, Minnesota 55113 St. Paul, Minnesota 55103

Public Employees Retirement Association Teachers Retirement Association

60 Empire Drive, Suite 200 60 Empire Drive, Suite 400

St. Paul, Minnesota 55103 St. Paul, Minnesota 55103

State Board of Investment Minnesota State Colleges and Universities
60 Empire Drive, Suite 355 Financial Reporting Unit

St. Paul, Minnesota 55103 500 Wells Fargo Place, 30 East 7" Street

St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

The financial statements available from the State Board of Investment report on the Supplemental
Investment Fund, an external investment pool.

Financial Reporting Structure of the State of Minnesota

The basic financial statements include government-wide and fund financial statements. The government-
wide financial statements report on the state as a whole, while the fund financial statements emphasize
major individual funds and fund types. Both types of statements categorize activities as either
governmental or business-type.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Assets and Statement of Activities) display
information about the state as a whole, except for its fiduciary activities. These statements include
separate columns for the governmental and business-type activities of the state and its discretely
presented component units. Eliminations have been made in the Statement of Activities so that certain
allocated expenses are recorded only once in the function for which the expenses were made. General
government expenses that benefit state agencies have not been allocated as indirect expenses to the
various functions of the state, but are reported under the General Government function.
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The focus of the government-wide statements is on financial information of the state as an entity and the
change in the overall financial position of the state as a result of the activities of the fiscal year.
Government-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus
and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the economic resources measurement focus, all economic
resources and obligations of the reporting government, both current and long-term, are reported in the
government-wide statements. Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues, expenses, gains, losses,
assets, and liabilities resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions are recognized when the
exchange takes place. Amounts paid to acquire capital assets are capitalized as assets in the
government-wide financial statements. These amounts are reported as expenditures in the governmental
fund financial statements. Long-term debt is recorded as a liability in the government-wide financial
statements, rather than as an other financing source. Amounts paid to reduce long-term indebtedness of
the reporting government are reported as reduction of the related liabilities, rather than as expenditures.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental and business-type activities are
presented on a consolidated basis by column. The statement includes long-term assets and receivables
as well as long-term debt and obligations.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports how much of the cost of each functional category
(public safety and corrections, transportation, etc.) is supported by general government revenues (sales
tax, income taxes, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses, including depreciation, by
related program revenues, and by operating and capital grants and contributions.

Program revenues must be directly associated with, or derived directly from, the function, or a business-
type activity. Program revenues include: 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Operating grants include operating-specific
and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants, while the capital grants column reflects capital-
specific grants. Program revenues are applied against program expenses in the Statement of Activities to
report the net cost of each program.

General revenues normally cover the net costs (program expenses less program revenues) of all
activities. Taxes represent the majority of general revenues. Internally dedicated resources are reported
as general revenues, rather than program revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report on the financial operations and position of governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-
wide financial statements. The emphasis in fund statements is on the major funds in the governmental or
business-type categories. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported
as nonmajor funds.

Governmental funds are presented on a current financial resource and modified accrual basis of
accounting in the fund financial statements. This presentation is deemed most appropriate to
demonstrate compliance with legal and covenant requirements, the source and use of financial
resources, and how the state’s actual spending conforms to the budget. Because the governmental fund
statements are presented using a different measurement focus and basis of accounting than used in the
governmental column in the government-wide statements, reconciliations explaining the adjustments
required to restate the fund-based financial statements for the government-wide governmental activities
column are included.

The state’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements by type (pension, investment
trust, or agency). These assets are held for the benefit of others and cannot be used for activities or
obligations of the government; therefore, the funds are excluded from the government-wide statements.

The fund financial statements are presented after the government-wide financial statements. These

statements display information about major funds individually, and nonmajor funds in the aggregate for
governmental and enterprise funds.
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Classification of Funds

The financial position and results of state operations are organized using individual funds. Each fund is a
separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts used to record the financial transactions
and balances of that entity. Individual funds have been established as stipulated by legal provisions or by
administrative discretion. The state uses fund accounting, which is designed to demonstrate legal
compliance and to segregate transactions related to certain government functions or activities.

Governmental Fund Types — These funds account for the acquisition, use, and balances of expendable
financial resources and the related current liabilities. Most state operations are accounted for in this fund
category. Included in this classification are:

= General Fund which accounts for all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

= Special revenue funds which account for revenue sources that are restricted to expenditure for
specific purposes (not including major capital projects).

= Capital project funds which account for the acquisition of capital assets or construction of major
capital projects not being financed by proprietary or special revenue funds.

= Debt Service Fund which accounts for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, most
general obligation long-term debt principal and interest.

=  Permanent Fund which accounts for resources that are restricted to the extent that only earnings, and
not principal, may be used for purposes that support the state’s programs.

The state has two major governmental funds. The General Fund is the principal operating fund used to
account for most of the general activities of the state. The Federal Fund receives and disburses federal
government grants and reimbursements.

Proprietary Fund Types — These funds focus on determining net income, changes in net assets, financial
position, and cash flows. Generally accepted accounting principles similar to those used by private sector
businesses are followed in accounting for these funds. The fund types included in this category are the
enterprise and internal service funds.

= Enterprise funds account for activities that charge a fee to external users for goods or services.
Activities of enterprise funds are financed and operated similarly to private business enterprises
where the intent of the governing body is to recover costs primarily through user fees.

= Internal service funds account for the financing of goods or services provided by one agency to other
agencies on a cost reimbursement or other basis. The activities reported as internal service funds
include motor pool, central stores, employee insurance, technology services, plant management, and
risk management. ‘

The state has two major enterprise funds. The State Colleges and Universities Fund accounts for the
activities of Minnesota State Colleges and Universities (MnSCU). MnSCU, the largest higher education
system in the state, is a system of public colleges and universities. The Unemployment Insurance Fund
receives unemployment taxes collected from employers and pays unemployment benefits to eligible
individuals.

Fiduciary Funds Types — These funds account for assets held by the state in a trustee capacity or as an
agent for individuals, private organizations, or other governmental units. Pension, investment trust, and
agency fund types are included in this fund category.

= Pension trust funds report retirement funds administered by independent boards for which the state
has a fiduciary role.
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= Investment trust funds provide an investment vehicle for entities outside the state, including various
public retirement plans.

= The Agency Fund accounts for resources held in a custodial capacity for various other governmental
units, private organizations, or individuals.

Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus, and Fund Financial Statement Presentation

All governmental funds focus on the flow of current financial resources and use the modified accrual basis
of accounting. With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities are included on
the balance sheet. Governmental fund operating statements present increases (revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) to fund balances. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they become both
measurable and available to finance operations of the fiscal year, or to liquidate liabilities existing at fiscal
year end. The state considers receivables collected after June 30, but by the close of the books in late
August to be available, and recognizes these receivables as current year revenues in governmental
funds. Individual income taxes, property taxes, sales taxes, and federal grants are the major revenue
sources susceptible to accrual. Revenues collected in advance, including certain federal grant revenues
to which the state does not yet have legal entitlement, are reported as deferred revenue until the related
commitment arises, at which time revenue is recognized. Expenditures and related liabilities are
recognized when fund obligations are incurred as a result of the receipt of the goods and services, except
for debt service, compensated absences, and claims and judgments, which are recorded when due. The
following provides further detail on specific items regarding the modified accrual basis of accounting.

Tax Revenues — Tax revenues, excluding property taxes, are recognized in the period they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Measurable means that taxpayer
liability is supported by sufficient documentation and can be reasonably estimated. The state’s liability for
anticipated refunds of such taxes is estimated and recorded as reductions in revenue in the period when
the related tax is received.

Property Tax Revenues — Laws of Minnesota Special Session 2001 established a state general tax
(property tax) against commercial-industrial and seasonal recreational property. The tax is distributed
among counties by applying a uniform rate to the appropriate tax capacities in each county. Levies are
determined based on the formula contained in the laws. The state preliminarily certifies the state general
levy rate to each county no later than November 1 of each year for taxes payable in the following
calendar year. The state certifies the final state general tax levy on January 1 of each year to each
county. Property taxes are due to counties in two installments for each year — May 15 and October 15.
The counties pay the state general tax to the state on three dates — June 30, December 1, and January
25, for any adjustments or changes. Local units of government, as agents for the state, assess the state
general tax. Property tax is recognized, net of uncollectible amounts, in the period for which the taxes are
levied and the taxes are available.

Federal Revenues — Federal revenues, earned by incurring allowable obligations, are recognized at the
same time the related obligation is recognized, with one exception. Trunk Highway Fund (a special
revenue fund) expenditures incurred by June 30, but not converted to Federal funding by the close of the
federal fiscal year, are not recognized as federal revenues.

Proprietary, pension, and investment trust funds are accounted for using the full accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized as incurred. The
accrual basis of accounting is also used for contributions, benefits, and refunds paid for defined benefit
and defined contribution pension plans. Agency funds use the accrual basis of accounting, but do not
have a measurement focus because agency funds do not recognize revenues and expenditures.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses
result from providing services or producing and delivering goods in connection with the proprietary fund’s
principal ongoing operations. Operating expenses for enterprise and internal service funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expense, and depreciation of capital assets. All other revenues
and expenses are reported as nonoperating items.
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All enterprise funds, except the Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan (WCARP) (component unit),
follow applicable GASB guidance or Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins issued on or
before November 30, 1989, that do not conflict with, or contradict, GASB pronouncements. WCARP has
elected to follow all applicable FASB statements issued after November 30, 1989, that do not contradict
GASB pronouncements.

Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash Equivalents — Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments having original maturities
(remaining time to maturity at acquisition) of three months or less. Cash equivalents also include
management pools and money market funds that are used essentially as demand deposit accounts.

Investments — Investments are reported at fair value. The basis for determining the fair value of
investments that is not based on market quotations includes analysis of future cash flows, audited
financial statements, and independent appraisals. Investments in derivatives are generally made to
manage the overall risk of the individual manager's portfolios to a level satisfactory to the investment
management firm and in accordance with the firm’s contract with the State Board of Investment. See
Note 2 — Cash and Investments for additional information regarding cash and investments.

Inventories

Generally, inventories for governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when purchased and are not
a resource available for appropriation. For the Trunk Highway Fund (special revenue fund), inventories
are valued using weighted-average cost. Inventories maintained by the various funds are determined by
annual and periodic physical counts. Inventories of proprietary funds are valued using the first-in, first-
out, average cost, or specific cost methods.

Securities Lending

Securities on loan for cash collateral and the liabilities resulting from the security lending transactions are
reported on the Statement of Net Assets or the Balance Sheet, as appropriate, for the particular fund type
or level of reporting. Securities lending income and rebate and management fees are reported separately
on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances; the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets; or the Statement of Changes in Net Assets, as
appropriate for the particular fund type.

Restricted Assets

Mandatory asset segregations required by bond covenants and other external restrictions are presented
in enterprise funds and discretely presented component units as restricted assets. In the enterprise
funds, the excess of restricted assets over liabilities payable from restricted assets will first be used for
bonds payable.

Income Tax Credits

The Minnesota Department of Revenue processes several types of tax credits through the individual
income tax system. For financial reporting purposes, income tax credits that are limited by the amount of
the individual's tax liability (before considering such credits) are reported as revenue reductions. In
contrast, credits for Education, Working Family, and Child and Dependent Care may be received even if
they exceed the individual's tax liability. They are reported as expenditures, rather than revenue
reductions, because the income tax system is, essentially, being used as a filing and payment
mechanism to make grant payments to individuals.
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Grant Expenditures and Liabilities Recognition

Grants are defined as nonexchange transactions because the state gives (or receives) value to another
party without receiving (or giving) equal value in return. Grants are normally paid on either a
reimbursement basis or an entitlement basis. Entitlement type grants may be based on services provided
by the grantee. The intent of the grant is to help fund such services, but the grant amount is not based on
the cost of providing the service(s). Expenditures and the related liabilities for these types of entitlement
grants are recognized as the service is provided if the amount owed can be reasonably estimated soon
after the end of the state’s fiscal year. Other types of entitlement grants are not based on the services
provided or action taken by the grantee. Expenditures and the related liabilities for these types of grants
are recognized in the fiscal year in which the resources were appropriated.

Reimbursement type grants may be awarded for specific services provided to eligible recipients, or may
be made for eligible types of reimbursements. Grants paid on the reimbursement basis are recognized
as expenditures and liabilities in the year in which the grantee incurs the costs of providing specific
services to eligible recipients or makes eligible types of expenditures.

Compensated Absences

State employees accrue vacation leave, sick leave, and compensatory leave at various rates within limits
specified in the collective bargaining agreements. Leave balances are liquidated in cash only upon
termination from state employment. The current and noncurrent compensated absences liabilities for
governmental activities are reported only in the government-wide Statement of Net Assets. All other fund
types report the liability for compensated absences as a liability of the specific fund.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets, are reported in
the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements for proprietary funds. Capital
assets are defined by the state as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $30,000 for
equipment and $300,000 for buildings, and an estimated useful life of at least three years.

Capital assets are recorded at cost or, for donated assets, at fair value at the date of acquisition. An
inventory of land and buildings was completed in 1985. Historical cost records for older capital assets are
incomplete or not available; therefore, estimated historical costs have been used in these situations. Tax
forfeited land is not included in land inventory because the state does not take permanent title. When the
land is sold, proceeds are distributed to local jurisdictions.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method based on the following useful lives: 40-50
years for buildings, 20-50 years for large improvements, 3-10 years for small improvements, and 3-12
years for equipment. Transportation infrastructure assets using the modified approach, land, construction
in progress, and works of art and historical treasures, such as the state capitol, are not being depreciated.

GASB Statement No. 34 allows an alternative (modified) approach to the recording of infrastructure
assets which reflects a reasonable value of the assets and cost required to maintain the service potential
at established minimum standards in lieu of depreciation. The transportation infrastructure capital assets
of pavement and bridges are reported using the modified approach. In electing to use this option for
transportation infrastructure, the state uses an asset management system which establishes minimum
standards and determines, at least every three years, whether the minimum standards are being met.
Disclosures of the minimum standards and the current status of the state’'s pavement and bridges are
included in notes to the Required Supplementary Information. See Note 6 — Capital Assets for further
information on capital assets.

For proprietary funds, a portion of depreciation expense is included in the cost of goods sold amount;

therefore, depreciation expense reported on the Statement of Cash Flows exceeds depreciation expense
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets.
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Current and Noncurrent Assets

At the government-wide level, assets are classified as either current or noncurrent. Governmental activity
current assets are those, including cash, various receivables, and short-term investments, considered
available for appropriation and expenditure. Current assets in business-type activities are those that are
available or can readily be made available to meet the cost of operating or to pay current liabilities. All
other assets are considered noncurrent. Assets are classified as current or noncurrent in proprietary
funds, but assets are not classified at the fund level for governmental funds.

Noncurrent Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported
as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities or business-type activities column. Long-term
liabilities are the noncurrent portions of liabilities resulting from debt issuances, compensated absences,
closure and postclosure care for landfills, workers’ compensation claims, postretirement benefits, and
arbitrage rebate requirements. In proprietary fund statements, these liabilities are reported as liabilities of
each individual fund.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during
the current period. The face amount of the debt issued is reported as other financing sources while
discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. In the
government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over
the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

See Note 12 — Long-Term Liabilities for further information.
Deferred Compensation Plan

The state offers a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Service
Code, Section 457. The state Deferred Compensation Fund (pension trust fund) represents the value of
all assets of the plan. The plan is available to all public employees in the state and is administered by the
Minnesota State Retirement System. Under this plan, compensation is deferred for income tax purposes
in accordance with Section 457 and is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or
unforeseeable emergency. In accordance with state statute, effective July 1, 1997, contributions are held
for the exclusive benefit of the participants and their beneficiaries. These amounts are held in trust, in
custodial accounts or in qualifying contracts, as required by federal law. The State Board of Investment
determines the investment options available to plan participants and oversees the activities of the
investment managers. The majority of the assets of the plan are invested in various mutual funds. The
state is not liable for any investment losses under the plan.

Net Assets/Fund Balances

The difference between fund assets and liabilities is “Net Assets” on the government-wide, proprietary,
and fiduciary fund statements and “Fund Balances” on governmental fund statements.

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other debt
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of such assets. Significant unspent related
debt proceeds are included in Restricted for Capital Projects.

Restricted Net Assets represent the portion of net assets that are constrained either externally by parties
such as creditors or grantors, or legally through constitution provisions or enabling legislation. Restricted
net assets are determined at the fund level. For a fund with more than one revenue stream, restricted net
assets were determined by the materiality of any restricted revenues coming into the fund. When both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available for use, the state policy is to use restricted resources
first.
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Budgeting and Budgetary Control

The state operates on a two-year (biennial) budget cycle ending on June 30 of odd-numbered years.
Appropriations in the biennial budget are usually for a single year; however, where specified, single year
appropriations may be carried forward to the following year of the biennium. The governor's budget for
the biennium is developed by the Department of Finance and presented to the legislature for approval.
Specific appropriations are required for all expenditures from the General Fund and all special revenue
funds except the Federal, Petroleum Tank Cleanup, Maximum Effort School Loan, Iron Range Resources
and Rehabilitation, and Miscellaneous Special Revenue funds. Some appropriations are "open
appropriations" for entitlement type and some interfund transfer programs. In these cases, the amount
that is needed to fulfill the obligation for the fiscal year is made available. There is no limit on the amount
that can be expended for the program. Estimates of the amount needed for such programs are included
in the budget forecast.

Budgetary control is essentially maintained at the departmental level except for certain programs where
control is at the program level. In most departments, upon notifying the governor and legislative
leadership, department heads are permitted to revise budgets by transferring amounts between programs
within their departments.

Unencumbered appropriation balances generally cancel to the fund at the end of the fiscal year.
However, if specifically provided by law, or if statutory authority is invoked by the agency, the
unencumbered balance may be carried forward between fiscal years. The budget and the state
accounting system are maintained essentially on a cash basis with the exception that, at year-end,
encumbered amounts are included in the expenditures of the year appropriated for budgetary reporting.
The accounting system controls expenditures by appropriation line item as established in the legally
adopted appropriation bills. There are no instances where expenditures exceed the authorized limits at
the legal level of budgetary control. A separate report showing the detail of legal level of budgetary
control and actual expenditures is available from the Department of Finance. See Note 20 — Budgetary
Basis vs GAAP for additional information.

Interfund Activity and Balances

Generally, internal service fund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide statements.
Internal service fund activity from external customers is reported under governmental activities in the
government-wide statements. Interfund receivables and payables have been eliminated from the
government-wide Statement of Net Assets, except for residual amounts between governmental and
business-type activities. See Note 5 — Interfund Transactions for additional information.

New Funds

Laws of Minnesota 2005 imposed a health impact fee on the sale of cigarettes in the state. The Health
Impact Fund (special revenue fund) was created to account for proceeds from the fee.

Laws of Minnesota 2005 gave certain county boards permission to enter into agreements with the State
Board of Investment to invest county environmental trust funds on behalf of the county. The
Miscellaneous Investment Trust Fund (investment trust fund) was created to account for this investment
activity.

Change in Fund Structure

Laws of Minnesota 2005 moved the accounting and administration of the Hennepin County Supplemental
Retirement Plan to the Minnesota State Retirement System. The Hennepin County Supplemental Plan
net assets were moved from the Supplemental Retirement Fund (investment trust fund) to the Hennepin
County Supplemental Fund (pension trust fund), which was created to account for this activity.
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Note 2 — Cash and Investments
Primary Government
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The majority of the primary government’s cash is held in the state treasury and commingled in state bank
accounts, while the majority of component unit cash is held in separate bank accounts. Cash in individual
funds may be invested separately where permitted by statute; however, cash in most funds is invested as
part of an investment pool. A fund’s investment with the primary government’s cash pools is reported as
a cash equivalent. Where provided by statute, investment earnings of the primary government’s pools
are allocated to the individual funds. Earnings for all other participants are credited to the General Fund.

Deposits

Minnesota Statutes, Section 9.031, requires that deposits be secured by depository insurance or a
combination of depository insurance and collateral securities held in the state’s name by an agent of the
state. The statute further requires that the insurance and collateral shall be in an amount sufficient to
ensure that the deposits do not exceed 90 percent of the sum of the insured amounts and the fair value of
the collateral.

Investments

The State Board of Investment (SBI) manages the majority of the state’s investments. All investments
undertaken by SBI are governed by the standards codified in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 11A and
356A. Minnesota Statutes, Section 11A.24, broadly restricts investments of the primary government to
obligations and stocks of United States and Canadian governments, their agencies and registered
corporations, other international securities, short-term obligations of specified high quality, restricted
participation as a limited partner in venture capital, real estate, or resource equity investments, and
restricted participation in registered mutual funds.

Generally, when applicable, the statutes limit investments to those rated within the top four quality ratings
categories by a nationally recognized rating agency. The statutes further prescribe the maximum
percentage of fund assets that may be invested in various asset classes and contain specific restrictions
to ensure the quality of the investments.

SBI is authorized to establish, and has established, combined investment funds used by participating
public retirement and nonretirement funds. Retirement and nonretirement funds may not be commingled.
Each investment fund has its own characteristics, including investment objective and risk characteristics.
Within statutory requirements and based on detailed analyses of each fund, SBI has established
investment guidelines and benchmarks for all funds under its management. These investment guidelines
and benchmarks are tailored to the particular needs of each fund and specify investment objectives, risk
tolerance, asset allocation, investment management structure, and specific performance standards.

Interest Rate Risk — Investments

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. The state does not have a policy on interest risk. The contracts between SBI
and investment managers contain the guidelines and limitations regarding interest rate risk. Debt
securities are constrained around the quality rating, sector mix, and duration of the Lehman Aggregate
Bond Index. Interest rate risk information is presented using the weighted average maturity method,
which expresses investment time horizons, the period when investments become due and payable in
years or months, weighted to reflect the dollar size of individual investments within investment type.

Credit Risk of Debt Security Investments

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.
Minnesota Statutes limit investments in debt securities to the top four quality ratings categories by a
nationally recognized rating agency. The state does not have a credit risk policy that is more stringent
than the statutory requirements. The contracts between SBI and investment managers contain any
guidelines or limitations regarding credit risk.
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The primary government’s investments, excluding pension trust and investment trust funds, as of June
30, 2006, are presented below using the Standard & Poor’s (S & P) rating scale.

Primary Government
Governmental, Proprietary, and Agency Funds
Investments and Cash Equivalent Investments

As of June 30, 2006 (In Thousands)

Lower of S & P or Moody
S & P Equivalent Rating

Weighted

Average

Maturity AA or BBB BB or Not

Fair Value (Years) Better to A Lower Rated
Debt Securities:

U.S. Treasury $ 203,585 5.35 100% - - -
U.S. Agencies 359,365 7.47 94% - - 6%
Mortgage-backed Securities 108,879 20.66 89% 11% - -
State or Local Government Bonds 359,638 1.13 99% 1% - -
Corporate Bonds 1,934,542 3.33 81% 10% 1% 8%
Commercial Paper 2,264,208 0.12 100% - - -
Repurchase Agreements 414,520 0.08 - - - 100%
Short-term Securities 57,436 2.11 64% 28% - 8%

Total Debt Securities $ 5,702,173

Equity Investments:

Corporate Stock $ 672,780
Alternative Equities 6,436
Total Equity Investments $ 679,216

Other Investments:

Escheat Property $ 5,870

Money Market Accounts 11,890

Total Other Investments $ 17,760
Total Investments $ 6,399,149 "

(Motal investments are less than the amount shown on the face of the financial statements as amounts do not
include cash on hand.
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Investments of the pension trust and investment trust funds are presented below:

Primary Government
Pension Trust and Investment Trust Funds Investments
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Lower of S & P or Moody
S & P Equivalent Rating

Weighted
Average
Maturity AA or BBB BB or Not
Fair Value (Years) Better to A Lower Rated
Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasury $ 1,691,168 7.55 100% - - -
U.S. Agencies 1,221,163 3.83 98% - - 2%
Mortgage-backed Securities 5,396,768 24.78 99% - - 1%
State or Local Government Bonds 188,351 7.38 7% 20% 3% -
Corporate Bonds 2,485,687 6.59 17% 69% 13% 1%
Commercial Paper 89,302 0.46 100% - - -
Asset-backed Securities 838,881 16.24 91% 6% - 3%
Short-term Securities 1,814,054 0.12 - - - 100%
Total Debt Securities $ 13,725,374
Equity Investments:
Corporate Stock $ 27,915,466
Stock Options 37,443
Alternative Equities 4,750,931
Mutual Funds 3,350,965
Total Equity Investments $ 36,054,805
Total Investments $ 49,780,179

Concentration of Credit Risk — Investments

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in
a single issuer. The state does not have a formal policy regarding concentration of credit risk for rated
corporate debt securities that are among the top four quality categories. For other types of investments,
Minnesota Statutes, Section 11A.24, established the following parameters:

Unrated Corporate Obligations:

= Aggregate value may not exceed 5 percent of the market or book value, whichever is less, of the fund
being invested.

= SBI's participation is limited to 50 percent of a single offering.
= SBI's participation is limited to 25 percent of the issuer’'s unrated obligations.

Corporate Stock:

= Aggregate value of corporate stock may not exceed 85 percent of the market or book value,
whichever is less, of a fund.

= Generally, investment in corporate stock may not exceed five percent of the total outstanding shares
of any one corporation.
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The state had concentration of credit risk over 5 percent as of June 30, 2006, in the Federal National
Mortgage Association (FNMA). FNMA represented 16.7 percent of the primary government's debt
securities investments and 5.8 percent of the state’s total investments. The pension trust and investment
trust funds included in the primary government had 22.8 percent of the debt securities investments and
6.3 percent of the total investments in FNMA.

Foreign Currency Risk — Investments

Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in currency exchange rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment or a deposit. SBI has established guidelines to be used by investment managers
for international investing. Under these guidelines, countries are categorized based on a country’s legal
structures and standings regarding worker and human rights issues. Managers may invest in countries
with legal structures that generally respect the rights of workers and human rights without additional
notification of SBI. Investment managers who wish to invest in other countries must either notify SBI in
writing or appear before SBI, depending on the country involved. Managers with authority to invest in
foreign securities are given authority to hedge foreign currency through forward contracts to avoid
currency losses.

The primary government, excluding pension trust and investment trust funds, had no exposure to foreign
currency risk as of June 30, 2006.

The following table presents foreign currency risk for pension trust and investment trust funds:

Pension Trust and Investment Trust Funds
Foreign Currency Risk
International Investment Securities at Fair Value (In Thousands)
As of June 30, 2006
Currency Cash Debt Equity

Australian Dollar $ 5127  $ 6,361 § 224,799
Canadian Dollar 8,534 4,077 315,371
Euro Currency 25,856 - 1,885,252
Hong Kong Dollar 496 - 189,292
Indian Rupee 3,504 - 53,306
Japanese Yen 22,702 - 1,314,565
New Taiwan Dollar 6,317 - 96,386
Norwegian Krone 770 - 62,522
Pound Sterling 2,423 - 1,257,201
Singapore Dollar 899 - 55,241
South African Rand 425 - 89,927
South Korean Won - - 125,037
Swedish Krona 1,473 - 118,324
Swiss Franc 938 - 415,171
Other 513 - 223,845
Total $§ 79977 § 10438 § 6,426,239
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Custodial Risk — Investments

Custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of a failure of the counter party, the state will
not be able to recover the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party. Investments are held in the state’s name and collateral for repurchase agreements is held
in the state’s name by third party agents. The primary government does not have a formal policy for
custodial credit risk.

Securities Lending

Minnesota statutes do not prohibit the state from participating in securities lending transactions. The
state has, by way of Custodial Trust Agreements, authorized State Street Bank and Trust Company
(State Street) and Wells Fargo Bank, Minnesota, N.A., (Wells Fargo) to act as agents in lending state
securities to broker-dealers and banks pursuant to a form of loan agreement.

During the fiscal year, State Street and Wells Fargo lent on behalf of the state, certain securities held by
State Street or Wells Fargo as custodian and received cash (both United States and foreign currency)
and securities issued or guaranteed by the United States government, sovereign debt of foreign
countries, and irrevocable bank letters of credit as collateral. Neither State Street nor Wells Fargo has
the ability to pledge or sell collateral securities absent a borrower default. Borrowers were required to
deliver collateral for each loan in amounts equal to not less than 100 percent of the fair value of the
loaned securities.

The state did not impose any restrictions during the fiscal year on the amount of the loans that either
State Street or Wells Fargo made on the state’s behalf. State Street and Wells Fargo indemnified the
state by agreeing to purchase replacement securities or return the cash collateral in the event a borrower
failed to return a loaned security or pay distributions thereon. No borrower failed to return loaned
securities or pay distributions thereon during the fiscal year. In addition, there were no losses during the
fiscal year resulting from default of the borrowers.

During the fiscal year, the state and the borrowers maintained the right to terminate all securities lending
transactions on demand. The cash collateral received on each loan was invested in the separately
managed funds of SBI.

Primary Government
Securities Lending Analysis
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Wells Fargo State Street
Fair Value of Securities on Loan $ 335,128 $ 5,785,269
Collateral Held $ 341,892 $ 5,905,061
Average Duration 87 days N/A
Average Weighted Maturity 87 days 463 days
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Because the loans were terminable at will, their duration did not generally match the duration of the
investments made with cash collateral. On June 30, 2006, the state had no credit risk exposure to
borrowers because the amounts the state owed the borrowers exceeded the amounts the borrowers
owed the state.

Funds not invested by SBI are primarily Minnesota State Colleges and Universities’ funds. Investments
for these funds must also conform to the above statutes and may be further restricted by bond indentures.

Component Units
University of Minnesota and Metropolitan Council (major component units) were engaged in separate
securities lending programs during the fiscal year and calendar year, respectively. Their separately

issued financial statements disclose the facts regarding those programs. Neither had a credit risk at year-
end.

University of Minnesota

University of Minnesota (U of M) does not have a policy for custodial risk of deposits. As of June 30,
2006, $4,983,000 of the U of M’'s bank balance of $5,083,000 was uninsured and uncollateralized.

U of M maintains centralized management for substantially all of its cash and investments. The Board of
Regents establishes the U of M investment policies and objectives. U of M uses internal investment
pools designed to maximize investment return within consistent risk parameters for each pool.

U of M has established policies to address the various types of investment risks. As of June 30, 2006, U
of M, including its discretely presented component units, had $176,790,000 of cash and cash equivalents
and $3,038,232,000 of investments. The U of M’s discretely presented component units do not classify
investments according to risk because these entities prepare their financial statements under standards
set by the Financial Accounting Standards Board. Excluding discretely presented component units, U of
M reported cash and cash equivalents of $119,783,000 and investments of $1,440,084,000.

U of M uses Standard & Poor’s ratings and duration as a measure of a debt investment’'s exposure to fair
value changes arising from changing interest rates. As of June 30, 2006, $647,640,000 of investment in
securities was subject to quality rating and interest rate risk. This amount was rated as follows:

= $559,346,000 was rated AAA

= $19,147,000 was rated A or AA

=  $68,092,000 was rated BB or BBB

= $1,055,000 was not rated

The securities subject to interest rate risk were comprised of:

»  $342,035,000 in government agencies with a duration of 2.20 years

= $48,213,000 in corporate bonds with a duration of 0.82 years

= $66,559,000 in mortgage backed securities with a duration of 4.27 years
= $132,760,000 in cash and cash equivalents with a duration of .003 year

= $58,073,000 in other types of securities (primarily mutual funds) with a duration of 4.90 years
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As of June 30, 2006, U of M had $126,824,000 of equity investments subject to foreign currency risk.
The three largest components of this amount are as follows:

Euro $ 45,587,000
Japanese Yen $ 35,723,000
Pound Sterling $ 30,194,000

Metropolitan Council

Metropolitan Council (MC) has investment policies to address the various types of investment risks. As of
December 31, 2005, MC had a cash and investment portfolio of $433,910,000. Of this amount,
$382,061,000 was subject to rating. $218,952,000 of these investments were rated Aaa using the
Moody'’s rating scale. $158,277,000 was commercial paper rated at A-1 or P-1, while $4,832,000 was not
rated.

Several MC investment holdings of specific issuers represent more than five percent of combined cash
and investments. These holdings include: Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation, and Federal National Mortgage Association.

MC has adopted the simulation model of reporting investment sensitivity to fluctuation in interest rates.
Assumptions are made of interest rate changes of 50, 100, 150, and 200 basis points with interest rate
changes occurring on December 31, 2005. The investment portfolio has an average yield of 4.77
percent, modified duration of 3.72 years, effective duration of 1.97 years, and convexity of -.53.

The following table presents the estimated fair value of MC investments subject to interest rate risk using
the simulation model.

Estimated Fair
Value

December 31, 2005 $ 415,446,000

Fair Value of Portfolio After Basis
Point Increase of:

50 Points $ 413,994,000

100 Points $ 409,016,000

150 Points $ 403,916,000

200 Points $ 398,877,000
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Housing Finance Agency

Housing Finance Agency (HFA) investments had an estimated fair market value of $254,894,000 as of
June 30, 2006. All investment agreement providers have a Standard & Poor’s long-term credit rating of
‘AA-’ or higher and a Moody'’s Investors Service long-term credit rating of ‘Aa3’ or higher. The individual
investment agreements were unrated. Substantially all of the agreements contain termination clauses so
that HFA may withdraw funds early if credit ratings deteriorate below specified levels and collateral is not
provided.

As of June 30, 2006, HFA had $1,103,132,000 of cash, cash equivalents, and investments. Of this
amount, 77 percent had maturities of less than 30 days, 21.3 percent (U.S. Agencies) having maturities of
0.7 — 13 years and 2 percent (U.S. Treasuries) having maturities of 10 — 15 years.

HFA investments in any single issuer that exceeded five percent of total investments amounted to
$693,268,000. These investments involved Bayerische Landesbank, AIG Matched Funding, MBIA, and
FSA Capital Management Services investment agreements.

As of June 30, 2006, $202,111,000 of deposits and $89,255,000 of investment securities were subject to
custodial risk.

Nonmajor Component Units

The following table presents the cash, cash equivalents, and investments by nonmajor component unit.

Cash and Cash

Component Unit Equivalents Investments
Agricultural and Economic Development Board $ 10,664,000 $ 19,083,000
Minnesota Partnership for Action Against Tobacco 26,000 162,839,000
National Sports Center Foundation 511,000 -
Office of Higher Education 192,270,000 5,676,000
Public Facilities Authority 250,812,000 26,841,000
Rural Finance Authority 9,894,000 -
Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan 8,416,000 311,042,000

Total $ 472,593,000 $ 525,481,000
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Note 3 — Disaggregation of Receivables

The following are the components of net accounts receivable as reported in the government-wide
Statement of Net Assets as of June 30, 2006:

Components of Net Receivables
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

Nonmajor
Governmental
General Fund _ Federal Fund Funds" Total

Taxes:
Corporate and Individual  $ 518,768 $ -3 - 3 518,768
Sales and Use 295,852 - - 295,852
Property 321,146 - - 321,146
Health Care Provider 168,600 - 74,099 242,699
Highway Users - - 85,195 85,195
Child Support 92,721 93,494 - 186,215
Workers’ Compensation - - 101,497 101,497
Other 223,399 42,510 126,071 391,980
Net Receivables $ 1,620,486 $ 136,004 $ 386,862 $§ 2,143,352

Business-type Activities
State Colleges  Unemployment Nonmajor
and Universities Insurance Enterprise Funds Total

Unemployment Insurance $ - $ 388,564 $ - $ 388,564
Tuition and Fees 34,887 - - 34,887
Other - - 27,506 27,506
Net Receivables $ 34,887 $ 388,564 $ 27,506 $ 450,957
Total Government-wide Net Receivables $ 2,594,309

Mincludes $12,098 Internal Service Funds.

Accounts receivable are reported net of allowances for uncollectible amounts. Significant uncollectible
amounts are:

» Corporate and Individual Taxes $180,806,000
= Sales and Use Taxes $45,451,000

*  Child Support $371,263,000

= Other Receivables $55,317,000
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Significant receivable balances not expected to be collected within one year are:

= Corporate and Individual Taxes $75,074,000
= Sales and Use Taxes $16,622,000

=  Child Support $130,095,000

= Health Care Provider $66,513,000

= Other Receivables $21,913,000

Note 4 — Loans and Notes Receivable

Loans and notes receivable, net of allowances for possible losses, as of June 30, 2006, consisted of the
following:

Primary Government
Loans and Notes Receivable
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)
Nonmajor
Special Capital State Colleges
General Federal Revenue Projects  and Universities
Fund Fund Funds Funds Fund

Student Loan Program $ - % - $ - 9% -3 34,790
Economic Development 47,299 - 56,816 36,850 -
School Districts - - 112,829 - -
Energy - - - 1,345 -
Agricultural 120 - 48,655 - -
Transportation - - 20,554 - -
Resources - - 16,407 - -
Other - 65 1,145 11 -
Total $ 47419 § 65 $ 256,406 $ 38,206 § 34,790

Component Units
Loans and Notes Receivable
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Housing Finance Authority $ 1,805,094
Metropolitan Council 26,557
University of Minnesota 70,342
Agricultural and Economic Development Board 17,300
Office of Higher Education 603,480
Public Facilities Authority 1,314,153
Rural Finance Authority 50,471

Total $ 3,887,397
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Note 5 — Interfund Transactions

Primary Government

During normal operations, the state processes routine transactions between funds, including loans,
expenditures, and transfers of resources for administrative and program services, debt service, and
compliance with legal mandates.

In the fund financial statements, these transactions are generally recorded as transfers in/transfers out
and due to/due from other funds. Transfers generally represent legally authorized transfers between
funds authorized to receive revenue and funds authorized to make expenditures, and do not represent
reimbursement of expenditures.

Interfund Receivables and Payables
As of June 30, 2006 (In Thousands)
Due to the General Fund From:
Federal Fund $ 20,981
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 227,458
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 9,348
Internal Service Funds 269
Total Due to General Fund From Other Funds $ 258,056
Due to the Federal Fund From:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 5,161
Total Due to Federal Fund From Other Funds $ 5,161
Due to the State Colleges and Universities Fund From:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 15,847
Total Due to State Colleges and Universities From Other Funds $ 15,847
Due to the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds From:
General Fund $ 1,086
Total Due to Nonmajor Enterprise Funds $ 1,086
Due to the Internal Service Funds From:
General Fund $ 545
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 222
Total Due to Nonmajor Enterprise Funds $ 767
Due to Fiduciary Funds From:
Fiduciary Funds $ 8,278
Total Due to Fiduciary Funds From Other Fiduciary Funds $ 8,278
Due to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds From:
General Fund $ 10,467
Federal Fund 857
Unemployment Insurance Fund 43,785
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 103,046
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 1,421
Total Due to Nonmajor Governmental Funds From Other Funds $ 159,576
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The Central Motor Pool Fund had an outstanding advance of $3,500,000 from the General Fund as of
June 30, 2006. This advance is not expected to be repaid within one year.

Interfund Transfers
Year Ended June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Transfers to the General Fund From:

Federal Fund $ 18,188
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 389,332
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 65,092
Internal Service Funds 16,262

Total Transfers to General Fund From Other Funds $ 488,874

Transfers to the Federal Fund From:
Unemployment Insurance Fund $ 1,127
Total Transfers to Federal Fund From Other Funds $ 1,127

Transfers to the State Colleges and Universities Fund From:

General Fund $ 600,694
Nonmajor Governmental Funds — Capital Contributions 71,249
Total Transfers to State Colleges and Universities From Other Funds $ 671,943

Transfers to the Unemployment Insurance Fund From:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 1,747
Total Transfers to Unemployment Insurance Fund From Other Funds ~ § 1,747

Transfers to Fiduciary Funds From:
Fiduciary Funds $ 12,303
Total Transfers to Fiduciary Funds From Other Fiduciary Funds $ 12,303

Transfers to the Nonmajor Governmental Funds From:

General Fund $ 574,958
Federal Fund 8,791
Unemployment Insurance Fund 81,408
Nonmajor Governmental Funds 1,401,168
Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 54,005
Internal Service Funds 8,582

Total Transfers to Nonmajor Governmental Funds From Other Funds  $ 2,128,912

Transfers to the Nonmajor Enterprise Funds From:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 2,032
Total Transfers to Nonmajor Enterprise Funds From Other Funds $ 2,032
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Component Units

Receivables and payables as of June 30, 2006, between the primary government and component units,
are summarized as follows:

Primary Government and Component Units
Receivables and Payables
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)
Due From Due To
Primary Primary
Government Government
Component Units
Major Component Units:
Housing Finance Agency $ - $ 35,235
Metropolitan Council 42,639 -
University of Minnesota 106,450 63,208
Total Major Component Units $ 149,089 $ 98,443
Nonmajor Component Units $ 29,949 $ 69,994
Total Component Units $ 179,038 $ 168,437
Due From Due To
Component Component
Units Units
Primary Government
Major Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ 38,218 $ 96,137
Federal Fund - 2,086
Total Major Governmental Funds $ 38,218 $ 98,223
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 120,525 $ 9,552
Total Primary Government $ 158,743 $ 107,775
MDue to component units on the Government-wide Statement of Net Assets totals
$137,685, including $29,910 of loans payable to the Public Facilities Authority, a
component unit, that are not fund level liabilities.

Due to primary government exceeds due from component units by $9,694,000 for amounts owed to the
primary government by Metropolitan Council, Workers’ Compensation Assigned Risk Plan, and National
Sports Center Foundation because the fiscal year end used by the component units differs from the
primary government. The rationale is the same for due from primary government exceeding due to
component units by $41,353,000.
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Note 6 — Capital Assets

Primary Government

Capital Asset Activity
Year Ended June 30, 2006 (In Thousands)

Balance Balance
July 1, 2005 Additions Deductions June 30, 2006
Governmental Activities
Capital Assets not Depreciated:

Land $ 1,559,646 $ 122,214 $ (1,404) § 1,680,456

Buildings, Structures, Improvements 26,624 704 - 27,328

Construction in Progress 193,137 40,393 (125,313) 108,217

Infrastructure 5,519,129 451,935 (5,811) 5,965,253

Art and Historical Treasures 500 - - 500
Total Capital Assets not Depreciated $ 7,299,036 § 615,246 $ (132,528) § 7,781,754
Capital Assets Depreciated:

Buildings, Structures, Improvements $ 1,573,229 $ 343,749 $ (45,765) § 1,871,213

Infrastructure 49,201 49 - 49,250

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 374,985 49,882 (36,033) 388,834
Total Capital Assets Depreciated $ 1,997 415 § 393,680 $ (81,798) $ 2,309,297
Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings, Structures, Improvements $ (642,832) $ (67,467) $ 34655 $ (675,644)

Infrastructure (4,589) (1,401) - (5,990)

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures (235,163) (35,730) 32,587 (238,306)
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ (882,584) $ (104,598) $ 67,242 $ (919,940)
Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net $ 1,114,831  § 289,082 $ (14,556) $ 1,389,357
Governmental Act. Capital Assets, Net $ 8,413,867 $ 904,328 $ (147,084) $ 9,171,111

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets not Depreciated:

Land $ 74,828 § 1,537 $ - $ 76,365

Construction in Progress 54,170 124,660 (74,476) 104,354
Total Capital Assets not Depreciated $ 128,998 § 126,197 $ (74,476) $ 180,719
Capital Assets Depreciated:

Buildings, Structures, Improvements $ 1,704,480 $ 75,031 $ 161) $ 1,779,350

Library Collections 48,059 7,022 (6,576) 48,505

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures 280,248 19,966 (24,299) 275,915
Total Capital Assets Depreciated $ 2,032,787 $ 102,019 $ (31,036) $ 2,103,770
Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings, Structures, Improvements $ (827,407) $ (47,042) $ - $ (874,449)

Library Collections (27,377) (6,970) 6,575 (27,772)

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures (196,714) (21,036) 21,584 (196,166)
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ (1,051,498) $ (75,048) § 28,159 $  (1,098,387)
Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net $ 981,289 § 26,971 $ (2,877) § 1,005,383
Business-type Act. Capital Assets, Net $ 1,110,287 § 153,168 $ (77,353) $ 1,186,102

Fiduciary Funds
Capital Assets not Depreciated:

Land $ 429 §$ - $ - $ 429
Total Capital Assets not Depreciated $ 429 § - $ - $ 429
Capital Assets Depreciated:

Buildings $ 29,547 $ - $ - 8 29,547

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures™ 7,028 449 (1,410) 6,067
Total Capital Assets Depreciated $ 36,575 § 449 $ (1,410) § 35,614
Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings $ (2,949) § (738) $ - 8 (3,687)

Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures" (4,828) (608) 1,410 (4,026)
Total Accumulated Depreciation $ 7,777) $ (1,346) $ 1410 $ (7,713)
Total Capital Assets Depreciated, Net $ 28,798 $ (897) $ - % 27,901
Fiduciary Funds, Capital Assets, Net $ 29,227 § (897) $ - $ 28,330

m Beginning balance reflects addition of Minneapolis Teachers Retirement Fund Association.
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Art and historical treasures are reported as capital assets that are not depreciated.

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Primary Government
Depreciation Expense
Year Ended June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities:

Public Safety and Corrections $ 18,847
Transportation 18,659
Agricultural and Environmental Resources 6,381
Economic and Workforce Development 1,130
General Education 3,123
Health and Human Services 16,570
General Government 12,252
Internal Service Funds 8,324

Total Governmental Activities $ 85,286

Business-type Activities:

State Colleges and Universities $ 71,008
Lottery 368
Other 3,672

Total Business-type Activities $ 75,048

During fiscal year 2006, buildings cost and accumulated depreciation increased by $19,312,000 as a
result of capitalizing buildings not previously reported. This has no impact to the statement of activities as
these buildings were fully depreciated.

Capital outlay expenditures in the governmental funds totaled $854,612,000 for fiscal year 2006.
Donations of general capital assets received during fiscal year 2006 were valued at $21,000. Transfers
from construction in progress to completed construction were $124,703,000. Additions in internal service
funds were $10,278,000.

General capital assets purchased with resources provided by outstanding capital lease agreements as of

June 30, 2006, consisted of equipment with a cost of $10,299,000 and buildings with a cost of
$180,005,000.

A-60



Authorizations and commitments as of June 30, 2006, for the largest construction in progress projects
consisted of the following (in thousands):

Administration Military Zoological

Projects Affairs Transportation Board
Authorization $ 124,901 § 6,444  $ 7,000 $ 23,640
Expended through June 30, 2006 21,736 4,712 611 1,306
Unexpended Commitment 1,774 - 4. 956 3,267
Available Authorization $ 101,391 $ 1,732 § 1,433 $ 19,067

Land in the Permanent School Fund totaling 2,516,284 acres was donated by the federal government and
valued at the estimated fair value at the time of donation.

Component Units

Component unit capital assets consisted of the following as of December 31, 2005, or June 30, 2006, as
applicable:

Capital Assets
As of December 31, 2005 or June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Major Component Units

Housing Nonmajor
Finance Metropolitan  University of Component
Agency Council Minnesota Units Totals
Land and Improvements $ - 9 74,337 $ 57,955 $ 2834 $ 135,126
Construction in Progress - 258,306 33,576 - 291,882
Museums and Collections - - 38,427 - 38,427
Buildings and Improvements - 2,440,876 2,404,051 710 4,845,637
Equipment 5,769 535,611 665,951 1,648 1,208,979
Infrastructure - - 326,814 - 326,814
Total $ 5,769 §$ 3,309,130 $ 3,526,774 $ 5192 §$ 6,846,865
Less: Accumulated Depreciation 2,084 1,066,368 1,620,411 1,964 2,690,827
Net Total $ 3,685 $ 2,242,762 $ 1,906,363 § 3,228 $ 4,156,038

™ n addition to this amount, the seven component units of the University of Minnesota had combined capital
assets with a net value of $54,875 as of June 30, 2006.
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Note 7 — Disaggregation of Payables

The following are the components of accounts payable as reported in the government-wide Statement of
Net Assets as of June 30, 2006:

Components of Accounts Payable
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

Nonmajor
General Governmental
Fund Federal Fund Funds" Total
School Aid Programs $ 659,099 $ 144,263 $ - % 803,362
Tax Refunds 506,615 - - 506,615
Medical Assistance 345,242 356,829 - 702,071
Grants 197,122 131,952 216,183 545,257
Salaries and Benefits 59,534 10,517 45,719 115,770
Vendors/Service Providers 43,070 37,826 177,799 258,695
Other 12,241 907 22,520 35,668
Net Payables $ 1822923 § 682,294 $ 462,221 § 2,967,438

Business-type Activities

State Nonmajor
Colleges and  Unemployment Enterprise
Universities Insurance Funds Total

Salaries and Benefits $ 96,512 $ - $ 5026 $ 102,438
Vendors/Service Providers 36,611 - 2,490 39,101
Other 7,728 28,434 13,188 49,350
Net Payables $ 140,851 §$ 28,434 $ 21604 §$ 190,889
Total Government-wide Net Payables $ 3,158,327

Mincludes $57,660 Internal Service Funds.
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Note 8 — Pension and Investment Trust Funds

The state performs a fiduciary role for several pension trust funds. For some of these funds, the state
contributes as an employer, and for other funds performs only a fiduciary role. These trust funds are
categorized as either defined benefit or defined contribution (pension trust funds) or investment trust
funds.

Three plan administrators, who prepare and publish their own stand-alone comprehensive annual
financial reports, including financial statements and required supplementary information, provide the
pension fund information. Each plan administrator accounts for one or more pension plans. Copies of
these reports may be obtained directly from the organizations listed below.

See Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting and Reporting Policies for addresses.

Plan Administrator Plans Covered

Minnesota State Retirement System (MSRS) State Employees Retirement Fund
Correctional Employees Retirement Fund
Elective State Officers Fund
Judicial Retirement Fund
Legislative Retirement Fund
State Patrol Retirement Fund
Unclassified Employees Retirement Fund
Postretirement Health Care Benefits Fund
State Deferred Compensation Fund
Hennepin County Supplemental Retirement

Teachers Retirement Association (TRA) Teachers Retirement Fund

Public Employees Retirement Association (PERA) Public Employees Retirement Fund
Police and Fire Fund
Public Employees Correctional Fund
Defined Contribution Retirement Fund

Basis of Accounting and Valuation of Investments

The three plan administrators prepare financial statements using the accrual basis of accounting.
Employee and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which they are earned and become
measurable. Expenses are recognized when the liability is incurred. Benefits and refunds are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the terms of each plan.

Except as described below, investments are reported at fair value. Short-term investments are reported
at cost, which approximates fair value. Securities traded on a national or international exchange are
valued at the last reported trade price. Investments that do not have an established market are reported
at estimated fair value.
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The individual pension trust funds participate in internal investment pools sponsored by the state and
administered by the State Board of Investment (SBI). The pools function much like mutual funds, with the
various pension trust funds purchasing “units” in the pool rather than individual securities. At year-end,
some security purchase and sale transactions entered into by SBI were not settled, resulting in securities
trades receivables and payables. These unsettled securities trades are an essential element in
determining the fair value of each pension trust fund’'s pooled investment balance; therefore, the trades
are reported in the Combining Statement of Net Assets of pension trust funds as net amounts and
allocated to the individual pension trust funds. As of June 30, 2006, this presentation resulted in a
negative asset within the funds’ investments.

Defined Benefit Pension Funds
Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information
= Multiple employer, cost-sharing plans:

The State Employees Retirement Fund (SERF) covers those employees of the state, University of
Minnesota, and certain other entities not covered by other pension funds. Thirty-three employers
participate in this plan. Normal retirement age is 65. The annuity formula is the greater of a step rate
with a flat rate reduction for each month of early retirement, or a level rate (the higher step rate) with
an actuarial reduction for early retirement. The applicable rates for each year of allowable service are
1.2 percent and 1.7 percent of a member’s average salary, which is defined as the highest salary paid
in five successive years of service. The state, as an employer for some participants, is liable for a
portion of any unfunded accrued liability of this fund.

The Teachers Retirement Fund (TRF) covers teachers and other related professionals employed by
school districts or by the state. Five hundred seventy three (573) employers participate in this plan.
Normal retirement is age 65. Basic membership includes participants who are not covered by the
Social Security Act, while coordinated membership includes participants who are covered by the act.
The annuity formula for each type of membership is the greater of a step rate with a flat reduction for
each month of early retirement, or a level rate (the higher step rate) with an actuarially based
reduction for early retirement. The applicable rates for each year of allowable service based on
average salary for basic members are 2.2 and 2.7 percent; and for coordinated members, 1.2 and 1.7
percent for service rendered before July 1, 2006, and 1.4 and 1.9 percent for service rendered on or
after July 1, 2006. The state, as.an employer for some participants, is liable for a portion of any
unfunded accrued liability of this fund.

The Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF) covers employees of various governmental
subdivisions; including counties, cities, school districts, and related organizations. Approximately
2,000 employers participate in this plan. There are two types of membership: basic and coordinated
as defined above. Normal retirement age is 65. The annuity formula for each type of membership is
the greater of a step rate with a flat reduction for each month of early retirement, or a level rate (the
higher step rate) with an actuarially based reduction for early retirement. The applicable rates for
each year of allowable service based on average salary for basic members are 2.2 and 2.7 percent;
and for coordinated members, 1.2 and 1.7 percent. The state is not an employer of the participants in
the plan, but performs in a fiduciary capacity.

The Police and Fire Fund (P&FF) covers persons employed as police officers and firefighters by local
governmental subdivisions. Approximately 500 employers participate in this plan. Normal retirement
age is 55. The annuity formula for each member is 3.0 percent of average salary for each year of
service in that plan. Prior to 1981, these employees were not covered by a local relief association.
The fund covers all those hired since 1980. The state is not an employer of participants in the plan,
but performs in a fiduciary capacity.
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The Public Employees Correctional Fund (PECF) covers employees in county correctional facilities
who have direct contact with inmates. Approximately 80 employers participate in this plan. Normal
retirement age is 55. The annuity formula for each member is 1.9 percent of average salary for each
year of service in that plan. The state is not an employer of participants in the plan, but performs in a
fiduciary capacity.

Single employer (state of Minnesota) plans:

The Correctional Employees Retirement Fund (CERF) covers state employees who have direct
responsibility for inmates at Minnesota correctional facilities. Normal retirement age is 55. The
annuity is 2.4 percent of average salary for each year of service.

The Elective State Officers Fund (ESOF) covers the state's constitutional officers. Vesting occurs
after eight years. Normal retirement age is 62. The annuity is 2.5 percent of average salary for each
year of service. The ESOF is excluded from the Single Employers Plan disclosures since the
remaining active employees have retired, terminated or elected coverage under another plan. This
plan is closed to new entrants according to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 352C.

The Judicial Retirement Fund (JRF) covers judges of the supreme court, district courts, county courts,
probate courts, and various court referees. Normal retirement age is 65. The annuity is 2.7 percent
of average salary for each year of service (3.2 percent for each year after June 30, 1980).

The Legislative Retirement Fund (LRF) covers some members of the state's house of representatives
and senate. Legislators newly elected since January 1997 are covered by the Unclassified Employee
Retirement Fund. Vesting occurs after six years. Normal retirement age is 62. The annuity ranges
from 2.5 percent to 5.0 percent of average salary for each year of service depending on length of
service.

The State Patrol Retirement Fund (SPRF) covers state patrol officers, crime bureau officers, and
various conservation officers who perform enforcement duties. Normal retirement age is 55. The
annuity is 3.0 percent of average salary for each year of service.

Funding Policy Information

Single Employer Multiple Employer
CERF ESOF JRF LRF SPRF SERF TRF
Statutory Authority,
Minnesota Chapter 352 352C 490 3A 352B 352 354

Required Contribution Rate of
Active Members (%) 5.69 N/A  8.15 9.00 8.40 4.00 5.00

Required Contribution
Rate of Employer (%) 7.98 N/A 2050 N/A 12.60 4.00 5.00
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Required Contributions:

Employee

Employer!"

(In Thousands)

2006
2005
2004

2006
2005
2004

Multiple Employer Plan Required Contributions

SERF TRF
$ 85,379 $ 177,085
$ 83,101 $ 160,982
$ 82,103 $ 159,140
$ 82,645 $ 179,022
$ 80,312 $ 157,693
$ 78,622 $ 151,029

MContributions were at least 100 percent of required contributions.

Single Employer Plan Disclosures for Current Year
(In Thousands)

Annual Required Contributions (ARC)™"
Interest on Net Pension Obligation (NPO)™"
Amort Adj to ARC™"

Annual Pension Cost

Contributions

Increase (Decrease) in NPO

NPO, Beginning Balance

NPO, Ending (Asset)

“)Components of annual pension cost.

CERF JRF LRF SPRF
$ 2583 $ 9624 $ 3260 $ 10,793
(15) (691) (673) (2,752)

16 706 599 1,743

$ 2583 $ 9639 $ 3186 $ 9,784
(21,116)  (10,202) (5,948) (11,774)
$ 4720 $  (563) $ (2,762) $  (1,990)
$ (182) $ (8,135) $ (7,920) $ (32,381)
$ 4538 $ (8698) $ (10,682) $ (34,371)
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Single Employer Plan Disclosures
(In Thousands)

CERF JRF LRF SPRF
Annual Pension Cost (APC) 2006 $ 25836 $§ 9639 § 3186 § 9,784
2005 $ 24115 $ 10,347 $ 3,101 $& 8,677
2004 $ 20846 § 9,222 § 2281 $§ 8,344
Percentage of APC Contributed 2006 82% 106% 187% 120%
2005 79% 96% 71% 129%
2004 88% 106% 34% 132%
NPO (End of Year) 2006 $ 4538 $§ (8698) $ (10,682) $ (34,371)
2005 % (182) $ (8,135) $ (7,920) $ (32,381)
2004 $ (5338) $ (8,595 $ (8,816) $ (29,871)

Actuarial Assumptions for Single Employers

The actuarial cost method used by all plans is the Entry Age Normal method. The date of actuarial
valuation is July 1, 2005.

The calculation of the actuarial valuation of assets is a market value based formula based on the
Unrecognized Asset Return (UAR is actual net return on market value minus net return based on
actuarial assumption). The actuarial value of assets is the Market Value of Assets as of June 30,
2005, less: 80 percent UAR for fiscal year 2005; 60 percent UAR for fiscal year 2004; 40 percent
UAR for fiscal year 2003; and 20 percent UAR for fiscal year 2002.

Minnesota Statutes or valuation standards do not require an inflation rate assumption to cost the
plans.

Expected investment returns for pre-retirement and postretirement are 8.5 percent and 6.0 percent,
respectively, for all plans.

Projected salary increases are graded from 7.75 percent to 5.25 percent for SPRF and CERF. For
LRF and JRF, projected salary increases are a level 5.0 percent.

The payment of earnings on retired reserves in excess of 6.0 percent is accounted for by 6.0 percent
postretirement assumptions for all plans. Under the LRF plan, for those persons not yet in pay status,
a 5.0 percent postretirement discount rate is used to account for the one-time adjustment applicable
at retirement.

The level percentage of projected payroll is the amortization method used, except for the ESOF plan,
which uses the level dollar amortization method.

The amortization period is through July 1, 2020.

The amortization period is closed.
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Defined Contribution Funds

The defined contribution funds presented in the financial statements include various statewide public
employee retirement funds under which the benefits to be received are limited to an annuity, which can
be purchased with the combined contributions of both the employee and employer or solely with
employee contributions, depending on the fund. Accordingly, there is no unfunded liability for these
funds; therefore, there is no actuarial valuation of accrued benefit liability nor any actuarially required
contribution.

Plan Descriptions and Contribution Information

The Unclassified Employee Retirement Fund (UERF), authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 352D,
covers only those state employees who are included either by statute or policy in the "unclassified
service" of the state and specified employees of various statutorily designated entities. Statutory
contribution rates are 4.0 percent for employee and 6.0 percent for employer. Vesting occurs
immediately, and normal retirement age is 55. Annuity is based on age and value of the participant's
account.

The Defined Contribution Fund (DCF) is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353D. The plan
covers local units of government of which current or former elected officials elect to participate (with the
exception of elected county sheriffs), emergency medical service personnel employed by or providing
service to any of the participating ambulance services, and physicians employed at public facilities. Plan
benefits depend solely on amounts contributed to the plan, plus investment earnings, less administrative
expenses. There is no vesting period required to receive benefits from this plan. DCF covers
approximately 1,000 units of government. As of June 30, 2006, there were approximately 6,700
members in the plan.

The Postretirement Health Care Benefits Fund (PHCBF), authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section
352.98, creates a postretirement health care savings plan or plans, by which public employers and
employees may save to cover postretirement health care costs. Contributions to the plan by or on behalf
of an employee are held in trust for reimbursement of employee and dependent health-related expenses
following retirement from public service. The current plan is based on state employee contributions
without any matching provision by the state. A plan participant may request reimbursement until funds
accumulated in the participant's account are exhausted.

The State Colleges and Universities Retirement Fund (CURF), authorized by Minnesota Statutes,
Chapter 354B and Chapter 354C, covers unclassified teachers, librarians, administrators, and certain
other staff members who have been employed full-time by Minnesota State Colleges and Universities for
a minimum of two academic years. Participation is mandatory for qualified employees. This fund
consists of an Individual Retirement Account Plan (IRAP) and a Supplemental Retirement Plan (SRP).
Two member groups, faculty and managerial employees, participate in the IRAP. The employer and
employee statutory contribution rates are 6.0 and 4.5 percent, respectively, for both member groups. For
the SRP, the statutorily required contribution rate is 5.0 percent of salary between $6,000 and $15,000.
Statutes allow additional employer and employee contributions under specific circumstances. Vesting
occurs immediately, and normal retirement is age 55. Total current membership in the plan is
approximately 14,400.

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is the administrative agent for the State Colleges and Universities Retirement
Fund. Separately issued financial statements can be obtained from Wells Fargo, Institutional Investments
Group, Retirement Plan Services, Suite 300, 2700 Snelling Avenue North, Roseville, Minnesota, 55113.

The Hennepin County Supplemental Retirement Fund (HCSRF), authorized by Minnesota Statutes,
Sections 383B.46-52, covers employees of Hennepin County who began employment prior to April 14,
1982. The employee and employer contribution rate is 1.0 percent of the employee’s salary. As of June
30, 2006, there were approximately 2,300 members in the plan.
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Defined Contribution Plans
Contributions Made for Fiscal Year 2006
(In Thousands)

UERF DCF PHCBF CURF HCSRF
Employee Contributions $ 4,368 $ 1,282 $ 52,562 $ 28,438 $ 426
Employer Contributions $ 5,932 $ 1,392 N/A $ 31,070 $ 426

The Minnesota State Deferred Compensation Plan (State Deferred Compensation Fund) is a voluntary
retirement savings plan authorized under section 457 of the Internal Revenue Code and Minnesota
Statutes, Section 352.96. The plan is composed of employee pre-tax contributions. Employers do not
contribute to this plan. Employees and elected officials of the state and its political subdivisions are
eligible to participate in the plan. The plan has approximately 77,000 participants from approximately 500
employers.

Investment Trust Fund

The Supplemental Retirement Fund (investment trust fund) is administered by the State Board of
Investment, which issues a separate report (see Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting and
Reporting Policies for the address). This fund is an investment pool for external participants, which are
locally administered retirement funds, and a deferred compensation plan.

Component Units

The following component units are participants in the State Employees Retirement Fund (SERF), Police
and Fire Fund (P&FF), and the Unclassified Employees Retirement funds:

= Agricultural and Economic Development Board
= Housing Finance Agency

= Metropolitan Council

= Office of Higher Education

= Public Facilities Authority

= Rural Finance Authority

= University of Minnesota
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Merger of Minneapolis Teachers Retirement Fund Association and Teachers Retirement
Association

Laws of Minnesota 2006, Chapter 277, Article 3, Section 9, codified as Minnesota Statutes, Section
354.70, authorized the merger of the Minneapolis Teachers Retirement Fund Association (MTRFA) into
the Teachers Retirement Fund (TRF). All assets and liabilities for the 13,783 active, inactive, and retired
MTRFA members were transferred to TRF as of June 30, 2006. All MTRFA assets of approximately $712
million were transferred to TRF on behalf of former MTRFA retirees. The unfunded liability for former
MTRFA members was assumed by TRF. The resulting TRF unfunded liability is being funded from
multiple sources, including redirection of existing MTRFA direct state and local aids, a higher employee
contribution rate, and an increased employer contribution rate beginning July 1, 2007. The TRF unfunded
liability will be amortized over a closed period ending July 1, 2037.

Under new legislation, all TRF coordinated members received improved formula multipliers from 1.2 to
1.4 percent and from 1.7 to 1.9 percent per year for years of service beginning on or after July 1, 2006.
Beginning, July 1, 2006, TRF coordinated employee contribution rates increased .5 percent.

All TRF members hired on or after July 1, 20086, are eligible for a reduced deferred annuity augmentation
of 2.5 percent per year between the date of termination and effective date of retirement. TRF members
hired prior to July 1, 20086, are eligible for a deferred annuity augmentation of 3 percent per year prior to
age 55 and 5 percent per year from age 55 until the date of retirement.

Note 9 — Termination and Postretirement Benefits
Primary Government — Termination Benefits

Effective July 1, 2005, the state implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 47, “Accounting for Termination Benefits”. Early termination benefits are defined as
benefits received for discontinuing services earlier than planned. Under this statement, a liability and
expense for voluntary termination benefits are recognized when the offer is accepted and the amount can
be estimated. A liability and expense for involuntary termination benefits are recognized when a plan of
termination has been approved, the plan has been communicated to the employees, and the amount can
be estimated.

Only three state bargaining agreements provide for this benefit. These agreements, affecting only
Minnesota State Colleges and Universities (MnSCU) employees, are the Minnesota State College
Faculty, Inter Faculty Organization, and Minnesota State University Association of Administrative Service
Faculty contracts. Approximately 200 former facility members currently receive this benefit. The cost of
the benefits was $4,700,000 during fiscal year 2006. The implementation of Statement No. 47 resulted in
a current undiscounted liability of $3,062,000 and a non-current liability of $2,870,000 being added to
State Colleges and Universities Fund (enterprise fund) statement of net assets.

Primary Government — Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions

Postemployment benefits other than pensions are available to certain employees of the state, under
terms of their employment contract. Through fiscal year 2006, the employees involved were primarily
conservation officers, correctional counselors at state correctional facilities, and highway patrol officers. If
these employees elect to retire at age 55, the state pays for the employer’s share of health insurance
benefits until the employees reach age 65. GASB Statement No. 45, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions”, required to be implemented
for fiscal year 2008, establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of these
postemployment benefits. The impact of the implementation of Statement No. 45 will be determined by
an actuarial calculation and has not yet been estimated. Pending implementation of Statement No. 45,
the state will continue to recognize the cost of these benefits as eligible employees retire. Approximately
900 former employees currently receive this benefit. The cost of the benefits was $7,637,000 during
fiscal year 2006.
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See Note 12 — Long-Term Liabilities — Primary Government for the related liability amount accrued at the
government-wide level.

Component Unit

Metropolitan Council (MC) provides certain health care, life insurance, and other non-pension benefits for
some employees as negotiated in labor contracts. MC paid $7,252,000 for the year ended December 31,
2005, for health care and life insurance benefits for 1,100 former employees who met specific eligibility
requirements. MC also earmarked approximately $44,187,000 to pay future retiree health care benefits.

Note 10 — Long-Term Commitments

Long-term commitments consist of grant agreements, construction, and other contracts. These
commitments will be partially funded by current reserves for long-term commitments with the remaining
resources provided by future bond proceeds, gas tax and motor vehicle registration revenues, and federal
grants. Long-term commitments as of June 30, 2006, were as follows:

Primary Government
Long-Term Commitments
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)

Special Revenue Fund:

Trunk Highway Fund $ 698,735
Capital Projects Funds:

General Projects Fund 1,558

Transportation Fund 71,453

Building Fund 481,529

Enterprise Funds:
State Colleges and Universities 85,604
Total Primary Government $ 1,338,879

Petroleum Tank Environmental Cleanup

The Petroleum Tank Release Cleanup Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 115C, requires the state to
reimburse petroleum storage tank owners for most of their costs to investigate or clean up contamination
from petroleum tank releases. Reimbursements are made from the Petroleum Tank Cleanup Fund
(Petrofund) (special revenue fund). A significant number of unreported tank contamination sites and
cleanup costs presently exist which will require Petrofund expenditures. As of October 2006, the
Petrofund has reimbursed eligible applicants approximately $375 million since program inception in 1987.
The estimated total payments from the program, which terminates on June 30, 2012, are between $425
and $465 million for investigative and cleanup costs.
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Remediation Fund

The landfill investments and investment earnings (part of the Remediation Fund) (special revenue fund)
are committed for landfill abatement projects and are not available until after fiscal year 2020.

Component Units

University of Minnesota (U of M) has construction projects in progress with an estimated cost of
$173,667,000 to complete. These costs will be funded from plant fund assets and state appropriations.

U of M owns certain steam production facilities that produce steam for heating and cooling for the Twin
Cities campuses. By agreement, these facilities are managed, operated, and maintained by an
unaffiliated company. The term of the agreement is five years and commenced on May 17, 2004. Under
the agreement, U of M must make minimum fixed payments for certain operating and maintenance costs,
as well as contingent payments based on monthly usage.

The minimum fixed amounts of the steam plant required payments as of June 30, 2006, were as follows:

University of Minnesota
Required Steam Plant Payments
(In Thousands)

Fiscal Year
Ending
June 30 Total
2007 $ 791
2008 742
2009 650

Total Commitments $ 2,183

Metropolitan Council enters into contracts for various purposes, including transit services and
construction projects, among others. As of December 31, 2005, unpaid commitments for Metro Transit
Bus services were approximately $30.1 million. Future commitments for Metro Transit Light Rail were
approximately $8.5 million. Future commitments for Regional Transit services were approximately $164.3
million. Finally, future commitments for Environmental Services were approximately $28 million.

As of June 30, 2006, Public Facilities Authority (PFA) had committed approximately $123 million for the
origination or disbursement of future loans under the Clean Water, Drinking Water, and Transportation
Revolving Loan programs. PFA also committed, $5.9 million for disbursement of non point-source
pollution control awards and $11.3 million for other programs.
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Note 11 — Operating Lease Agreements

Operating Leases

The state and its component units are committed under various leases primarily for building and office
space. For accounting purposes, these leases are considered to be operating leases.

Lease expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2006, totaled approximately $75,552,000 and
$14,638,000 for the primary government and component units, respectively. Lease expenditures for the
year ended December 31, 2005, totaled approximately $2,291,000 for component units.

Future Minimum Lease Payments
(In Thousands)

Primary Government Component Units

Year Ending Year Ending Year Ending

June 30 Amount June 30 Amount December 31 Amount
2007 $ 73,063 2007 $ 10,320 2006 $ 1,092
2008 59,930 2008 9,839 2007 301
2009 42,262 2009 8,855 2008 280
2010 32,665 2010 4,757 2009 263
2011 28,810 2011 4,213 2010 157
2012-2016 88,559 2012-2016 11,431 2011-2015 263
2017-2021 2,235 Total $ 49415 Total $ 2,356
2022-2026 3,847
2027-2031 866

Total $ 332,237
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Note 12 — Long-Term Liabilities — Primary Government

The following table is a summary of long-term liabilities as of June 30, 2006, and the changes during

fiscal year 2006:

Long-Term Liabilities

Year Ended June 30, 2006

(In Thousands)

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within

Balances Increases Decreases Balances One Year

Governmental Activities

Liabilities For:

General Obligation Bonds $ 3,315,282 § 538,909 $ 439,952 § 3,414,239 $ 301,856
Bond Premium 168,574 45,141 12,573 201,142 13,448
Loans 17,130 36,480 7,692 45,918 13,444
Due to Component Unit 23,610 9,687 3,387 29,910 6,970
Claims 1,318,434 3,174 428,995 892,613 97,102
Compensated Absences 244,479 200,032 198,148 246,363 26,121
Workers’ Compensation 111,017 10,457 12,069 109,405 13,308
Capital Leases 11,037 180,005 8,112 182,930 8,148
Total $ 5,209,563 $ 1,023,885 $1,110,928 § 5,122,520 $ 480,397

Business-type Activities

Liabilities For:

General Obligation Bonds $ 145,028 $ 22,051 $ 10,183 $ 156,896 $ 11,468
Bond Premium 4,420 3,887 572 7,735 -
Loans 87,376 973 82,517 5,832 1,101
Revenue Bonds 52,475 45,320 2,015 95,780 2,910
Compensated Absences 117,739 38,472 34,241 121,970 14,285
Workers’ Compensation 5,148 2,139 1,876 5,411 1,633
Capital Leases 26,497 2,826 2,803 26,520 2,514
Total $ 438,683 § 115,668 $ 134207 § 420,144 $ 33,911

14,677 reported as a prior period adjustment. See Note 21.
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The resources to repay the various long-term liabilities of the primary government have been, or will be,
provided from the fund types as follows:

Primary Government
Resources for Repayment of Long-Term Liabilities
(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities

Special
Revenue Business-
General Fund Funds type Activities Total
Liabilities For:
General Obligation Bonds $ 2,784,654 § 629,585 $ 156,896 $ 3,571,135
Bond Premium 201,142 - 7,735 208,877
Loans - 45,918 5,832 51,750
Due to Component Unit - 29,910 - 29,910
Revenue Bonds - - 95,780 95,780
Claims 87,772 804,841 - 892,613
Compensated Absences 118,128 128,235 121,970 368,333
Workers’ Compensation 82,999 26,406 5,411 114,816
Capital Leases 177,213 5717 26,520 209,450
Total $ 3451908 $ 1,670,612 § 420,144 § 5,542,664

The following tables show principal and interest payment schedules for general obligation bonds, revenue
bonds, loans, due to component unit, and capital leases. There are no payment schedules for claims,
compensated absences, or workers’ compensation.

Primary Government
General Obligation Bonds
Principal and Interest Payments
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Fiscal Year(s) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 301856 $ 165294 § 11,468 $ 7687 $ 313324 $ 172,981
2008 279,881 150,916 11,205 7,122 291,086 158,038
2009 277,593 136,506 11,222 6,559 288,815 143,065
2010 268,274 122,772 11,246 5,991 279,520 128,763
2011 237,050 109,956 10,750 5,433 247,800 115,389
2012-2016 1,065,734 380,143 49,121 19,410 1,114,855 399,553
2017-2021 687,984 156,331 36,336 8,328 724,320 164,659
2022-2026 295,867 27,277 15,548 1,419 311,415 28,696

Total $ 3414239 § 1,249,195 § 156,896 $ 61,949 § 3,571,135 $ 1,311,144
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Primary Government

Revenue Bonds

Principal and Interest Payments

(In Thousands)

Business-type Activities

Fiscal Year(s) Principal
2007 $ 2,910
2008 2,785
2009 3,745
2010 3,930
2011 4,080
2012-2016 21,155
2017-2021 22,235
2022-2026 21,020
2027-2031 9,455
2032-2036 4,465

Total $ 95,780

Interest

$ 5,063
4,904

4,742

4,555

4,355

18,690
12,783

6,194

2,343

226

$ 63,855

Primary Government
Loans Payable and Due to Component Unit
Principal and Interest Payments

(In Thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

Fiscal Year(s) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 20,414 $ 1,264  $ 1,101  $ 294 § 21,515 § 1,558
2008 17,068 2,156 892 237 17,960 2,393
2009 16,442 770 570 191 17,012 961
2010 8,780 2,156 600 159 9,380 2,315
2011 2,354 395 620 126 2,974 521
2012-2016 9,058 1,081 1,728 241 10,786 1,322
2017-2021 1,712 51 321 25 2,033 76

Total 75,828 § 7873 § 5832 $ 1,273 § 81,660 $ 9,146
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Primary Government
Capital Leases
Principal and Interest Payments
(In Thousands)
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
Fiscal Year(s) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2007 $ 8,148 $ 8,850 $ 2514 § 1,307 $ 10,662 $ 10,157
2008 7,184 8,367 2,576 1,199 9,760 9,566
2009 7,228 8,149 2,007 1,090 9,235 9,239
2010 5,752 7,913 1,884 980 7,636 8,893
2011 5,960 7,688 1,673 914 7,633 8,602
2012-2016 33,783 34,251 5,941 3,604 39,724 37,855
2017-2021 42,728 24,806 6,780 2,057 49,508 26,863
2022-2026 54,298 12,849 1,898 566 56,196 13,415
2027-2031 17,849 1,097 1,137 187 18,986 1,284
2032-2036 - - 110 3 110 3
Total $ 182930 $§ 113970 $ 26,520 $ 11,907 § 209,450 $ 125,877

Debt Service Fund

Minnesota Statutes, Section 16A.641, provides for an annual appropriation for transfer to the Debt
Service Fund. The amount of the appropriation is to be such that, when combined with the balance on
hand in the Debt Service Fund on December 1 of each year for state bonds, it will be sufficient to pay all
general obligation bond principal and interest due and to become due through July 1 in the second
ensuing year. If the amount appropriated is insufficient when combined with the balance on hand in the
Debt Service Fund, the state constitution requires the state auditor to levy a statewide property tax to
cover the deficiency. No such property tax has been levied since 1969 when the law requiring the
appropriation was enacted.
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During fiscal year 2006, the Department of Finance made the necessary transfers to the Debt Service
Fund as follows:

Primary Government
Transfers to Debt Service Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)
General Fund $ 352,447
Special Revenue Funds:
Game and Fish Fund $ 8
Trunk Highway Fund 36,347
Natural Resources Funds 11
Maximum Effort School Loan Fund 1,900
Miscellaneous Special Revenue Fund 1,548
Total Special Revenue Funds $ 39814
Capital Projects Funds:
Building Fund $ 3,224
Total Operating Transfers to Debt Service Fund $ 395,485

General Obligation Bond Issues

On October 1, 2005, $285,400,000 in general obligation state various purpose bonds, $111,600,000 in
general obligation state trunk highway bonds and $160,960,000 general obligation advance refunding
bonds were issued at a true interest rate of 3.82 percent. On February 1, 2006, $3,000,000 in general
obligation Rural Finance Authority bonds was issued at a true interest rate of 4.87 percent. During fiscal
year 2006, $450,135,000 in general obligation bond principal was repaid or defeased.

As a result of the advance refunding, the state reduced its total debt service requirements by
$17,477,000, which resulted in an economic gain of $15,357,000. The balance outstanding for all
extinguished debt as of June 30, 2006, was $82,750,000, which is shown below. The state remains
contingently liable to pay the advance refunded general obligation bonds.

General Obligation Bonds
Outstanding Defeased Debt
(In Thousands)

June 30, 2006
Refunding Refunded Outstanding Refunded Bond
Refunding Date Amount Amount Amount Call Date

October 1, 2005 $ 81,415 $ 82,750 $ 82,750 November 1, 2006

The following table is a schedule of general obligation bonds authorized, but unissued, and bonds
outstanding as of June 30, 2006. This schedule includes general obligation bonds that were sold for the
State Operated Community Services and State Colleges and Universities funds (enterprise funds).
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General Obligation Bonds Authorized, but Unissued and Bonds Outstanding
As of June 30, 2006
(In Thousands)
Authorized Amount Interest Rates
Purpose But Unissued  Outstanding Range - %
State Building $ 2271 § 747,083 3.00 - 6.00
State Operated Community Services - 3,397 3.75-7.56
State Transportation - 123,094 3.00-6.38
Waste Management - 3,235 4.00 -6.00
Water Pollution Control - 53,335 3.00-6.00
Maximum Effort School Loan - 72,970 4.00 -6.00
Reinvest in Minnesota - 565 4.00 -6.00
Rural Finance Administration 12,500 67,600 3.50-7.05
Refunding Bonds - 674,064 1.50 — 5.40
Municipal Energy Building - 1,440 3.00-6.00
Game and Fish Building - 16 1.50 - 5.00
Trunk Highway 148,525 433,505 1.50 - 5.50
Airport Facilities - 36,850 530-7.95
Landfill - 11,045 4.25-6.00
Various Purpose 1,876,069 1,342,936 3.00 -5.62
Total $ 2,039,365 §$ 3,571,135

Capital Leases

The state entered into capital lease agreements with St Paul Port Authority (SPPA - not part of the state’s
reporting entity) to purchase two newly constructed buildings on state owned land for $180,005,000.
Lease payments are scheduled over 20 years and approximate the debt service payments of SPPA. The
state has other capital lease agreements to purchase equipment. The leases meet the criteria of a capital
lease as defined by Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 13, “Accounting for Leases”, which defines a capital lease generally as one that transfers benefits
and risk of ownership to the lessee. The terms of each agreement provide options to purchase the
buildings under a bargain purchase option and the equipment at any time during the lease period.

Loans Payable and Due to Component Unit

Governmental activities loans are loans relating to the Trunk Highway Fund (special revenue fund). Loans
outstanding of $29,378,000 were from local government entities to finance certain trunk highway projects.
In addition, $29,910,000 in loans from the Public Facilities Authority component unit (Due to Component
Unit) were outstanding for transportation projects. Other governmental activities loans are internal
service fund loans for equipment purchases.
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Business-type activities loans are primarily loans for the Department of Administration to purchase
equipment and college and university building energy efficiency improvements financed by the energy
provider.

Revenue Bonds Payable

Minnesota State Colleges and Universities is authorized by Minnesota Statutes, Section 136F.98, to issue
revenue bonds whose aggregate principal shall not exceed $150,000,000 at any time. The proceeds of
these bonds are used to finance the acquisition, construction, and remodeling of buildings for dormitory,
residence hall, student union, and food service pur<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>